AGENDA

Lake Park Town Commission
Town of Lake Park, Florida
Regular Commission Meeting
Wednesday, May §, 2010, 7:00 p.m.

Lake Park Town Hall
535 Park Avenue
Desca DuBois — Mayor
Patricia Osterman — Vice-Mayor
Steven Hockman — Commissioner
Jeanine Longtin — Commissioner
Kendall RUmSCY.......oc revrenenn SOMMissioner

Maria V. Davis Town Manager
Thomas J. Baird, Esq. — Town Attorney
Vivian M. Lemley, CMC — Town Clerk

PLEASE TAKE NOTICE AND BE ADVISED, that if any interested person desires to appeal any decision of the Town
Commission, with respect to any matter considered at this meeting, such interested person will need a record of the proceedings,
and for such purpose, may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the
testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based. Persons with disabilifies requiring accommodations in order to
participate in the meeting should contact the Town Clerk’s office by calling 881-3311 at least 48 hours in advance to request
accommodations.

A, CALL TO ORDER

B. INVOCATION

C. PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE
D. ROLL CALL

E. ADDITIONS/DELETIONS - APPROVAL OF AGENDA

F. PROCLAMATION;
National Public Works Week May 16-22, 2010

G. PRESENTATION
Comprehensive Annual Financial Report for Fiscal Year 2009

H. PUBLIC and OTHER COMMENT
This time is provided for audience members to address items that do not appear on the
Agenda. Please complete a comment card and provide it to the Town Clerk so speakers
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may be announced. Please remember comments are limited to a TOTAL of three
minutes.

L. CONSENT AGENDA: All matters listed under this item are considered routine and
action will be taken by one motion. There will be no separate discussion of these items
unless a Commissioner or person so requests, in which event the item will be removed
from the general order of business and considered in its normal sequence on the
Agenda. Any person wishing to speak on an Agenda item is asked to complete a public
comment card located on either side of the Chambers and given to the Town Clerk.
Cards must be submitted before the item is discussed.

For Approval:
1. Resolution No. 19-05-10 Waste Management Agreement Extension Tab 1
2. Approval to Prequalify Roofing Companies Tab 2
3. Proclamation for Water Reuse Week May 16-22, 2010 Tab 3
J. BOARD APPOINTMENTS:
4. Applicants for Tree Board Tab 4
5. Applicant for Re-Appointment to Library Board Tab §

K. PUBLIC HEARING:
QUASI-JUDICIAL HEARING:
6. RESOLUTION NO. 20-05-10 Earl Stewart Toyota Site Plan for
Temporary Parking Tab 6
A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN OF LAKE
PARK, FLORIDA, APPROVING AN APPLICATION FOR A DEMOLITION
PERMIT SUBMITTED BY EARL STEWART TOYOTA TO DEMOLISH
ALL BUILDINGS FOR THE PROPERTY FORMERLY KNOWN AS THE
JOURNEY’S INN AND APPROVING A SITE PLAN AUTHORIZING THE
DEVELOPMENT OF A TEMPORARY PARKING LOT THEREON.

L. DISCUSSION AND POSSIBLE ACTION:

7. Town Manager Goals 2010-2011 Tab 7
8. Calendar for July Commission Meetings and Budget Tab 8
9. New Lease Agreement for the Crown Castle Cell Tower Lease Located

on Town Hall Property Tab 9
10. Installation of Four Way Stop Signs at the Corner of 4™ Street & F lagler

Blvd. Tab 10
11. Northlake Boulevard Task Force Membership Tab 11

M. COMMISSIONER COMMENTS, TOWN ATTORNEY, TOWN MANAGER:

N. ADJOURNMENT:
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Town of Lake Park Town Commission

Meeting Date: May 5, 2010

[ 1] PUBLIC HEARING

Agenda Request Form

Agenda {tem No.

[] RESOLUTION

[1] Ordinance on Second Reading

[ ] Public Hearing

(1 ORDINANCE ON FIRST READING []

[1] GENERAL APPROVAL OF ITEM []

[] DISCUSSION

[X] Other: PROCLAMATION

SUBJECT: Honoring National Public Works Week.

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: Approval

BID/RFP AWARD

CONSENT AGENDA

Approved by Town Manager M% /<

Date: 4;/ 2—?{/ {®

ohn David Hunt

Name/Title

a®

April 29, 2010

Date of Actual Submittal

Originating Department:

Costs: § -0-

Attachments:

Public Works Funding Source: Proclamation
Acct.
Department Review: [ ] Fire Dept {X] Public Works
{ ] Community Affairs [] Hyman Resources [] Town Attorney
[ 1 Community Development__ | [] Library [ ] Town Clerk
[ ] Finance [ ] Marina [ ] Town Manager
[]1PBSO

Advertised:
Date:
Paper:

[x] Not Required

All parties that have an interest
in this agenda item must be
notified of meeting date and
time. The following box must
be filled out to be on agenda.

Yes | have notified
everyone

or
Not applicable in this case:

Please initial one.

Summary Explanation/Background: National Public Works Week (NPWW)

is a celebration of the tens of thousands of men and women in North
America who provide and maintain the infrastructure and services

collectively known as public works.

National Public Works Week is

observed each year during the third full week of May. Through NPWW and
other offorts, American Public Works Association (APWA) seeks to raise




the public’s awareness of public works issues and to increase confidence

in public works employees who are dedicated to improving the quality of
life for present and future generations.

Public Works leadership employees have been invited to receive this
proclamation.



PROCLAMATION
RECOGNIZING NATIONAL
PUBLIC WORKS WEEK

WHEREAS. public works services provided in our community are an integral part of our citizens'
everyday lives: and

WHEREAS, the support of an understanding and informed citizenry is vital to the efficient
operation of public works systems and programs such as water, sewers, streets and highways.
public buildings, solid waste collection, parks and canal maintenance; and

WHEREAS. the health, safety. and comfort of this community greatly depends on these facilities
and services; and

WHEREAS., the quality and effectiveness of these facilities, as well as their planning. design. and
construction, is vitally dependent upon the efforts and skill of public works officials; and

WHEREAS. the efficiency of the qualified and dedicated personnel, who staff public works
departments, is materially influenced by the people's attitude and understanding of the importance
of the work they perform.

WHEREAS, this year's theme “Revitalize, Reinvest, Renew™, is a tribute to the many positive
improvements public works employees have made to our communities:

NOW, THEREFORE, on behalf of the Commission of the Town of Lake Park, I, Desca
DuBois, Mayor of the Town of Lake Park, Florida do hereby publicly recognize May 16"
through May 22", 2010 as

NATIONAL PUBLIC WORKS WEEK

in the Town of Lake Park, and calls upon all citizens and civic organizations to acquaint
themselves with the issues involved in providing our public works and to recognize the
contributions which public works officials make every day to our health, safety, comfort, and
quality of life.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, I have hereto set my hand and caused the official Seal of the
Town of Lake Park, Florida to be affixed this 5* day of May, 2010.

BY:

Mayor Desca DuBois

ATTEST:

Vivian M. Lemley, Town Clerk
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Town of Lake Park Town Commission

Meeting Date: May 5, 2010

PUBLIC HEARING

— p— p—

Public Hearing

[] ORDINANCE ON FIRST READING [ ]

[1] GENERAL APPROVAL OF ITEM []

[X] Other: Presentation

]
] Ordinance on Second Reading
]

Agenda Request Form

Agenda ltem No.

[1 RESOLUTION
[] DISCUSSION
BID/RFP AWARD

CONSENT AGENDA

SUBJECT: Presentation Regarding the Comprehensive Annual Financial Report

for Fiscal Year 2009,

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: Accept Audlt

I/

Approved by Town Manager /A/% /{//J

(i, Contedt

Name/Title Finance Director

g/
Date: .?l[ / Z—?// d

~Hlaalio

Date of Actual Submittal

Originating Department:
Finance

Costs: N/A

Funding Source:

Attachments: Audit Report

Depariment Review:
[]Town Attorney_

[ } Community Affairs _____

[ ] Community Development_

[X] Finance
[ ] Fire Dept
[] Library

[ 1Marina

[]1PBSOC

{ ] Personnel
[ ] Public Works
[] Town Clerk
[ ] Town Manager

Advertised:
Date:

Paper:

[X] Not Required

All parties that have an interest
in this agenda item must be
notified of meeting date and
time. The following box must
be filled out to be on agenda.

Yes | have notified
everyone
or

Not applicable in thls
case

Please initial one.

Summary Explanation/Background: Mr. Edward Holt, external auditor, from the firm of Nowlen,
Holt & Miner, P.A. will briefly report on the condition of the Town's finances for Fiscal Year
2008/2009.
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COMPREHENSIVE ANNUAL FINANCIAL REPORT

TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA

Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2009

Prepared by
Finance Department

Anne M. Costello
Finance Director
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TOWN OF LAKE PARK

FINANCE DEPARTMENT

March 31, 2010

The Honorable Mayor,
Members of the Town Commission and Citizens
Town of Lake Park, Florida

The Comprehensive Annual Financial Report (CAFR) of the Town of Lake Park, Florida, (the “Town™)
for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2009, is hereby submitted. Florida law and the Rules of the
Auditor General for the State of Florida require every municipality to complete a set of audited financial
statements annually within twelve months of the close of the fiscal year. This report is published to fulfill
that requirement for the year ended September 30, 2009.

This report consists of management’s representation conceming the finances of the Town of Lake Park.
Consequently, management assumes full responsibility for the completeness and reliability of all of the
information presented in this report. To provide a reasonable basis for making these representations,
management of the Town of Lake Park has established a comprehensive internal control framework that
is designed both to protect the Town assets from loss, theft, or misuse and to compile sufficient reliable
information for the preparation of the Town of Lake Park’s financial statements in conformity with
GAAP. Because the cost of internal controls should not outweigh their benefits, the Town of Lake Park’
comprehensive framework of internal controls has been designed to provide reasonable, rather than
absolute, assurance that the financial statements will be free from material misstatement. As
managetment, we assert that, to the best of our knowledge and belief, this financial report is coraplete and
reliable in all material respects.

The Town of Lake Park’s financial statements have been audited by Nowlen, Holt & Miner, P.A.,
certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to provide reasonable assurance that
the financial statements of the Town of Lake Park for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2009 are free of
material misstatement. The independent audit involved examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting
the amounts and disclosures in financial statements; assign the accounting principles used and significant
estimates made by management; and evalvating the overall financial statement presentation. The
independent auditor concluded, based upon the audit, that there was a reasonable basis for rendering an
unqualified opinion that the Town of Lake Park’s financial statements for the fiscal year ended September
30, 2009, are fairly presented in conformity with GAAP. The independent auditor’s report is located at
the front of the Financial Section of this report on page 1.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) immediately follows the independent auditor’s report
and provides a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis of the basic financial statements. MD&A
complements this letter of transmittal and should be read in conjunction with it.

PROFILE OF THE TOWN

Originally incorporated in 1923 as Kelsey City, the city was renamed in 1939 to the Town of Lake Park.
The Town of Lake Park is a political subdivision of the State of Florida with a population of
approximately 9,300 residents, ideally located in the southeastemn part of the State on the Atlantic
Intracoastal Waterway. The Town is primarily residential but has several types of light industry and
shopping centers.

The Town of Lake Park operates under a commission-manager form of government. Policymaking and
legislative authority are vested in a governing commission consisting of the Mayor, Vice-Mayor and three
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Commissioners. The governing body is responsible, among other things, for passing ordinances, adopting
the budget, appointing committees, and hiring both the Town Manager and Town Attomney. The Mayor
and Commission Members are elected on a non-partisan basis. All are elected for three-year terms.

For Fiscal Year 2009 and since the incorporation of the Town, elections have been staggered with only
the Mayor being elected in one election year, two commissioners are elected in the next election year and
the remaining two commissioners are elected in the next election year. The Town Manager is responsible
for carrying out the policies and ordinances of the governing commission, for overseeing the day-to-day
operations of the government and for appointing the heads of the various departments. i
During the previous year, the Department of Justice of the United States filed a civil action against the
Town alleging that the current at-large method of electing the Commissioners for the Town, enhanced by
the use of staggered terms and designated posts, resulted in black citizens of the Town having less
opportunity than white citizens to participate in the political process and elect candidates of choice in
violation of Section 2 of the Voting Rights Act of 1965. Subsequent to the end of Fiscal Year 2009, as a
result of the Department of Justice Consent Decree with the Town which requires that the Town change
the manner in which candidates for Commission seats are elected by imposing a method known as
“Limited Voting”, an ordinance was adopted to amend the Charter to reflect this change.

Beginning in March of 2010, four commissioners will be elected in town-wide contests under concurrent
terms, voters will be limited to casting a vote for only one candidate and the four candidates receiving the
highest number of votes will be elected to the commission.

The Town of Lake Park provides a full range of services, including building inspections, code
enforcement, residential and commercial sanitation service, recreation and cultural events. Police and fire
protection are contracted through Palm Beach County. Water and sewer service is provided through a
separate utility authority.

The Town’s financial statements also include the Lake Park Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA);
a dependent special district established by the Town, under authority granted by Florida Statute 163,
Section IIL. The Town is financially accountable for the CRA which is included in the Town’s financial
statements as a blended component unit reported in a governmental (special revenue) fund, the CRA
Fund.

The Town is required by State law to adopt an annual budget for the general fund, The annual budget
serves as the foundation for the Town’s financial planning and control. The budget is prepared by fund,
function (e.g., public safety) and department (e.g., police). The Town Manager may transfer resources
within a department as needed. Budgetary transfers between departments require the approval of the
Town Commission.

LOCAL ECONOMY

In fiscal year 2009, the Town’s economic growth continued to slow down due to the nationa! recession
and collapse of the housing and real estate market. Property values increased dramatically throughout
Palm Beach County and the Town of Lake Park between the years of 2002 through 2006, but slowed
significantly in 2007. The taxable value of property within the Town decreased 5.5% in 2008, mainly due
to the passage of Amendment One (Property Tax Reform) and an additional 14.9% in 2009 due to the
economic downturn. The Town does not anticipate any significant changes in the pace of planned new
growth since most of the vacant parcels within the municipal limits have already been developed. The
Town does not anticipate any increase in the taxable values of properties within its boundaries for the
foreseeable future due to the softening of the real estate market and the overall economic downturn that
has impacted both home values and sales.

The decrease in taxable values within the Town totaled more than $101 million, which translated to a loss
of $820,350 in tax revenue. Additional revenue reductions from State shared revenues and other revenues
sources, such as building permits and interest on investments, resulted in an additional loss of $400,000,
for a combined total loss of revenue in the amount of $1,034,410. No increase in the millage was
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proposed or adopted for Fiscal Year 2010, Public safety costs represent 50% of the General Fund
expenditures and consume in excess of 100% of our tax revenue, and public safety is paramount.
Operational cuts across all departments, excluding public safety, were implemented to counter the [oss of
revenue. New revenues were projected 1o be collected from the installation of parking meters at various
sites throughout in the waterfront areas of the Town.

The Town continues to look for ways to provide essential services to the public in the most cost efficient,
effective way without the health, safety and welfare of the community being compromised. The use of
one time sources of revenue for recurring expenditures is not an option given the modest level of reserves
and the threat of hurricanes an annual possibility. Alternative sources of revenue and possibly increased
fees will be explored for future budgets.

The Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA) purchased two additional residential properties along
Foresteria Drive adjacent to the property purchased at 725 Foresteria the previous year. That area is
projected to be used for additional downtown parking. A commercial property, located at 800 Park
Avenue, was acquired for the purpose of establishing an art studio and gallery. A major refurbishing of
downtown alleyways was completed in FY2009. The CRA has initiated a fagade improvement grant
program that will provide for up to $25,000 in matching grant monies to improve building facades. To
complement this program, a business development loan program has been established to encourage
development of the downtown business district located within the CRA boundaries.

For the first part of FY2009, building permits are down by 9%, business tax receipts are up by 5% and
new jobs created are up 14%. The Town has been feeling the pinch of the economy. One Park Place, a
commercial/residential project on Park Avenue, has completed the first building and received a certificate
of occupancy in early spring 2009.

ACCOUNTING AND BUDGETARY CONTROLS

The accounting and financial reporting of the Town’s general government operations takes place in four
broad categories: the General Fund, Special Revenue Funds, Debt Service Fund and Insurance Internal
Service Fund. The records and reports for these funds are maintained on the modified accrual basis, with
revenue being recorded when measurable and available, and expenditures being recorded when the
services or goods are received and the liabilities incurred. Accounting records for the Town’s enterprise
operations and pension trust funds are maintained on the accrual basis.

Management of the government is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal controls designed
to ensure that the assets of the government are protected from loss, theft or misuse and to ensure that
adequate accounting data are compiled to allow for the preparation of financial statements in conformity
with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States (GAAP). The internal control is
designed to provide reasonable, rather than absolute, assurance these objectives are met, The cancept of
reasonable assurance recognizes that (1) the cost of a control should not exceed the benefits likely to be
derived, and (2) the evaluation of costs and benefits requires estimate and judgments by management.

As a recipient of federal, state and local awards, the Town is responsible for ensuring that adequate
internal contro! is in place to ensure compliance with applicable laws and regulations related to those
programs. This internal control is subject to periodic evaluation by management.

Annually, tests are performed by external auditors to determine the adequacy of the Town’s internal
control, including that portion related to federal awards programs, as well as to determine that the Town
has complied with applicable laws and regulations.

In addition, the government maintains budgetary controls. The objective of these budgetary controls is to
ensure compliance with the legal provisions embodied in the annual budget approved by the government’s
governing body. Activities of the General Fund, Community Redevelopment Agency, Debt Service Fund
and proprietary funds are included in the annual appropriated budget. The level of budgetary control (that
is, the fevel at which expenditures cannot legally exceed the appropriated amount) is established at the
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department level within the individual fund. The government also maintains an encumbrance accounting
system as one technique of accomplishing budgetary control.

As demonstrated by the basic financial statements and schedules included in the financial section of the
report, the government continues to meet its responsibility for sound financial management.

MAIJOR INITIATIVES

During recent years, the Town has devoted a significant amount of time, energy and resources to the
continuing growth and redevelopment of the Town. The Town continued its work with the older
neighborhoods to develop improvement plans and then commit the financial resources to help them
achieve their goals. Systematic resurfacing of streets and sidewalks and repair of the storm drainage
system in the Town has continued.

The Commission and staff are continuing to move ahead with ambitious plans to revitalize the Town, it’s
downtown area and develop the western corridor. Grant monies will continue to be vigorously pursued to
supplement Town funds for operations and improvements.

CERTIFICATE OF ACHIEVEMENT

The Government Finance Officers Association (GFOA) awarded a Certificate of Achievement for
Excellence in Financial Reporting to the Town of Lake Park for its Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report (CAFR) for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2008. To be awarded a Certificate of
Achievement, a government unit must publish an easily readable and efficiently organized CAFR, whose
contents conform to program standards. This report must satisfy both U.S Generally Accepted Accounting
Principles (GAAP) and applicable legal requirements. The Certificate of Achievement is the highest form
of recognition for excellence in state and local government financial reporting.

A Certificate of Achievement is valid for a period of one year only. The Town of Lake Park has received
a Certificate of Achievement for the past four years. We believe our current comprehensive annual
financial report continues to meet the Certificate of Achievement Program’s requirements and we are
submitting it to the GFOA to determine its eligibility for another certificate.

ACKNOWLEDGEMENTS

A comprehensive annual financial report of this type and depth, illustrating the results of operations of the
entire Town and its various diversified funds and activities, could not have been prepared so completely
without the dedication and efficiency of the entire Finance Department staff;, Deborah Doiron, Merry Ann
Catasus, Dena Davis and Nadine Mensah. Their dedication and hard work is greatly appreciated. My
appreciation is also extended to our independent auditors, Nowlen, Holt & Miner, P.A. for their
cooperation and guidance.

Special appreciation is extended to the Mayor, Town Commission, Town Manager, and Department
Heads for their interest and support in planning and conducting the financial operations of the Town in a
responsible and progressive manner.

Respectfully submitted,

&.m Y, - (iOQW@

Anne M. Costello
Director of Finance
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The Honorable Mayor and Members of the Town Commission
Town of Lake Park, Florida

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the governmental activities, the
business-type activities, cach major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of the
Town of Lake Park, Florida as of and for the year ended September 30, 2009, which collectively
comprise the Town’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial
statements are the responsibility of the Town of Lake Park, Florida's management. Our
responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards and the
standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the
Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material
misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles
used and significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial
statement presentation. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinions.

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, each major fund, and
the aggregate remaining fund information of the Town of Lake Park, Florida as of September 30,
2009, and the respective changes in financial position, and cash flows, where applicable, thereof
for the year then ended in conformity with U.S. generally accepted accounting principles.
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In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated
March 30, 2010, on our consideration of the Town of Lake Park, Florida’s internal control over
financial reporting and our tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations,
contracts, grant agrcements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the
scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the results of
that testing and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government
Auditing Standards and should be read in conjunction with this report in considering the results of
our audit.

Management’s Discussion and Analysis on pages 3 through 12 and the Required Supplementary
Information on pages 65 through 75 are not a required part of the basic financial statements but
are supplementary information required by U.S. generally accepted accounting principles. We
have applied certain limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of managenient
regarding the methods of measurement and presentation of the required supplementary
information. However, we did not audit the information and €Xpress no opinion on it.

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Town of lake Park, Florida’s basic financial statements. The
information contained in the Introductory Section, Other Supplementary Information, and
Statistical Section listed in the table of contents are presented for purposes of additional analysis
and are not a required part of the basic financial statements of the Town of Lake Park, Florida.
The Other Supplementary Information has been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in
the audit of the basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated, in all material
respects, in relation to the basic financial statements taken as a whole. The Introductory Section
and Statistical Section have not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of
the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we express no opinion on them.

NewrlinHols & Mimea., PA.

March 30, 2010
West Palm Beach, Florida



MANAGEMENT'S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The Town of Lake Park, Florida (Town) administration offers readers of the Town's
financial statements this narrative overview and analysis of the financial activities of the
Town for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2009. Readers are encouraged to
consider the information presented here in conjunction with additional information that
has been furnished in the transmittal letter and the accompanying basic financial
statements.

The information contained within this Management's Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) is
only a component of the entire financial statement report. Readers should take time to
read and evaluate all sections of the report, including the Notes to the Financial
Statements and the Required Suppiementary Information that is provided in addition to
this MD&A.

Financial Highlights

» The assets of the Town of Lake Park exceeded its liabilities at September 30,
2009 by $8,748,901. Of this amount, unrestricted net assets of $2,292,477 may
be used to meet the government's ongoing obligations to citizens and creditors.

e The total net assets increased by $17,835, of which an increase of $516,818 was
associated with governmental activities and a decrease of $498,983 was reiated
to business-type activities. The decrease in net assets of the business-type
activities of the Town is directly related to the on-going pursuit of the deficiencies
and potential litigation related to the construction of the Marina.

* As of the close of the 2009 Fiscal Year, the Town of Lake Park's General Fund
reported ending fund balance of $3,413,950 an increase of $1,226,320 from the
prior year. Of the total, $2,237,931 is restricted or reserved, specifically
designated and not available for spending and $1,176,019 is unreserved,
undesignated and available for future uses by the Town Commission.

» Atthe end of the 2008 Fiscal Year, the unreserved fund balance for the Generai
Fund represented 12% of total General Fund expenditures or approximately 45
days of available funding.

« Total long term obligations for the Town increased $495.014. General Obligation
Bond debt and loans payable decreased in the amount of $712,293, due to
scheduled principal payments, along with a decrease in Capital Lease
obligations in the amount of $34,332, which was offset by the issuance of new
debt in the amount of $1,209,449. Compensated absences payable increased
$32,190 due to the implementation of new leave policies approved by the Town
Commission in Fiscal Year 2008 implemented in Fiscal Year 2009,



USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

This annual report consists of a series of financial statements. The three components of
the financial statements are: (1) Government-wide financial statements that include the
Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities. These statements provide
information about the activities of the Town as a whole. (2) Fund financial statements tell
how these services were financed in the short term, as well as what remains for future
spending. Fund financial statements also report the Town's operations in more detail
than the government-wide statements by providing information about the Town's most
significant funds. (3) Notes to the basic financial statements expand upon information
reported in the govemment-wide and governmental fund statements.

REPORTING THE TOWN AS A WHOLE

Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities (Government-wide)

A frequently asked question regarding the Town's financial health is whether the year's
activities contributed positively to the overall financial well being. The Statement of Net
Assets and the Statement of Activities report information about the Town as a whole and
about its activities in a way that helps answer this question. These statements include ail
assets and liabilities using the accrual basis of accounting, which is similar to the
accounting used by most private-sector companies. All of the current year's revenues
and expenses are taken into account, regardless of when cash is received or paid.

These two statements report the Town's net assets and changes therein. Net assets, the
difference between assets and liabilities, are one way to measure the Town's financial
health, or financial position. Over time, increases or decreases in net assets are an
indicator of whether the financial health is improving or deteriorating.

The Statement of Net Assets and the Statement of Activities present information about
the following:

+ Govemmental activities - All of the Town's basic services are considered to be
governmentat activities, including general government, community development,
public safety, public services, library, and recreation. Property taxes, sales taxes,
utility taxes, intergovernmental revenue and franchise fees finance most of these
activities.

» Proprietary activities/Business-type activiies - The Town charges a fee to
customers to cover all or most of the cost of the services provided. The Town's
Sanitation Fund, Stormwater Fund and Marina Fund are reported in this
category.



REPORTING THE TOWN'S MOST SIGNIFICANT FUNDS

Fund Financial Statements

The fund financial statements provide detailed information about the most significant
funds - not the Town as a whole. Some funds are required to be established by State
law. However, management establishes other funds, which aid in the management of
money for particular purposes or meet legal responsibilities associated with the usage of
certain taxes, grants, and other money. The Town's four kinds of funds, govemnmental,
proprietary, fiduciary, and special revenue, use different accounting approaches as
explained below.

* Govemmental funds - Most of the Town's basic services are reported in
governmental funds. Governmental funds focus on how resources flow in and
out, with the balances remaining at year-end that are available for spending.
These funds are reported using an accounting method called the modified
accrual accounting method, which measures cash and ail other financial assets
that can readily be converted to cash. The governmental fund statements provide
a detailed short-term view of the Town's general government operations and the
basic services it provides. Govemmental fund information shows whether there
are more or fewer financial resources that can be spent in the near future to
finance the Town's programs. The basic governmental fund financial statements
can be found on pages 16-19 of this report.

» Enterprise funds - The Town has three enterprise funds, Sanitation, Stormwater
and Marina, which charge customers for the services they provide. These
services are generally reported in proprietary funds. Proprietary funds are
reported in the same way that all activities are reported in the Statement of Net
Assets and the Statement of Activities. The basic proprietary fund financial
statements can be found on pages 20-22 of this report.

» Fiduciary funds - Fiduciary funds are used to account for resources held for the
benefit of parties outside the government. Fiduciary funds are not reflected in the
government-wide financial statement because the resources of those funds are
not available to support the Town's own programs. The accounting used for
fiduciary funds is much like that used for proprietary funds. The basic fiduciary
fund financial statements can be found on pages 23-24 of this report.

» Special Revenue funds - Special Revenue funds are used to account for the
proceeds of specific revenue sources that are restricted to expenditure for
specified purposes. The Town has two funds in this category: the CRA Fund
and Streets & Roads Fund. The basic fund financial statements can be found on
pages 16-19 of this report.



Notes to the financial statements

The notes provide additional information that is essential to a full understanding of the
data provided in the government-wide and fund financial statements. The notes to the
financial statements can be found on pages 25-64 of this report.

Other information

In addition to the basic financial statements and accompanying notes, this report also
presents certain required supplementary information concerning the Town'’s progress in
funding its obligation to provide pension benefits to its employees. Required
supplementary information for pension benefits can be found on page 65-66 of this
report.

The Town adopts annual appropriated budgets for the General Fund and CRA.
Budgetary comparison schedules for the General Fund and CRA are included as
Required Supplementary Information on pages 67-75 to demonstrate compliance with
the budget.

The Town also adopts an annual budget for the Streets and Roads Fund, Insurance
Fund, and Debt Service Fund. Budgetary comparison schedules for these funds are also
included as Other Supplementary Information section of this report. The combining and
individual fund statements and schedules are presented immediately following the
required supplementary information on pages 76-80 of this report.

Government-Wide Financial Analysis

Net Assets: As noted earlier, net assets may serve over time as a useful indicator of a
government’s financial position. In the case of the Town, governmental activity assets
exceeded liabilities by $5,479,192. Business-type aclivity assets exceeded liabilities by
$3,269,709. The Town-wide total net assets were $8,748,901 at the close of the fiscal
year ended September 30, 2009. The Statement of Net Assets is on page 13 of this
report.

The Town’s investment in capital assets (e.g., land, buildings, equipment and vehicles,
less any related debt used to acquire those assets that is still outstanding) was
$6,360,334 or 73% of total net assets at September 30, 2009. Capital assets total
$20,871,062 at September 30, 2009, or 80% of all assets, which total $26,137,355. The
Town uses these capital assets to provide services to citizens; consequently, these
assets are not available for future spending. Although the Town's investment in its
capital assets is reported net of related debt, it should be noted that the resources
needed to repay this debt must be provided from other sources, since the capital assets
themselves cannot be used to liquidate these liabilities.

An additional portion of the net assets (1 percent) represents resources that are subject
to external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining balance of unrestricted
net assets ($2,292,477) may be used to meet the government’s ongoing obligations to
citizens and creditors. The following table reflects the condensed Statement of Net
Assets for the current year as compared to the prior year.



Net Assets

Governinenial Business
Aclivities Aclivities Tolai
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Assels:
Current and other assets § 5897157 8§ 7473479 (630.86d) S 1113466 5 5266293 § 8,586,945
Capital assets 10,497,860 8.917.406 10,373.202 9085212 20,871,062 18.002.618
Tolal assels 16,395,017 16.390.885 9.742.338 10,198,678 26.137.355 26.589.563
Liabilities:
Long-lenn liabilitlies 10,229,282 9.734,268 6.212,802 6,237,773 16,442,084 15.972,041
Other liabilities 686,543 1.694.243 259.827 192.213 946.370 1,886456
Total liabilities 10,915,825 11,428,511 6,472,629 6,429.986 _17.388.454 17.858.497
Nel assels:
[nvested in capital assels,
net of related debt 2,062,366 1,781,760 4,297 968 4,066,900 6.360,334 5,848,660
Restricted 96,090 119,780 - - 96,090 119,780
Crrestricted 3.320,736 3.060,834 {1,028.259) (298.208) 2,202,477 2.762.626
Total net assels S 5479192 5 4962374 § 3269709 S 3768692 § 8748901 $  8.731.066
Governmental Activities: Governmental activities increased the Town's net assets by
$561,818 while net assets for business activities decreased by $498,983 for 2009
resulting in a net increase of $17,835 or .2%. The following is a summary of the changes
in net assets for the years ended September 30, 2009 and 2008:
Changes in Net Assets
Governmental Business
Activilies Aclivities Total
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008
Revenues:
Program revenues:
Charges for services § 877,665 S 893,595 S 2874363 52,703,827 § 3,752,028 S 3,597,422
Operating granis and
contributions 11,639 32,047 - - 11,639 32,047
Capital grants and
contributions 187,795 325.270 206,031 - 393,826 325,270
General revenues:
Taxes 8,897,525 8,220,895 - 8.897,525 8,220,895
Intergovernmental 893,510 974,834 - - 893,510 974,834
[nvestment eamnings 54,121 174,117 7.100 29,038 61,221 203,155
Miscellaneous revenucs 102,096 38,971 - 102,096 38,971
Gain on sale of
equipment - 26 = - - 26
Tolal revenues 311.024,351 _$10.659.755  $ 3.087494 §2732865 S$14.111.845 & 13,392,620

—_— e
—_——————




Tax revenue collections increased $6786,630 primarily due to an increase in the property
tax rate for Fiscal Year 2009 necessary to maintain essential services. Taxable values
within the Town decreased more than $40 million dollars from the effects of Amendment
One, property tax reform. Offsetting this tax rate increase was a decline in revenue from
building permits and State Shared revenues such as sales tax and entitiement proceeds.
Investment earnings as a whole have decreased due to declining market conditions
worldwide.

Governmenta| Business
Aclivilies Aclivilies Total
2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Expenses:
General government § 2656309 § 2538501 % by § 2656309 § 2,538,501
Public safety 5421845 5211776 - 5421845 5211776
Physical environment 319,993 361170 - 319,993 361,170
Transportation 659.113 683,463 - 659,113 683,463
Culture and recreation 1,242,156 1,161.870 - 1,242,156 1,161,870
Interest on

long-term debt 420.671 320,280 - 420,671 320,280
Marina - - 1,734,561 1,898,460 1,734,561 1,898 460
Sanitalion - - 1,430,694 1,351,863 1,430,694 1,351,863
Slormwaler - - 208.668 - 208.668 -

Total expenses 10.720,087 10,277,060 3.373.923 3,250,323 14.094,010 13.527.383

Transiers In/(Out) 212,554 321,996 {212,554) (321,996) - -
Increase in nel assets 516,818 704,691 {498.983) (839.454) 17,835 (134,763)
Net assets - beginning

of year, as restaled 4,962,374 4,257.683 3,768,692 4,608,146 8,731,066 8,865,829
Nel assets - end of year $ 5479092 S 4962374 § 3269709 § 3768692 § 8748901 § 8.731,066

For the most pan, the changes in expenses closely paralieled inflation and the demand
for services. A noteworthy item is expenditures for public safety. The CRA contracted for
two additional officers within the Agency's boundaries, which is evidenced by the
increase in Public Safety expenditures in the amount of $210,069 however, the Town's
contractual obligations with the Palm Beach County Sheriff's Office only increased
$60,000 (2.3%) and remained basically the same for Palm Beach County Fire-Rescue
services. Expenditures for Physical Environment (public works) reflected a decrease of
approximately $41,000. In the prior fiscal year professional services, in the amount of
$30,000, were incurred for the implementation of the Stormwater Utility. The increase in
culture and recreation expenditures is attributable to higher depreciation expense
allocation resulting from the improvements in Lakeshore Park and to the seawall.
Overall, governmental activities increased the Town's net assets $516,818.

Business-type Activities: Business-type activities decreased the Town's net assets by
$498,983 for 2009. Revenues have increased $354,629 primarily due to the
implementation of the Stormwater Utility in Fiscal Year 2009. A corresponding increase
in expenditures can also be attributed to this implementation.



Financial Analysis of the Governments’ Funds

As noted earlier, the Town of Lake Park uses fund accounting to ensure and
demonstrate compliance with finance related legal requirements.

Governmental Funds. The focus of the Town's governmental fund financial statements
is to provide information on near-term inflows, outflows, and balances of spendable
resources. Such information is useful in assessing the Town's financing requirements. In
particular, unreserved fund balance may serve as a useful measure of a government's
net resources available for spending at the end of the fiscal year.

At September 30, 2009, the Town's primary operating fund, the General Fund, reported
ending fund balance of $3,413,950 an increase of $1,226,320 from the prior year. Of this
amount, $1,176,019 (35%) is considered unreserved fund balance however; $28,814 is
designated for specific purposes; (1) Community Improvement Beautification (CIB) Fund
and (2) library donations designated for improvements. The balance, $1,176,019 is
undesignated and available for spending at the Town's discretion however it is
recommended that these funds be maintained at this level in the event of an emergency
such as a hurricane. The remainder of fund balance ($2,209,117) is reserved to indicate
that it is not available for new spending because it has already been committed (1) to
liquidate contracts and purchase orders of the prior period ($130,859), (2) for inventories
and prepaid expenses ($278,598), (3) for capital projects {$224,560), (4) to cover the
cash deficit in the pooled cash of the Marina Fund ($1,575,000).

As a measure of the General Fund's liquidity, it may be useful to compare both
unreserved fund balance and total fund balance to total fund expenditures. Unreserved
fund balance represents 12 percent (approximately 45 days) of total general fund
expenditures, while total fund balance represents 35 percent of that same amount. A
sound financial management policy would dictate that the unreserved, undesignated
fund balance be maintained between 10-25% of total expenditures. To that end, the
budget for Fiscal Year 2010 has been constructed to provide an increase in the fund
balance at the end of the year, absent significant revenue shortfalls or at least be able to
maintain the current level of fund balance in the event of revenue shortfalls.

General Fund Budgetary Highlights

The annual General Fund budget is adopted after two public hearings and approval of
the Town Commission. Any amendments that would exceed the original budget at the
fund level or would require funds to be transferred from contingency would require a
formal budget amendment requiring the adoption of a resolution by the Town
Commisston. The original General Fund appropriation was increased $1,428,150 by the
Town Commission during the year.

The budget was amended for new programs implemented after the adoption of the
budget, revenues and corresponding expenditures not anticipated during the budget
process. In addition, the Town financed several projects with a bank loan such as the
parking meter implementation and property and equipment acquisitions. These items
had no appropriations in the original budget.



Capital Asset and Debt Administration

Capital assets. The Town's investment in capital assets at September 30, 2009
amounts to $20,871,062 (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in capital
assets includes land, construction in progress, buildings, equipment and vehicles and
infrastructure. The Town's net capital assets at September 30, 2009 and 2008 are
summarized as follows:

Capital Assets
(Net of depreciation)

Gosernmental Business
Aclivilics Activitics Tolal

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Land S 26BR733 8 1778229 0§ 31157 8§ BLLIST 8§ 2769890 & 1,859,386
Construction in
progress 31170 60,352 309826 104,397 340,996 164,749
Buildings 3.422,038 3,491,797 - - 3.422,038 3,491,797
Equipment and
vehicles 496,663 493,420 1,376,354 630,131 1,873,019 1,123,551
Streets, roads, and
sidewalks 3.859,254 3,093,608 8,605,865 8.269.527 12,465,119 11,363,135
Total assels § 10497860 S 8917406 $ 10373202 § 9.085.212 $ 20871062 5 18002618

Capital projects completed during the current fiscal year included the following:

The final phase, the northern third, of the Lake Shore Park Renovation was
completed. This included construction of the northern portion of the seawall
which was funded with a grant through the Florida Inland Navigation District.
Park Avenue Alleyway improvements were completed.

Town Hall improvements.

A Vac-con truck was purchased for the Stormwater utility.

A trailer was purchased and instalied at the Ballfield complex to house
Recreation offices.

Fencing around the Ballfield complex was instailed with assistance from the
Community Development Block Grant Program.

Properties were purchased at 711 and 761 Foresteria Drive for future parking.

A property was purchased at 800 Park Avenue for an art gallery and studios.
Property purchased at 725 Foresteria Drive underwent demolition of existing
structures.

Boat ramp improvements were completed with funding from the Florida Boating
Improvement Program.

Dredging of the Marina basin was completed.

Construction of the south breakwater and improvements to the north breakwater
were completed.

Additional information on the Town's capital assets can be found in Note #5 on pages
43-44 of this report.
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Long-term debt. At the end of the current fiscal year, the Town had $16,442,084 in
outstanding long-term debt consisting of loans payable of $16,062,626, capital lease
obligations of $35,762 and compensated absences of $196,180. During the current
fiscal year, the Town's long-term debt obligations increased by $470,043. This is the
result of the net of a decrease in the amount of $1,323,486, due to scheduled annual
repayments and compensated leave taken, and an increase of $1,782,843 due to the
issuance of new debt and the implementation of the new leave policy approved by the
Commission. New debt was incurred for the purchase of properties within the CRA
district, installation of a fuel tank at Pubiic Works, the purchase of a Stormwater vehicle,
a roof replacement and the installation of parking meters along the waterfront. The
Town's outstanding debt is summarized as follows:

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008

Loans Payable § 10,050,675 § 9,553,519 6,011,951 5980412 $ 16,062,626  § 15,533,931
Capilal lease

obligations 28,702 63.034 7.060 91,793 35,762 154,827
Claims and

scttlements = = S = -
Compensated

absenses 149,905 117,715 46,275 28,738 196,180 146,453
Unamontized

premium - - 147,516 136.830 147.516 136.830

Total $10229.282  § 9.734.268 §6.212.802 § 6,237,773 $16.442.084 § 15.972.04]

Additional information on the Town's debt can be found in Note #7 on pages 45-54 of
this report.

Economic factors and Next Year's Budgets and Rates

The Town, along with all other surrounding communities, saw a decrease in the taxable
value of properties due to the economic decline experienced nationwide. Values
dropped 15% within the Town which equated to a loss of $820,000 of tax dollars. This
loss, combined with declining State shared revenues and other revenue decreases, left
the Town with a total loss of revenue in the amount of $1,035,000, 10% of the total
General Fund. Property taxes represent approximately 43% of the budgeted General
Fund revenues of the Town. The balance of revenue comes from sales and use taxes,
intergovernmental revenues, utility taxes, charges for Town services, licenses, permits
and fines.

For fiscal year 2009-2010 the Town Commission adopted a General Fund budget of
$9,724,755 compared with the final amended budget for fiscal year 2008-2009 in the
amount of $12,061,115. The operating millage rate remained the same as the prior fiscal
year, 8.5163 mills. Due to the declining values, the debt millage rate needed to be
increased to 1.40 mills to meet debt service requirements of the General Obligation
bonds of 1997 and 1998.
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The greatest impact on the General Fund expenditures is Public Safety which represents
50% of the total and uses 100% of the property tax revenue plus an additional $683,340
of other revenues of the Town. In an effort to off-set some of the impact on the General
Fund revenue, the Town Commission installed a parking meter system along the
waterfront areas of the Town to generate additional monies to fund services other of the
Town. Operational cuts across the board were implemented and employees had to take
furlough days to offset the loss of revenue.

Another factor in the economic outlook for the Town is its Community Redevelopment
Agency (CRA). Now that the Town is properly contributing its tax increment finance
revenue to the CRA, several infrastructure projects have been completed or are
underway. A new $330,000 Streetscape Project on Park Avenue from 7" to 10" Streets
has been completed. The alleyways south of Park Ave. from 7" to 10™ Streets and north
of Park Avenue from 10" Street to Northern Drive were refurbished for an estimated
amount of $1.2 million. Additionally the CRA has acquired properties adjacent to the
downtown corridor projected to be used for municipal parking. Another property
acquired at 800 Park Avenue is being renovated to house an art gallery and studios to
showcase area artists and bring focus to the Arts District downtown.

Requests for Information

This financial report is designed to provide our citizens, taxpayers, customers, investors
and creditors with a general overview of the Town's finances and to demonstrate the
Town's accountability. Questions conceming information provided in this report or
requests for additional financial information should be directed to:

Finance Department
Town of Lake Park
535 Park Avenue
Lake Park, FL 33403
(561) 881-3350
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TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA
Statement of Net Assets

September 30, 2009
Governmental Business-type
Activities Activities Total
Assets
Pooled cash and cash equivalents S 2,853,455 5 466,246 S 3,319,701
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 505,054 505,054
Investments 42,562 23,695 66,257
Accounts reccivable, net 447,140 109,202 550,342
Due from other governments 117,867 210,535 328402
Internal balances 1,563,048 (1,563,048)
Inventory 14,652 30,763 45415
Prepaid items 353,379 450 353,829
Unamortized bond costs 91,293 91,293
Capital assels
Capital assets not being depreciated 2,719,903 390,983 3,110,886
Capiltal assets being depreciated, net of
accumulated depreciation 7,777,957 0,982.219 17,760,176
Total assets 16,395,017 9,742,338 26,137,355
Liabilities
Accounts payable 231,648 63,191 294 839
Accrued expenses 62,593 15,185 71,7178
Accrued interest payable 71,959 92,862 164,821
Unearned revenue 319,043 56,140 375,183
Deposits 1,300 32,449 33,749
Noncurrent liabilities:
Due within one year 730,050 230,525 960,575
Due in more than one year 9,499,232 5,982,277 15,481,509
Total liabilities 10,915,825 6,472,629 17,388,454
Net Assets
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 2,062,366 4,297,968 6,360,334
Restricted for:
Debt service 96,090 96,090
Unrestricted 3,320,736 {1.028,259) 2.292.477
Total net assets S 5479.192  § 3,269,709 § 8,748,901

See notes to the financial statements.
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TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA
Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended September 30, 2009

Charges for

Functions/Programs Expenses Activities
Government:
Governmental activities
General government 5 265309 § 43,756
Public safety 5,421,845 775,124
Physical environment 319,993
Transportation 659,113
Culture and recreation 1,242,156 58,785
Interest on long-tenm debt 420,671
Total governmental activities 10,720,087 877,665

Business-type activities

Marina 1,734,561 1,017,094
Sanitation 1,430,694 1,401,682
Stormwater 208,668 455,587
Total business-type activities 3,373,923 2,874,363
Total 5  14.094.010 S 3,752,028




Program Revenues

Net Expense (Revenue) and

Operating Capital Changes in Net Assets
Grants and Grants and Governmental Business-type
Contributions Contributions Activities Activities Total
) 5 5 (2,612,553} S (2,612,553)
4,295 (4,642,426) (4,642,426)
{319,993) (319,993)
22,903 (636,210) (636,210)
11,639 160,597 (1,011,135 (1,011,135
(420,671) {420,671}
11,639 187,795 (9.642,98%) (9,642,988)
110.276 (607,191} (607,191
(29.012) (29,012)
95,755 342,674 342,674
206,031 (293,529) (293,529)
3 11,639 8 393,826 (9,642 ,988) (293,529 (9,936,517
General Revenues:
Taxes:
Property taxes 6.827,668 6,827,668
Franchisc fees 603,269 603,269
Utility service taxes 690,743 690,743
Local option gas taxes 236,037 236,037
Communication services taxes 539,808 539,808
Unrestricted intergovernmental shared revenues 893,510 893,510
Miscellancous revenues 102,096 102,096
Investment earnings 54,121 7,100 61,221
Transfers 212,554 (212,554}

Total general revenues and transfers 10,159,806 (205,454) 9,954,352
Change in net agsets 516,818 {498,983) 17,835
Net assets, beginning of year 4,962,374 3,768,692 8,731,066
Net assets, end of year S 5,479,192 § 3.269.709 8,748,901

See notes to the financial statements.
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TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA
Balance Sheet
Governmental Funds

September 30, 2009
Major Governmental Funds Nonmajor Total
CRA Governmental Governmental
General Fund Funds Funds
Assels
Pooled cash and cash equivaienis S 1.608.170 $ 1,133.995 S 108,027 5  2.850.192
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 224,560 280,494 505,054
Investments 29,845 34 9,286 42,562
Aceounts receivable, net 251,667 195473 447,140
Due from other governments 96,410 663 20,792 117.867
Due from other [unds 1,117,690 1,184,049 19,264 2,321,003
Advances to other funds 1,575,000 102,730 1,677,730
Inventory 14,652 14,652
Prepaid items 263,946 21,977 285,923
Total assets 5 5,181,940 § 2,727 341 $ 352842 3 8,262,123
Liabilities and fund balances
Liabilities
Accounts payable $ 160,965 $ 66,497 $ 4186 § 231,648
Accrued items 57,215 3324 2,054 62,593
Deferred revenue 261,731 100 57.212 319,043
Due to other funds 1,184,049 934,049 168,641 2,286,739
Advance from other funds 102,730 102,730
Deposits 1.300 1,300
Total habilities 1,767,990 1,003,970 232,093 3,004,053
Fund balances
Reserved (or/reported in:
Inventeries and prepaids 278,598 21,977 300,575
Encumbrances 130,959 148,737 279,696
Advances 10 other funds 1,575,000 102,730 1,677,730
Debt service/debt service fund 96.090 96,090
Capiltal projecis 224,560 268,759 493,319
Unreserved
Designated for community improvement 6.924 6,924
Designated for library improvements 21,890 21,890
Undesignated, reported in
CGeneral fund 1,176,019 1,176,019
Special revenue lunds 1.181.168 {24,975) 1,156,193
Capital projects funds 49,634 49.634
Total fund balances 3,413,950 1,723,371 120,749 5,258,070
Total liabilitics and fund balances $ 5,181,940 $ 2,727,341 5 3527842 5 8,262,123

See notes to the financial statements.
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TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA
Reconciliation of the Balance Sheet — Governmental Funds
to the Statement of Net Assets
Governmental Funds
September 30, 2009

Total Fund Balances - Governmental Funds 5 5,258,070

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net
assets are different because:

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not financial
resources and therefore are not reported in the governmental funds:

Governmental capital assets $ 16,118,255
Less accumulated depreciation (5,620,395) 10,497,860

Long-term liabilities. including bonds payable, are not due and payable in
the current period and therefore are not reported in the governmental

funds,
Accrued interest payable on long-term debt (71,959
Compensated absences (149,905)
Loans payable (4,721,352)
General obligation bonds (5,329,323)
Capital leases (28,702) (10,301.241)

Intemnal service funds are used by management io charge costs of
certain activities to individual funds. The assets and liabilities of
internal service funds are included in governmental activities in the

staternent of net assels. 24,503
Net assets of governmental activities S 5479192

Sce notes to the financial statements.
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Revenues
Taxes
Licenses and permits
Intergovernmental
Charges for services
Fines and forfeitures
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures
Current
General government
Public safety
Physical environment
Transportation
Culture and recreation
Capital outlay
Debt service
Principal
Interest charges
Other debt service charges
Total expenditures

Excess (deficiency) of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in
Transfer out
Loan proceeds

Total other financing sources (uses)

Net change in fund balances
Fund balances

Beginning of year
End of year

TOWN OF LAKE PARK
Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Governmental Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2009

Major Governmental Funds Nonmajor Total
CRA Governmental  Governmental

General Fund Funds Funds
§ 7,080,150 N 745,061 $  7,825.211
529,487 520,487
1,377.775 306439 514,049 2,198,263
293,756 293,756
213,105 213,105
170.731 6,901 6,749 184,381
9,665,004 313,340 1,265,859 11,244,203
1,656,551 701,077 3,768 2,361,396
5,413,894 5,413,804
287,322 287,322
335,640 217,752 553,392
1,081,416 5,991 1,087,407
255,677 1,931,430 182,815 2,369,922
235,455 511,170 746,625
135,822 261,848 397,670
4,201 14,249 1,000 19,450
9,405,978 2,646,756 1,184,344 13,237,078
259,026 {2,333,416) 81,515 (1,992,875)
576,504 773,506 42,703 1,392,713
{818,659 (286.500) {75,000) (1,180,159
1,209,449 1,209,449
967,294 487,006 (32,297) 1,422,003
1,226,320 (1,846,419 49,218 (570,872)
2,187,630 3,569,781 71,531 5,828,942
§ 3413950 1,723,371 $ 120,749 & 5258070

See notes to the financial statements.
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TOWN OF LAKE PARK
Reconciliation of the Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund
Balances of the Governmental Funds to the Statement of Activities
For the Year Ended September 30, 2009

Net change in fund balances - total governmental funds $ {570.872)

Amounts reperted [or goverranental activities in the statement of
activilies are difTerenl because:

Govermmental funds repont capital outlays as expenditures.
However, in the slatement of activities, the cost of those
assets is depreciated over their estimated useful lives

Expenditures for capital assets § 2,369,922
Less: current year depreciation {740,830) 1,629,092

Gains and losses on disposal of capital assets are reported in the slatement

of activities, whereas in the governimenial funds the proceeds from the sale

increases linancial resources, The difference is the net book value of the

assets retired. {4%,638)

Governmental Funds report revenues when eamned and

available. However, in the Stalement of Activities, revenues are

recognized when ecamed, repardless of availability. {9,100y
Urban Forestry Grant

The repayment (issuance) of long-term debt consumes (provides) the current financial
resources of governmental funds. However, these transactions do not
have any effect on net assets of the governmental activities.

Long term debi repayments;

General obligation bonds 506,708
Loans payable 205,585
Capital lease obligations 34,332
Long term debt issuances:
Loans payahle (1.209.449) {462,824)

Some expenses reported in the statement of activities do not require
the use of current financial resources and therefore are nol reported
as expenditures in governmental funds,

Change in settlement claims

Change in compensated absences (32,190}
Change in accrued inlerest {3,551) {35.741)

Internal service funds are used by management to charge the cosis
of certain activities to individual funds.

Nel income allocable (0 govermmental activities 14,901
Change in net assets ol governmental activities 3 516,818

See notes to the financial statements.
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TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA

Statement of Net Assets
Proprietary Funds
September 30, 2009
Governmental
Major Enterprise Funds Nonmajor Total Activities
Marina Sanitation Enterprise Enterprise Internal
Fund Fund Fund Funds Service Fund
Assels
Current assels
Pooled cash and cash equivalents $ 5 412706 % 53,540 S 466,246 s 3.263
Investments 23,695 21,695
Accounis receivable, net 21,280 87.922 109,202
Due from other governments 108,140 3,783 98.612 210,535
Prepaid expenses 450 450 67,456
Inventory 30,762 30.763
Total currenl assets 160,633 528.106 152,152 840,891 70,719
Noncurrenl assets
Unamortized bond issue costs 91,293 91,293
Capilal assets not being depreciated 132,717 64,157 194,109 390983
Capital assets net of accumuloted depreciation 8,587,380 1,142,332 252,507 9,982,219
Total noncurrent assels 3.811,390 1206489 446,616 10,464,495
Tolal assets 8,972,023 1.734.595 398,768 11.305,386 70.719
Liabilities
Current liabilities
Accounts payable 42,273 19.316 1.602 63,191
Accrued payroll and payroll laxes 3,564 10,268 1,353 15,185
Deferred revenue 56,140 56,140
Due 10 other funds 19,264 19,264 15,000
Advance from other funds 1,575,000 [.575,000
Deposits payable - slip rentals 32,449 32,449
Accrued interesl payable 90,854 2,008 92,862
Compensaled absences payable, current portion 2,527 9,524 379 12,430
Capital lease obligations payable, current portion 4,657 4,657
Bonds payable, current maturities 121,538 91,900 213,438
Tolal current liabilities 1,943,609 135,665 5.342 2.084.616 15,000
Long-term liabilities
Compensated absences payable, less current portion 10,109 22,222 1.514 33,845
Capital lease obligations payable, less current portion 2,403 2,403
Bonds payahle, net of unamontized premium
and currenl maturilies 5,167,839 512.639 265,551 5.946.029
Total long-term liabilities 5,177.948 537.264 267,065 5,982,277
Total liabilities 7,121,557 672,929 272,407 8.066.493 15.000
Nel assels
Invesled in capital assets, net of related debt 3,522,013 594,890 181,065 4,297,968
Unrestricted [1.671,547) 466,776 145,296 {1,059.475) 55,719
Total net assets 3 1,850.466 3 1.061.666 5 326,301 3,238,493 3 55,719
Adjustment to reflect consolidation of internal service fund activities 31.216
Net assels of bustness-type aclivities $ 3,269,709

See notes to the financial statements.
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TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA

Statement of Revenues, Expenses, and Changes in Fund Net Assets

Proprietary Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2009

Governmental
Major Enterprise Funds Nonmajor Total Activities
Marina Sanitation Enterprise Enterprise Internal
Fund Fund Fund Funds Service Fund
Operating revenue
Charges tor services $ 1,014,948 $ 1,394,445 § 455,587 5 2,864,980 $ 391954
Miscellaneous 2.146 7.237 9,383 5,117
Total operating revenues 1,017,094 1,401,682 455,587 2,874,363 397.071
Operating expenses
Personal services 259,479 546,511 42,797 848,787
Operating expenses 770,433 474,203 125,228 1,369,864 359.818
Depreciation 454,922 393,858 35,703 884,483
Total operating expenses 1,484,834 1.414,572 203,728 3,103,134 359,818
Operating income (loss) (467.,740) {12,890) 251.859 (228,771) 37,253
Nonoperating revenues {(expenses)
Amortization 4,073) (4,050} (8.123)
Interest revenue 1,354 4,021 1,725 7,100
Interest expense {256,830} (26.180) (2,008) {285,018}
Tolal nenoperating revenues {expenses) (259.549) (22.159) (4,333) (286,041)
Income (loss} before capital contributions {727,289) {35,049} 247,526 (514,812)
Capital contribulions 110,276 95,755 206,031
Transfers in (out) 19,370 (215,004) (16,920) (212,554)
Change in net assets (597.643) (250,053) 326,361 (521,335) 37,253
Net assets - beginning of year 2.448.109 1.311.719 3,759,828 18.466
Net assets - ending 5 1850466 S 1,061,666 5 326,361 5 3,238493 § 55.719
Change in net assets 5 (521,335
Adjustment to reflect consolidation of intemal service fund activities 22,352

Change in net asscts of business-type activilies

See notes to the financial stalements.
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TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA
Statement of Cash Flows
Proprictary Funds
For the Year Ended September 30, 2009

Governmental
Major Enterprise Funds N 11 Total Activities
Marina Sanitation Enterprise Enterprise T Intermal
Fund Fund Fund Funds Service Fund
Cash flows ffom operaling actosiues

Cash received [rom customers 5 1065255 § 1405397 S 452,730 § 2923382

Cash pand 10 suppliers (729.374) {469.052) (123.626) {1.322.980) (A48,782)

Cash paud to ernployees (257457 (546,616) (39.551 (843.624)

Payments from other lunds 570,346 (544.072) 26,274 352.045
Net cash provided (used) by vperating actnaries 648,770 (155,270 289,553 7R3.050 3.263
Cash [lows [rom noncapial fmancing aclnapes:

Operaumg transfers in (out) 19.370 (215.004) (16.924) (212554}

Net cash provided {used) by noncapital linancing activuies 19,370 {215.004) (1692()) (212,554)
Cash flows from capual and relaed Manemg activities:

Acquisition and construction ol property and equipment {793,265) (R96,88Y) (482,319 (2.072,473)

Loan proceeds 265,551 165,551

Capital contributions 2,136 2,136

Loan costs (4.050) (4,050)

Interest pad on debt (258.018) {26,180) (284, 198)

Principal repaviments on capual lease obhganon (84.730) (84,720)

Principal repayments on revenue bunds (135.197) (9%.K15) (234.012)

Nel cash provided (used) by capital and related (inancmg achs ks (1,184,340 {1.106.617) 1220,518%) 12,511,779}
Cash NMows irom mvestng activiics:
Sale of mvestmenis 19,421 19,421
Interest on mvestments 1.354 4,021 1,725 T.100
Net cash provided (used) by investing activiees 1.354 23442 1,715 26,521
Nel increase {decrease) w cash and cash equivalents (514,850 (1.453,452) 53,540 {1.914,762) 31,263
Cash and cash equivalents a1 beginnmg of year 514,850 LRG0, 158 2381008
Cash and cash equivakents a1 end ol vear 5 $ 412,706 S 33,540 § 466,246 § 3,26
Cash Mows from operating activities:
Operating mecome (koss) S ¢ervdm § (12.890) § 51859 §  (228.771) § 37.253
Adjustments to reconcile operating ncome (o

net cash provided by operalmg activities:

Depreciatan 454922 393858 5,703 HB4,4R3

Change m assets and fiabilitwes:

(Increase) decrease i accounis receivahle (4.972) 3,660 (1,312}
{Increase) decrease in accounts due from other governments 55 (2857 {2.802)
(Increase) decrease in mnventory 19,513 19,515
(Increase) decrease in prepaid expenses 1,332 1,322 11,036
Increase (decrease) n accounts payable 20,212 4,221 1.602 26,035
Increase {decrease) in accrued liabilities {4,817} (R.910} 1,353 (12,370
Increase {decrease} in deposits (3,001 (3.007)
Increase (decrease) in deferred revenue 56,140 56,140
Increase (decrease) in compensated absences 6,839 #.H05 1,843 17,537
Increase (decrease) in due 1o other funds 570,346 (544,072) 26,274 (45.026)
Toual adjusiments 1,116,510 {142.383) 37.694 1.011.821 (33,9900
Net cash provwded (used) by operating activites 5 648,770 § (155273 § 289,553 § 783,050 8 3,263
Noncash inesting, capital and [inancng actwities
Amortzation of bond issue costs $ 6,613 8§ $ 5 6,613 3
Amartizatwon of premium on bonds $ 10,686 § $ 5 10,686 8

See notes to the financial statemenis,
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TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA
Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets
Pension Trust Funds

September 30, 2009
Asscts
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments:

Closed end equity funds
Closed end taxable bond funds
Prepaid retirement benefits

Total assets

Net assets
Held in trust for pension benefits

See notes to the financial statements,
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Pension
Trust
Funds

3 85,733

892,045
354,203
10,622

1,342,603

$ 1,342,603




TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets

Pension Trust Funds

For the Year Ended September 30, 2009

Additions
Contributions
Employer

Investment mcome
Net decrease in fair value of investments
Interest and dividends
Net investment income

Total additions

Deductions
Retirement benefits
Administrative expenses
Total deductions

Change in net assets
Net assets held in trust for pension benefits

Net asscts - beginning of year
Net assets - end of year

See notes to the financial statements.
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Pension
Trust
Funds

(109,079)
34,911

(74,168)

(74,168)

166,881
11,302

178,183

(252,351)

1,594,954

$ 1,342,603




TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Reporting Entitv

The Town of Lake Park, Florida (the *Town™) was incorporated in 1923. The Town’s Charter
was approved by the Laws of Florida, Chapter 61-2375. The Town is governed by an elected
Mayor and Town Commission which appoints a Town Manager. The Town provides the
following services: public safety, recreation, sanitation, streets and roads, planning and zoning,
and gencral administrative services.

In accordance with Statement 14 of the Government Accounting Standards Board, the
underlying concept of the governmental financial reporting entity is that governmental
organizations are responsible to elected governing officials; therefore, financial reporting should
report on the elected officials' accountability for those organizations. Furthermore, the financial
statements of the reporting entity should allow users to distinguish between the primary
government and its component units, if any, by communicating information about the component
units and their relationships with the primary government. A component unit is a legally
separate organization for which the elected officials of the primary government are financially
accountable. Determining factors of financial accountability includes appointment of a voting
majority, imposition of will, financial benefit or burden on a primary government, or fiscal
dependency. In addition, component units can be other organizations for which the nature and
significance of their relationship with a primary government are such that exclusion would cause
the reporting entity's financial statements to be misleading or incomplete.

Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA)

Based on the application of these criteria, management has determined that the Lake Park
Community Redevelopment Agency (the “CRA”) is a dependent special district established by
the Town of Lake Park, Florida, under authority granted by Florida Statute 163, Section III. The
CRA is included in the Town’s financial reporting entity as a blended component unit reported in
a governmental (special revenue) fund, the Community Redevelopment Fund. The purpose of the
CRA is to promote and guide the physical and economic development of certain areas in the
Town of Lake Park. The CRA is a legally separate entity established by ordinance of the Lake
Park Town Commission. The governing body of the CRA consists of the Town Commission and
the Town handles the management and administration of the CRA’s financial matters. Separate
financial statements for the CRA are not prepared.
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TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

NOTE 1 - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

B. Government-wide and Fund Financial Statements

The government-wide financial statements (i.e., the statement of net assets and the statement of
activities) report information on all of the non-fiduciary activities of the Town. As a general
rule, the effect of interfund activitics has becn removed from these statements. An exception to
this rule is that interfund services provided and used are not climinated. Governmental activitics,
which are normally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues, are reported separately
from business-type activities, which rely to a significant extent on fees and charges for support.

The statement of activities demonstrates the degree to which the direct expenses of a given
function or segment is offset by program revenucs. Direct expenses are those that are clearly
identifiable with a specific function or segment. Program revenues include 1) charges to
customers or applicants who purchase, use, or directly benefit from goods, services, or privileges
provided by a given function or segment, and 2) grants and contributions that are restricted to
meeting the operational or capital requirements of a particular function or segment. Taxes and
other items not properly included among program revenues are reported instead as general
revenues.

Separate financial statements are provided for governmental funds, proprictary funds, and
fiduciary funds, even though the latter arc excluded from the government-wide financial
statements. Major individual governmental funds and the major individual enterprise funds are
reported as separate columns in the fund financial statements.

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation

The government-wide financial statements and proprictary fund financial statements are reported
using the accrual basis of accounting and the economic resources measurement focus. Fiduciary
funds use the accrual basis of accounting and, except for agency funds, the economic resources
measurement focus. Revenues are recorded when earned and expenses are recorded when a
liability is incurred, regardless of the timing of related cash flows. Property taxes are recognized
as revenues in the year for which they are levied. Grants and similar items are recognized as
revenue as soon as all eligibility requirements imposed by the provider have been met.

Governmental fund financial statements are reported using the current financial resources
measurement focus and the modified accrual basis of accounting. Revenues are recognized as
soon as they arc both measurable and available. Revenue is considered to be available when it is
collectible within the current period or soon enough thercafter to pay liabilities of the current
period. The Town considers revenue to be available if it is collected within ninety days of the
end of the current fiscal year, except for property taxes, for which the period is 60 days.
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TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation {Continued)

Unearned revenue consists primarily of grant funds and occupational licenses and other fees
collected in advance of the year to which they relate.

Expenditures arc generally recognized in the accounting period in which the fund liability is
incurred, except for principal and interest on gencral long-term debt, which is recognized when
due. Property taxes, intergovernmental revenue, franchise fees, charges for services and
investment income are all considered susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as
revenue in the current fiscal year. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and
available only when received in cash by the Town. Debt service expenditures, as well as
expenditures rclated to compensated absences and claims and judgments, are recorded only when
payment is duc.

The Town reports the following major povernmental funds:

General Fund

The General Fund is the primary operating fund and is used to account for all financial resources
applicable to the general operations of the Town except those required to be accounted for in
another fund.

CRA Fund

The CRA fund is a special revenue fund and is used to account for all financial resources
applicable to the promotion of the physical and economic development of certain areas in the
Town of Lake Park.

The Town reports the following major proprictary funds:

Marina Fund
This enterprise fund accounts for the operations of the Town’s municipal marina, which are
financed primarily by user charges.

Sanitation Fund
This enterprise fund accounts for the operations of the Town’s garbage and trash collection
services, which are financed primarily by user charges.

Additionally, the Town reports the following non-major funds:

Special Revenue Funds

The special revenue funds are used to account for the proceeds of specific revenue sources that
are legally restricted to expenditures for specified purposes. In addition to the CRA Fund, a
major governmental fund, the Town has one non-major special revenue find: the Streets and
Roads Fund.
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TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)

Debt Service Fund

This fund is used to account for resources accumulated and payments made for principal and
interest financed by the proceeds of the Town’s general obligation bond which are payable from
ad valorem taxes.

Capital Projects Funds
The Capital Projects Fund and Special Projects Fund are used to account for construction and
renovation projects.

Stormwater Utility Fund
The Stormwater Utility Fund is used to account for the charges and related expenses for the
Town’s stormwater drainage system.

Internal Service Fund

Internal scrvice finds account for operations that provide services to other departments on a cost
reimbursement basis. The Insurance Fund accounts for the Town's general liability and workers’
compensation insurance plans.

Fiduciary Funds

Fiduciary funds are used to account for asscts held on behalf of outside parties, including other
governments, or on behalf of other funds within the government. The pension trust funds are
held under the terms of a formal trust agreement. The fiduciary funds of the Town are as follows:

Retired Police Officers’ Pension Fund - This fund was established in 2004 1o receive and
invest Town contributions in a defined benefit pension plan and to disburse these monics
to Police retirees in accordance with the Pension Plan Ordinance.

Municipal Firemen's Pension Fund - This fund was established to receive and invest
Town, State and Fire employees’ contributions in a defined benefit pension plan and to
disburse these monies to Fire employees in accordance with the Pension Plan Ordinance.
This plan was terminated at September 30, 2007.

Private scctor standards of accounting and financial reporting issued prior to December 1, 1989,
generally are followed in both the government-wide and proprietary fund financial statements to
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TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continucd)

C. Measurement Focus, Basis of Accounting and Financial Statement Presentation (Continued)

Fiduciary Funds (Continued)

the extent that those standards do not conflict with or contradict guidance of GASB.
Governments also have the option of following subsequent private sector guidance for their
business-type activitics and enterprise funds, subject to this samec limitation. The Town has
clected not to follow subsequent private sector guidance.

As a general rule, the effect of interfund activity has been eliminated from the government-wide
financial statements. Exceptions to this general rule are charges between the government’s
enterprise funds and various other functions of the Town. Elimination of these charges would
distort the direct costs and program revenues reported for the various functions concerned.

Proprictary funds distinguish opcrating revenucs and expenses from non-operating items.
Operating revenues and expenses generally result from providing services and producing and
delivering goods in connection with a proprietary fund’s principal ongoing operations. The
principal operating revenues of the Town’s marina and sanitation enterprise funds are charges to
customers for sales and services. Operating expenses for the enterprise funds include the cost of
sales and services, administrative expenses and depreciation on capital assets. All revenues and
expenses not meeting this definition are reported as non-operating revenues and expenses.

When both restricted and unrestricted resources are available for use, it is the Town’s policy to
use restricted resources first, then unrestricted resources as they are needed.

D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity

Cash and Cash Equivalents

All short-term investments that are highly liquid are considered to be cash equivalents. Cash
equivalents are readily convertible to a known amount of cash, and at the day of purchase, have a
maturity date no longer than three months.

Investinents
Investments are reported at fair value, which is determined by using various third party pricing
sources. The Local Government Surplus Funds Trust is a “2a-7 like” pool and, thus, these

investments are valued using the pooled share price. Investments in “Florida PRIME” of the
Local Government Surplus Funds Trust are reported as cash and cash equivalents.
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TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

NOTE 1 — SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continucd)

D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Eguity {Continued)

Accounts Receivable

Accounts rcceivable represent amounts due from local businesses for franchise taxes, utility
taxes, delinquent property taxes and other charges in the General Fund, and solid waste disposal
fees and marina slip rentals in the Enterprise Funds. The Town does not require collateral for
accounts receivable. Accounts receivable are net of allowances for uncollectible accounts
determined based on the age of the individual receivable, with age categories ranging from 30
days past due to several years past due. Generally the allowance includes accounts over 90 days
past due. Accounts reccivable are written off on an individual basis in the year the Town deems
them uncollectible.

Interfund Transactions

Activity between funds that is representative of lending/borrowing arrangements outstanding at
the end of the fiscal year are referred 1o as either “due to/from other funds” (i.e., the current
portion of interfund loans). All other outstanding balances between funds are reported as
“advance to/advance from other funds.” Any residual balance outstanding betwcen the
governmental activities and business-type activities are reported in the government-wide
financial statements as internal balances.

Transfers and interfund balances totally within governmental activities and those that are totally
within business-type activities arc climinated and not presented in the government wide financial
statements. Transfers and balances between governmental and business-type activities are
presented in the government-wide financial statements.

Inventories

Inventories are valued at cost determined on a first-in, first-out basis. Inventories in the General
Fund consist of expendable supplies held for consumption. Inventories in the Marina Fund
consist of goods for sale to the public. The initial cost is recorded as an asset at the time the
individual inventory items are purchased and are charged against operations in the period when
used.

Prepaid Items/Expenses

Expenditures/expenses for insurance premiums and other administrative costs extending over
more than one accounting period are accounted for as prepaid items and allocated between
accounting periods. Prepaid items in governmental funds are accounted for using the
consumption method.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)

Capital Assets and Depreciation

Capital assets, which include property, plant, infrastructure, and equipment, are reported in the
applicable governmental or business-type activities column in the government-wide financial
statements. The Town defines capital assets as assets with an initial individual cost of $750 or
more and an estimated life in excess of one year. In accordance with GASB Statement No. 34,
the Town has elected not to record infrastructure assets purchased prior to October 1, 2003 in the
accompanying financial statements.

The accounting and reporting treatment applied to the capital assets associated with a fund are
determined by its measurement focus. General capital assets are assets of the Town as a whole.
When purchased, such assets are recorded as expenditures in the governmental funds and
capitalized as assets in the government-wide statement of net assets. General capital assets are
carried at historical cost. Where cost cannot be determined from the available records, estimated
histortcal cost has been used to record the estimated value of the assets. Assets acquired by gifts
or bequests are recorded at their fair value at the date of acquisition.

Capital assets of the enterprisc funds are capitalized in the fund. The valuation basis for
enterprise fund capital assets is the same as those used for general capital assets. Additionally,
net interest cost is capitalized on enterprise fund projects during the construction period.

Additions, improvements, and other capital outlay that significantly extend the useful life of an
asset are capitalized. Other costs incurred for repairs and maintenance are expensed as incurred.

Depreciation has been provided over the estimated useful lives using the straight-line method of
depreciation. The estimated lives for cach major class of depreciable fixed assets are as follows:

Buildings and infrastructure 30-50 years
Building improvements 7- 50 years
Equipment and vehicles 5 years
Docks and channels 20 years
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)

Deferred Revene

The government reports deferred revenue on its govemment wide statement of net assets,
proprictary statement of net assets, and governmental funds balance sheet. Deferred revenues
arisc when potential revenue does not meet both the "measurable” and "available" criteria for
recognition in the current period. Deferred revenues also arise when the government receives
resources before it has a legal claim to them, as when grant monies arc received prior to
incurring quatifying expenditures. In subsequent periods, when both revenue recognition criteria
arc met, or when the government has a legal claim to the resources, the liability for deferred
revenue is removed and revenue is recognized.

Deferred revenue in the General Fund is composed of grant funds that were not received within
ninety days of fiscal year end, and of business tax fees received prior to September 30, 2009 for
the fiscal year beginning October 1, 2009. Deferred revenue in the Special Projects Fund is
composed of unexpended grant funds.

Compensated Absences

Unused compensated absences are payable upon separation from service. Vacation is accrued as
a liability when the employee earns benefits. This means that the employee has rendered
services that give rise to a vacation liability and it is probable that the Town will compensate the
employee in some manner, e.g., in cash or paid time-off, now or upon termination or retirement.
The Town uses the vesting method in accruing sick leave liability. Under the vesting method,
the liability for sick leave is accrued for employees who are cligible to receive termination
payments upon separation. The Town’s policy is to allow employees to accumulate annual leave
to a maximum of 240 hours. At the time of retirement or termination all annual leave is payable
at 100% to the employee. Except for liabilities incurred by employment terminations, such
benefits are paid only when taken.

Compensated absences are accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary
financial statements. Benefits that were earned but not used during the current year were accrued
at employees’ pay rates in effect at September 30, 2009. A liability for these amounts is reported
in the governmental funds only if they have matured, for example, as a result of employee
resignations or retirements. For the governmental funds, compensated absences are liquidated by
the General Fund. The amount attributable to the business-type activities is charged to expense
with a corresponding liability established in the government-wide financial statements as well as
the Enterprise Fund. The Town does not contribute to post-employment benefits for employees.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (Continued)

D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equiry (Continued)

Long-Term Obligations

In the government-wide financial statements, and proprietary fund types in the fund financial
statements, long-term debt and other long-term obligations are reported as liabilities in the
applicable governmental activities, business-type activities, or proprictary fund type statement of
net assets. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as issuance costs, are deferred and amortized
over the life of the bonds using the straight line method. Unamortized debt issue costs are
inciuded in assets and unamortized bond premiums are presented as an addition to bonds
payable.

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund types recognize bond premiums and
discounts, as well as bond issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt
issued is reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported
as other financing sources, while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing
uses. Issuance costs, whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are
reported as debt service expenditures.

Net Assets

Equity in the government-widc statement of net assets and the proprictary funds is displayed in
three categories: 1) invested in capital asscts net of related debt, 2) net pension asset, 3)
restricted, and 4) unrestricted. Net asscts invested in capital asscts net of retated debt consist of
capital asscts reduced by accumulated depreciation and by any outstanding debt incurred to
acquire, construct, or improve those assets. Net pension assets represent pension contributions
above the actuarially required amount. Net assets are reported as restricted when there are legal
limitations imposed on their use by Town legislation or external restrictions by other
governments, creditors, or grantors. Unrestricted net assets consist of all net assets that do not
meet the definition of the other three components.

Fund Equity

In the fund financial statements, governmental funds report reservations of fund balance for
amounts that are not available for appropriation or are legally restricted by outside parties for use
for a specific purpose. Unreserved fund balance amounts that are reported as designations of
fund balances represent tentative plans for financial resource utilization in a future period. The
following is a description of the reserves used by the Town.
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NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES {Continued)

D. Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equity (Continued)

Fund Equity (Continued)
Reserved for debt service — Restricted for future debt service expenditures.

Reserved for inventories, prepaid items and deposits — Indicates that a portion of fund balance is
segregated since these items do not represent “available spendable resources.”

Reserved for encumbrances — Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts
and other commitments for the expenditure of funds arc recorded in order to reserve that portion
of the applicable appropriation, is employed as part of the budgetary accounting system in the
General Fund. Encumbrances outstanding at year end, if any, are reported as reservations of fund
balance since they do not constitute expenditures or liabilitics.

Reserved for advances to other funds — Advances to other funds are reserved from fund balance
since they are not available for appropriation and expenditure at the balance sheet date.

Use of Estimates

The financial statements and related disclosures are prepared in conformity with accounting
principles generally accepted in the United States. Management is required to make estimates
and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabilities, the disclosure of
contingent assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and revenue and expenses
during the period reported. These estimates include the collectibility of accounts recetvable, the
use and recoverability of inventory, the useful lives and impairment of tangible assets, and the
realization of net pension assets, among others. Estimates and assumptions are reviewed
periodically, and the effects of revisions are reflected in the financial statements in the period
they are determined to be necessary. Actual results could differ from those estimates.

Statement of Cash Flows
For purposes of the statement of cash flows, the Town considers all short-term investments that

are highly liquid to be cash cquivalents. Cash equivalents are readily convertible to a known
amount of cash, and at the day of purchase, have a maturity date no longer than three months.
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NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP. COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY

A. Budeetary Data

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management control device during the year for
the General Fund and the enterprise funds. All budgets are legally enacted. The annual
appropriated budget for the General Fund is adopted on a basis consistent with generally
accepted accounting principles, except that for budgetary purposes, revenue includes proceeds
from debt issuances, transfers from other funds, and proceeds from the sale of capital assets, and
expenditures include encumbrances and transfers to other funds within cach governmental
function. Except for budgeting capital expenditures and not budgeting for depreciation, the
annual appropriated budgets for the enterprise funds are adopted on a basis consistent with
generally accepted accounting principles. For budgeting purposes, current year encumbrances
are not treated as expenditures. In 2009, the other funds with legally adopted budgets include the
Community Redevelopment Fund, Streets and Roads Funds, Debt Service Fund, Insurance Fund,
Marina Fund, and Sanitation fund.

The procedures for establishing budgetary data are as follows:

* Prior to September 1, the Town Manager submits a proposed operating budget to the
Town Commission for the next fiscal year commencing the following October 1*, The
proposed budget includes expenditures and the means of financing them.

* Public hearings are conducted at the Town Hall to obtain taxpayer comments.

¢ The Town advises the Palm Beach County Tax Collector’s office of the proposed millage
rate, the rolled back millage rate and the day, time and place of the public hearing for
budget acceptance.

* A public hearing is held to obtain taxpayer input and to adopt the final budget and
millage rate.

¢ Upon completion of the public hearings and prior to October 1, a final operating budget
and related millage rates are legally enacted through the passage of an ordinance.
Estimated beginning fund balances are considered in the budgetary process. Effective for
fiscal year ending September 30, 2009, a final operating budget and related millage rates
are legally enacted through the passage of a resolution.

* Changes or amendments to the total budgeted expenditures of the Town or a department
must be approved by the Town Commission; however, changes within a department
which do not affect the total departmental expenditures may be approved by the Town
Manager. Accordingly, the legal level of control is at the department level.

* Allunencumbered balances lapse on September 30th.
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NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP. COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued)

A. Budgetary Data (Continued)

Budgeted amounts are as originally adopted, or as amended by appropriate action. During the
ycar several supplementary appropriations were necessary.

Encumbrance accounting is cmployed in governmental funds. Encumbrances (e.g. purchase
orders, contracts) outstanding at year end are reported as reservations of fund balances and do
not constitute expenditures or liabilities because the commitments will be re-appropriated and
honored during the subsequent year,

B. Property Taxes

Under Florida law, the assessment of all properties and the collection of all county, municipal
and school board property taxes are consolidated in the offices of the County Property Appraiser
and the County Tax Collector. All property is reassessed according to its fair market value on
January 1 of each year and each assessment roll is submitted to the State Department of Revenue
for review to determine if the assessment rolls meet all of the appropriate requirements of State
law. The laws of the State regulating tax assessment are also designed to assure a consistent
property valuation method statewide. State Statutes permit municipalities to levy property taxes
at a rate of up to 10 mills for operating purposes.

The tax levy of the Town is established by the Town Commission prior to October 1 of each year
during the budget process. The Palm Beach County Property Appraiser incorporates the Town's
millage into the total tax levy, which includes the County, County School Board, and special
district tax requirements. The millage rate assessed by the Town for the year ended
September 30, 2009, was 9.6663 ($9.6663 for cach $1,000 of assessed valuation), which includes
1.15 mills for debt service.

Taxcs may be paid less a 4% discount in November or at declining discounts each month through
the month of February. All unpaid taxes become delinquent on April 1 following the year in
which they are assessed. Delinquent taxes on real property bear interest at 18% per year. On or
prior to June 1 following the tax year, certificates are offered for sale for all delinquent taxes on
real property.

After sale, tax certificates bear interest at 18% per year or at any lower rate bid by the buyer.
The certificate holder may make application for a tax deed on any unredeemed tax certificate
after a period of two years. The County holds unsold certificates. Delinquent taxes on personal
property bear interest at 18% per year until the tax is satisfied either by seizure and sale of the
property or by the five-year statuie of limitations. At September 30, 2009, unpaid delinquent
taxes are not material and have not been recorded by the Town.
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NOTE 2 - STEWARDSHIP, COMPLIANCE, AND ACCOUNTABILITY (Continued)

C. Contractual and Legal Obligations to Pav

In prior years, the Town failed to make the required annual incremental tax contributions to the
Community Redevelopment Agency (CRA) since its inception, causing penalties and interest for
non-payment to accrue beginning in fiscal year ending September 30, 2000. (See Note 14.)
Annual payments of current and prior year obligations will continue to be paid by the General
Fund.

NOTE 3 — DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS

Deposits

As of September 30, 2009, the carrying amount of deposits (including fiduciary funds) was
$1,350,741 and the bank balances were $1,462,323. The Town also had $675 of petty cash. In
addition to insurance provided by the Federal Depository Insurance Corporation, deposits are
held in banking institutions approved by the State Treasurer of the State of Florida to hold public
funds. Under Florida Statutes Chapter 280, Florida Security for Public Deposits Act, the State
Treasurer requires all Florida qualified public depositories to deposit with the Treasurer or other
banking institution eligible collateral. In the event of failure of a qualified public depository, the
remaining public depositories would be responsible for covering any resulting losses. The
Town’s deposits at year end are considered insured for custodial credit risk purposes.

The Town maintains a pooled account for cash and cash equivalents that is available for use by
all funds. Each fund’s portion of the pooled account is displayed on the financial statements as
“Pooled cash and cash equivalents”. Interest income from pooled checking accounts is allocated
back to the General Fund. Investment income from the pooled SBA accounts is allocated to the
following funds based on each fund’s relative equity in the pool: General, CRA, Debt Service,
Capital Projects, and Sanitation.

Restricted cash

As September 30, 2009, the Town reported restricted cash for unexpended loan proceeds
restricted for capital projects.
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NOTE 3 - DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continucd)

Investments

As of September 30, 2009, the Town held the following investments:

Weighted
Credit Fair Average
Rating Value Maturity
State Board of Administration:
Florida PRIME AAA(m) $2,512,795 33 days
Fund B N/R 66,257 6.69 ycars
Money market funds N/R 46,277 N/A
Closed end bond funds N/R 354,203 N/A
Closed end equity funds N/R 892,045 N/A

Total investments $ 3,871,577

All the investments other than the State Board of Administration are held in the fiduciary funds.
The credit ratings are S&P’s.

Interest rate risk — Interest rate risk is the risk that changes in interest rates will adversely affect
the fair value of an investment. Generally, the longer the time to maturity, the greater the
exposure to interest rate risks. The Town limits its exposure to fair value losses resulting from
rising interest rates by structuring the investment portfolio so that the securities mature to meet
cash requirements for ongoing operations, thereby avoiding the need to sell securities on the
open market prior to maturity; and investing operating funds primarily in short-term securities,
money market mutual funds, or similar investment pools unless it is anticipated that long-term
securities can be held to maturity without jeopardizing the liquidity requirements. The
Retirement Funds do not have a formal investment policy that limits investment maturities as a
means of managing cxposure to fair value losses arising from increasing interest rates.

Custodial credit risk — For an investment, custodial credit is the risk that, in the event of the
failure of the counterparty, the Town will not be able to recover the value of its investments that
are in the possession of an outside party. At September 30, 2009 all investments were insured or
collateralized, except the Town’s two pension funds, in which the underlying securitics are held
by counterparty, or by its trust department or agent but not in the Town’s name and is uninsured
and unregistered. However, all securities are registered in the funds® names.

38



TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

NOTE 3 — DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Investments (Continued)

The money market and closed end funds arc owned by the Pension Trust Funds.

The Town is authorized to invest its funds as follows:

1.

8.

Interest-bearing checking or savings accounts in qualified public depositories, as defined
in Chapter 280, Florida Statutes;

Interest-bearing time deposits in qualified public depositories, as defined in Chapter 280,
Florida Statutes,

The Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund or any intergovernmental investment
pool authorized pursuant to the Florida Interlocal Cooperation Act, as provided in
Chapter 163, Florida Statutes;

Securitics and Exchange Commission registered money market funds with the highest
credit quality rating from a nationally recognized rating agency;

Direct obligations of the United States Treasury;
Federal agencies and instrumentalities;

Securities of, or interest in, any open-end or closed-end management-type investment
company or investment trust registered under the Investment Company Act of 1940, 15
U.S.C. sections 80a-1 et seq., as amended from time to time, provided that the portfolio
of such investment company or investment trust is limited to obligations of the United
States Government or any agency or instrumentality thereof and to repurchase
agreements fully collateralized by such United States Government obligations, and
provided that such investment company or investment trust takes delivery of such
collateral either directly or through an authorized custodian:

Other investments authorized by law or by ordinance by the Town.

The State Board of Administration is part of the Local Governments Surplus Funds Trust Fund
and is governed by Chapter 19-7 of the Florida Administrative Code. These rules provide
guidance and establish the general operating procedures for the administration of the Local
Governments Surplus Funds Trust Fund. Additionally, the Office of the Auditor General
performs the operational audit of the activities and investments of the State Board of
Administration. The Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund is not a registrant with the
Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC); however, the board has adopted operating
procedures consistent with the requirements for a 2a-7 fund.
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NOTE 3 — DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Investments (Continued)

On November 29, 2007, the State Board of Administration implemented a temporary freeze on
the assets held in the Pool due to an unprecedented amount of withdrawals from the Pool coupled
with the absence of market liquidity for certain securitics within the Pool. The significant
amount of withdrawals followed reports that the Pool held asset-backed commercial paper that
was subject to sub prime mortgage risk. On December 4, 2007, based on recommendations from
an outside financial advisor, the State Board of Administration restructured the Pool into two
separate pools. Pool A, (Local Government Surplus Funds Trust Fund Investment Pool)
consisted of all money market appropriate assets, which was approximately $12 billion or 86%
of Pool assets. Pool B, (Surplus Funds Trust Fund) consisted of assets that defaulted on a
payment, paid more slowly than expected, and/or had any significant credit and liquidity risk,
which was approximately $2 billion or 14% of Pool assets. At the time of the restructuring, all
current pool participants had their existing balances proportionately allocated into Pool A and
Pool B.

On August 3, 2009, the SBA announced “Florida PRIME” as the highly enhanced version of the
SBA’s prior Local Government Investment Pool. Pool A is now referred to as Florida PRIME,
and Pool B is referred to as Fund B. From December 2007 through September 2009, the SBA
transferred a total of $1.46 billion in liquid assets from Fund B to participants in Florida PRIME.
This amount represents approximately 73% of their original adjusted Fund B balances.

On September 30, 2009, Standard and Poor's Ratings Services assigned its "AAAM" principal
stability fund rating to Florida PRIME. Florida PRIME is considered a SEC 2a7-like fund, thus,
the account balance should also be considered its fair value. Fund B is not rated by any
nationally recognized rating agency.

Fund B is accounted for as a fluctuating NAV pool. The fair value factor for September 30, 2009
was ,34915069. The factor should be multiplied by the account balance in order to calculate the
fair value of the investment in Pool B.

The weighted average days to maturity (WAM) of Florida PRIME at September 30, 2009 was 33
days. A portfolio’s WAM reflects the average maturity in days based on final maturity or reset
date, in the case of floating rate instruments. WAM measures the sensitivity of Florida PRIME to
interest rate changes.
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NOTE 3 — DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Investments (Continued)

The weighted average life (WAL) of Fund B at Sepiember 30, 2009 was 6.69 years. A
portfolio’s WAL is the dollar weighted average length of time until sccurities held reach
maturity. WAL is based on legal final maturity dates for Fund B as of September 30, 2009.

As of September 30, 2009, the Town of Lake Park had $2,512,795 invested in Florida PRIME.
The cost basis of Fund B as of September 30, 2009 was $120,654 and the fair value and adjusted
book value was $66,257. Additional information regarding the Local Government Surplus Funds
Trust Fund may be obtained from the State Board of Administration.

Investments of the Fire and Police Retirement Fund can consist of the following:

1.

Time or savings accounts of a national bank, a state bank insured by the Bank Insurance
Fund, or a savings, building, and loan association insured by the Saving Insurance
Association Insurance Fund which is administered by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation or a state or federal chartered credit union whose share accounts are insured
by the National Credit Union Share Insurance Fund.

Obligations issued by the United States Government or obligations guaranteed as to
principal and interest by the United States Government or by an agency of the United
States Government.

Stocks, bonds or other evidence of indebtedness issued or guaranteed by a corporation
organized under the laws of the United States or the District of Columbia, provided that
the corporation is listed on one or more of the recognized national exchanges or on the
National Market System of the NASDAQ stock market. Bonds or other evidence of
indebtedness must hold a rating in one of the highest classifications by a major rating
service.

a. Investments in equities shall not exceed 70% of the Pension Fund’s total assets at
cost.

b. Not more than then (5) percent of the Pension Fund’s assets shall be invested in
the common stock or capital stock of any one issuing company, nor shall the
aggregate investment in any one issuing company excced (5) percent of the
outstanding capital stock of that company.

¢. Not more than five (5) percent of the Fund’s fixed income portfolio (at cost) shall
be invested in the securitics of any single corporate issuer. This limitation does
not include issues of any U.S. government agency.
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NOTE 3 — DEPOSITS AND INVESTMENTS (Continued)

Investments (Continued)

4. Commingled stock, bond, real estate or money market funds whose investments are
restricted to securities meeting the above criteria.

5. Foreign securities, provided they do not exceed 10% of the Pension Fund’s assets at cost.

6. Real estate through a sccurity listed on one or more of the recognized national cxchanges
or other unit investment trust with shares redecemable on demand, provided the holdings
do not exceed 10% of the Pension Fund’s assets at cost.

A reconciliation of deposit and investments as shown on the statement of net assets and
statement of fiduciary net assets for the Town is as follows:

By Category:
Deposits $ 1,350,741
Petty cash 675
Investments 3,871,577
Total deposits and investments $ 5,222,993
Presented in the statement of net assets
Governmental activities
Cash and cash cquivalents $ 2,853,455
Restricted cash and cash equivalents 505,054
Investments 42,562
Business-type activities
Cash and cash equivalents 466,246
Investments 23,695
Total statements of net assets 3,891,012
Presented in the statement of fiduciary net assets
Pension trust funds
Cash and cash equivalents 85,733
Investments 1,246,248
Total fiduciary funds 1,331,981
Total deposits and investments $5.222,993
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NOTE 4 — RECEIVABLES

Receivables at September 30, 2009, were as follows:

Nonmajor
General Governmental Marina Sanitation
Fund Funds Fund Fund Total
Accounts
receivable 3 57,172 3 195,473 § 54,876 $ 91,551 $ 399,072
Accrued
receivables 194,495 1,278 195,773
Total receivables 251,667 195,473 54,876 02,829 594,845
Less allowance
for uncollectible
accounts (33,596) (4,907) (38,503)
Accounts
receivable, net $ 251,667 $ 195473 F 21,280 3 87,922 3 556,342
NOTE 5 — CAPITAL ASSETS
Capital Assets activity for the year ended September 30, 2009, was as follows:
Primary Government
Beginning Ending
Governmental activities: Balance Additions Deletions Balance
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ 1,778.229 b 910,504 3 $ 2,688,733
Construction in progress 60,352 31,170 (60,352) 31,170
Capital assets being depreciated:
Buildings 7,100,119 110,282 7,210,401
Improvements 3,313,274 1,199,118 (57.349}) 4,455,043
Machinery and equipment 1,553,708 179.200 1,732,908
Total al historical cost; 13,805,682 2,430,274 {(117,701) 16,118,255
Less accumulaled depreciation for:
Buildings (3.608,322) (180,041) {3,788,363)
Improvements (219,666) (384,834 8.711 (595,789)
Machinery and equipiment (1,060,288) (175,955) (1,236,243)
Total accumulated depreciation {4,888,276) (740,830} 3,711 {(5,620,395)
Governmental activities capital
assets, nel § BO17406 $ 1.689444 3 (108,990 5 10,497,860
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NOTE 5 - CAPITAL ASSETS (Continued)

Depreciation expensc was charged 1o functions/programs of the primary government as follows:

Governmental activities:

General government § 443,931
Public safety 3,867
Physical environment 31,687
Transportation 108,581
Culture and recreation 152,764
Total depreciation expense governmental activities $ 740,830

The capital asset activity of business-type activitics for the year ended September 30, 2009 was

as follows:
Beginning Ending
Business-type activities: Balance Additions Deletions Balance
Capital assets not being depreciated:
Land $ B8LI157 $ b 3 B1,157
Construction in progress 104,397 841,866 (636,437) 309,826
Capital assets being depreciated:
Improvements 9,366,188 792,375 10,158,563
Machinery and equipment 1,760,966 1,174,669 2,935,635
Total at historical cost: 11,312,708 2,808,910 (636,437) 13,.485,181
Less accumulated depreciation for:
Improvements (1,096,661) (456,037) (1,552,698)
Machinery and equipment {1,130,835) (428,446) (1,559,281}
Total accumulated depreciation (2,227,496) (884,483) (3,111,979
Business-type activities capital
assets, net $ 9,085,212 $ 1,924 427 ¥ (636,437 $10,373,202
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NOTE 6 —- CONTRACT COMMITMENTS

Contracts awarded but not yet completed were as follows:

Construction Commitments:

Drainage improvements $ 85873
Other Town improvements 17,882
Subtotal, construction commitments 103,755

Consulting contracts 12,552

Total contract commitments $ 116,307

NOTE 7 — LONG-TERM LIABILITIES

Long-term liability activity for the year ended September 30, 2009, was as follows:

Balance Balance Amount due
October 1, September 30, within one
2008 Additions Reductions 2009 year

Governmental activities;
Bonds and loans

payable 3 9,553,519 $ 1,209,449 § 712,293 $10,050,675 $ 681,137
Capital lease

obligations 63,034 34,332 28,702 18,932
Compensated

absences payable 117,715 247.703 215,513 149,905 29,981
Total $ 9,734,268 $ 1.457.152 $ 962,138 $10,229,282 $ 730,050
Business-type activities:
Loans payable $ 5,980.412 3 265551 ¥ 234012 $ 6,011,951 3 213438
Capital lease

obligations 91,793 84,733 7,060 4,657
Compensated

absences payable 28,738 60,140 42,603 46,275 12,430
Total $ 6.100,943 $ 325691 ¥ 361,348 6,065,286 $ 230,525

Unamortized premium
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TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

NOTE 7 — LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)

Compensated absences for governmental activities are generally liquidated by the General Fund
and by the Marina Fund for business-type activities.

General Obligation Bonds: The debt service for general obligation bonds are payable from a
separate ad valorem tax levy for the debt service fund. The Town's outstanding governmental
activities general obligation bonds at September 30, 2009, are summarized as follows:

General Obligation Bonds, Series 1997: On March 11, 1997, the voters of the Town approved
the issuance of up to $9,806,000 general obligation bonds for the purpose of financing the
repair and redevelopment of the Town Hall, marina and other projects, and the construction
of a new fire/medical facility and library addition. On August 7, 1997, the Town issued
$4,800,000 Town of Lake Park, Florida, General Obligation Bonds, Series 1997. Principal
and interest at 4.96% arc payable in scmi-annual installments of $189,725 on January 1 and
July 1, commencing January 1, 1998, through maturity on July 1, 2017

The required debt scrvice payments on the Series 1997 bond at September 30, 2009 are as
follows:

Year Ending Total

September 30 Principal Interest Amount
2010 $ 259,823 $ 119,627 $ 379,450
2011 272,870 106,580 379,450
2012 286,572 92,878 379,450
2013 300,963 78,487 379,450
2014 316,076 63,374 379,450
2015 331,947 47,503 379,450
2016 348,616 30,834 379,450
2017 359.121 13,327 372.448

$2,475,988 $ 552,610 $3,028,598

General Obligation Bond, Series 1998: On November 17, 1998, the Town issued a
$5,000,000 Town of Lake Park, Florida, General Obligation Bond, Series 1998. This bond
represents the second and final series of the bonds approved by the voters of the Town in a
special referendum on March 11, 1997, for the purpose of financing the repair and
redevelopment of the Town Hall, marina and other projects, and the construction of a new
fire/medical facility and library addition. Principal and interest at 4.46% are payable in semi-
annual installments of $194,329 on January | and July 1, commencing July 1, 1999, through
maturity on July 1, 2018.
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NOTE 7 — LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)

General Obligation Bonds (Continued)

General Obligation Bond, Series 1998 (Continucd)

The required debt service payments on the Series 1998 bond at September 30, 2009 are as
follows:

Year Ending Total

September 30 Principal Interest Amount
2010 $ 264,313 $ 124344 ¥ 388,657
2011 276,233 112,424 388,657
2012 288,690 99,967 388,657
2013 301,710 86,947 388,657
2014 315,316 73,341 388,657
2015 329,536 59,121 388,657
2016 344,397 44 260 388,657
2017 359,928 28,729 388,657
2018 373,212 12,499 385,711

52,853,335  §641.632  §3,494967

Obligations Under Capital Lease: Capital Icase obligations are generally liquidated by the
General Fund. The Town’s outstanding governmental activities obligations under capital leasc at

September 30, 2009 are summarized as follows:

Equipment: Lease purchase agreements datcd March 20035 through September 2006 for
vehicles and other equipment with an original cost of $183,833 and accumulated depreciation
in an amount of $176,290. Minimum future lease payments under these agreements at
September 30, 2009, are as follows:

Year Ending Total
September 30 Principal Interest Amount
2010 $ 18,932 $ 1,033 $ 19,965
2011 9.770 210 9.980
3 28,702 $ 1,243 $ 29,945
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NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)

Revenue Bonds: The Town's outstanding business-type activities revenue bonds at September
30, 2009 are summarized as follows:

Revenue Bonds, Series 2003A: On May 12, 2003 the Town entered into an agreecment with
the Florida Municipal Loan Council (the “Council”) to borrow funds for the construction of
improvements at the Town’s marina. On May 16, 2003, the Council issued $4,810,000
Florida Municipal Loan Council Revenue Bonds, Series 2003A, dated May 1, 2003, to
finance the Town’s project and pay the costs of issuance for the bonds. The Town is required
to meet certain minimum financial amounts, debt limitations and reporting requirements.
Interest on the bonds is payable by the Town semi-annually on April 20 and October 20 and
principal payments are due on April 20. Debt service on the bonds s payable from the net
revenues of the marina operations.

The debt service requirements and interest rates of the bonds at September 30, 2009, are as
follows:

Year Ending Interest
September 30 Rate Principal Interest Total
2010 5.00 $ 95,000 $ 218,050 $ 313,050
2011 5.00 100,000 213,300 313,300
2012 5.00 105,000 208,300 313,300
2013 5.25 115,000 203,050 318,050
2014 5.25 120,000 197,012 317,012
2015 5.25 125,000 190,713 315,713
2016 5.25 130,000 184,150 314,150
2017 5.25 140,000 177,325 317,325
2018 5.25 145,000 169,975 314,975
2019 5.25 155,000 162,363 317,363
2020 5.25 160,000 154,225 314,225
2021 5.00 170,000 145,825 315,825
2022 5.00 180,000 137,325 317,325
2023 4.50 185,000 128,325 313,325
2024 4.50 195,000 120,000 315,000
2025 4,50 205,000 111,225 316,225
2026 5.00 215,000 102,000 317,000
2027 5.00 225,000 91,250 316,250
2028 5.00 235,000 80,000 315,000
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NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)

Revenue Bonds (Continued)

Revenue Bonds. Series 2003 A {Continued)

Year Ending Interest

September 30 Rate Principal Interest Total
2029 5.00 $ 245,000 $ 68,250 $ 313,250
2030 5.00 260,000 56,000 316,000
2031 5.00 275,000 43,000 318,000
2032 5.00 285,000 29,250 314,250
2033 5.00 300,000 15,000 315,000

$4,365,000  $3,205913  $7,570,913

Obligations Under Capital Lease: Obligations under capital lease of the Town’s business-type
activities at September 30, 2009, consisted of the following:

Vehicles: Lease purchase agreements dated June 2004 through March 2006 for sanitation
vehicles with an original cost of $482,749. The accumulated depreciation on the vehicles at
September 30, 2009 was $430,680. The capital lcase obligations are payable from the net
revenues of the Sanitation operations.

The minimum future lease payments due under this agreement at September 30, 2009, are as
follows:

Year Ending Total
September 30 Principal Interest Amount
2010 § 4,657 S 254 3 4911
2011 2.403 52 2,455
3 7,060 3 306 $ 7366
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NOTE 7 - LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)

Promissory Notes: The Town’s outstanding promissory notes payable at September 30, 2009 are
summarized as follows:

Promissary Note, Serics 2008A: On August 28, 2008, the Town executed a tax-exempt note in
the principal amount of 4,928,350 with the Bank of America. Loan proceeds are restricted to
finance the settlement of the pension obligation to the Town of Lake Park Firefighters’
Pension and for the construction of improvements in the marina. In addition, $2,420,000 of
the governmental loan proceeds were transferred to the CRA as a grant for the acquisition of
property and for the construction of improvements within the Town’s community
redevelopment arca in accordance with an interlocal agreement between the Town and the
CRA executed on August 20, 2008. (See Note 14.) The agreement does not require the CRA
to repay the grant from the Town; however, if the CRA makes a voluntary payment to the
Town, the Town will use the payment to pay debt service on the note.

Non-ad valorem revenues of the Town secure the promissory note. The Town is required to
meet certain minimum financial amounts, debt limitations and reporting requirements. The
continued exclusion of interest on the Tax-Exempt Note from gross income for federal income
tax purposes depends, in part, upon compliance with the arbitrage limitations imposed by
Sections 103(b)(2) and 148 of the Internal Revenue Code. Interest on the note is payable by
the Town scmi-annually on April 1 and October 1 and principal payments are due on April 1
with a final maturity date of April I, 2028. The note bears an annual interest rate of 3.67%,
which is subject to adjustment upon the occurrence of a Determination of Taxability.

Amounts currently outstanding on the note are as follows:

Purpose Amount

Governmental activities 3 3,468,866

Business-type activities 1,134.896
$4,603,762
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NOTE 7 — LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)

Promissory Notes (Continued)
Promissory Note, Scries 2008A (Continued)

Annual debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Ycar Ending Total
September 30 Principal Interest Amount
2010 § 150951 § 127,308 § 278,259
2011 156,491 121,768 278,259
2012 162,235 116,024 278,259
2013 168,188 110,071 278,259
2014 174,361 103,898 278,259
2015-2019 972,618 418,675 1,391,293
2020-2024 1,057,645 226,610 1,284,255
2025-2028 626,377 58,505 684,882
Total $ 3,468,866 $ 1,282,859 54,751,725

Business-type activities:

Year Ending Total
Scptember 30 Principal Interest Amount
2010 $ 111,693 $ 41,651 § 153,344
2011 115,793 37,551 153,344
2012 120,042 33,302 153,344
2013 124,448 28,896 153,344
2014 129,015 24,329 153,344
2015-2019 237,577 72,794 310,371
2020-2024 152,714 43,571 196,285
2025-2028 143,614 13,414 157,028
Total $ 1,134,896 $ 295,508 $ 1,430,404

Promissory Note, Serics 2008B: On August 28, 2008, the Town executed a note in the
principal amount of $309,550 with the Bank of America to finance the construction of
improvements in the marina and the purchase of recreation vehicles. Non-ad valorem
revenues of the Town securc the promissory note. The Town is required to meet certain
minimum financial amounts, debt limitations and reporting requirements. Interest on the note
is payable by the Town semi-annually on April 1 and October | and principal payments are
duc on April 1 with a final maturity date of April I, 2028. The notc bears an annual interest
rate of 6.78%.
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NOTE 7 — LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)

Promissory Notes (Continued)

Promissory Note, Series 2008B (Continued)

Amounts currently outstanding on the note are as follows:

Purpose Amount
Governmental activities $ 43,037
Business-type activities 246,504

$ 289,542

Annual debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Governmental Activities:

Year Ending Total
September 30 Principal Intcrest Amount
2010 £ 6,050 $§ 2918 $ 8,968
2011 6,460 2,508 8,968
2012 6,898 2,070 8,968
2013 7,366 1,602 8,968
2014 7,865 1,103 8,968
2015-2018 8,398 568 8,966
Total § 43,037 5 10,769 $§ 53,806

Business-type activities:

Year Ending Total
September 30 Principal Interest Amount
2010 5 6,745 § 16,713 § 23,458
2011 7,202 16,256 23,458
2012 7,691 15,767 23,458
2013 8,212 15,246 23,458
2014 8,769 14,689 23,458
2015-2019 53,611 63,679 117,290
2020-2024 74,421 42,869 117,290
2025-2028 79,853 13,978 93,831
Total $ 246,504 $ 199,197 $ 445,701
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NOTE 7 — LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)

Promissory Notes (Continued)

Promissory Note, Series 2009: On August 7, 2009, the Town executed a note in the principal
amount of $1,475,000 with the Bank of Amcrica to land acquisition and improvements, the
purchase of a sanitation truck, fuel tanks, parking meters, and make roof repairs. Non-ad
valorem revenues of the Town secure the promissory note. The Town is required to meet
certain minimum financial amounts, debt limitations and reporting requirements. Interest on
the note is payable by the Town semi-annually on April 1 and Ociober 1 and principal
payments arc due on April 1 with a final maturity date of April 1, 2024. The note bears an
annual interest rate of 5.11%.

Amounts currently outstanding on the note are as follows:

Purpose Amount

Governmental activities ¥ 1,209,449

Business-type activities 265,551
$ 1,475,000

Annual debt service requirements to maturity are as follows:

Governmental Activitics:

Year Ending Total
September 30 Principal Interest Amount
2010 3 § 40,172 § 40,172
2011 65,926 60,118 126,044
2012 78,566 56,427 134,993
2013 82,579 52,309 134,888
2014 86,801 47,982 134,783
2015-2019 365,900 180,643 546,543
2020-2024 430,046 82,582 512,628
2025 99,631 2,546 102,177
Total $ 1,209,449 § 522,979 $1,732,228
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NOTE 7 — LONG-TERM LIABILITIES (Continued)

Promissory Notes (Continued)

Promissory Notc, Series 2009 (Continued)

Business-type activitics:

Year Ending Total

September 30 Principal Interest Amount
2010 $ § 8820 $ 8,820
2011 46,366 12,385 58,751
2012 50,770 9,903 60,673
2013 53.365 7,243 60,608
2014 56,092 4,446 60,538

2015-2019 58,958 1,506 60,464
Total ¥ 265,551 $ 44,303 $ 309,854

Annual Maturities: The aggregate maturitics for all long-term debt of the Town with scheduled
maturities (excluding compensated absences and claims and settlements), arc as follows:

Year Ending Total
September 30 Principal Interest Amount
2010 § 918,164 § 700,890 § 1,619,054
2011 1,059,514 683,152 1,742,666
2012 1,106,464 634,638 1,741,102
2013 1,161,831 583,851 1,745,682
2014 1,214,295 530,174 1,744,469
2015-2019 4,838,819 1,858,664 6,697,483
2020-2024 2,604,826 1,081,332 3,686,158
2025-2029 2,074,475 541,168 2,615,643
2030-2033 1,120,000 143,250 1,263,250
Total $16,098,388 $ 6,757,119 $ 22,855,507
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NOTE 8 — DEFERRED COMPENSATION PLAN ASSETS

Employees of the Town may participate in a deferred compensation plan adopted under the
provisions of Internal Revenue Code Section 457 (Deferred Compensation Plans with Respect to
Service for State and Local Governments).

The deferred compensation plan is available to all employees of the Town. Under the plan,
employees may elect to defer a portion of their salarics and avoid paying taxes on the deferred
portion until the withdrawal date. The deferred compensation amount is not available for
withdrawal by employees until termination, retirement, death, or unforeseeable cmergency. A third
party administers the deferred compensation plan.

In 1999, the Town Adopted GASB-32, Accounting and Financial Reporting for Internal
Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans. The Town modified its Deferred
Compensation Plan to conform with the changes in the Internal Revenue Code brought about by the
Small Business Job Protection Act of 1996 (the “Act™). The Act requires that eligible deferred
compensation plans established and maintained by governmental employers be amended to provide
that all assets of the plan be held in trust, or under one or more appropriate annuity contracts or
custodial accounts, for the exclusive benefit of plan participants and their beneficiaries. As a result
of this change, these plan assets are no longer property of the Town and will no longer be subject
to the claims of thc Town’s gencral creditors.

Because the Town has little administrative involvement and does not perform the investing
function for funds in the Plan, the Town's activities do not meet the criteria for inclusion in the
fiduciary funds of a government.

NOTE 9 — PENSION PLANS

Defined Centribution Plan:

The General Employees Retirement Plan is a defined contribution pension plan established by
the Town to provide benefits at retirement for all current employees. Defined contribution plans
have terms that specify how contributions to an individual’s account are to be determined rather
than the amount of pension benefits the individual is to receive. In a defined contribution plan,
the pension benefits a participant will reccive depend only on the amount contributed to the
participant’s account, earnings on investments of thesc contributions, and forfeitures of other
participants’ benefits that will be allocated to the participant’s account. Plan assets are not
considered the Town’s assets; therefore, they are not included in the Town’s basic financial
statements. The Plan does not issue a stand alone financial report.

The Town is required to contribute 5% of the plan members’ annual compensation and matches
50% of the employees’ voluntary contributions under the deferred compensation plan, up to a
maximuni of 2.5% of participants’ annual compensation. Total contributions for the year ended
September 30, 2009 were $145,661 by the Town and $102,593 by the employees. Plan
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NOTE 9 — PENSION PLANS (Continued)

Defined Contribution Plan (Continued)

provisions and contribution requirements arc established and may be amended by the Town
Commission, which may also terminate the Plan at any time, at its sole discretion.

Vesting of the City's contributions in the 401(a) plan commences afier two years of service, with
20% vesting in year two and 20% cach year thereafter until fully vested afier six years. If an
employee terminates before becoming fully vested, forfeited amounts will be reallocated to
accounts of remaining participants as an additional employer contribution. Year of service
begins upon an eligible employee successfully completing one year of service and having
reached age 18 of service. A year of service is a computation period during which an employee
is credited with at least 1,000 hours of service, Plan provisions and contribution requirements
arc cstablished and may be amended by the City Council. The Town'’s finance director is the plan
administrator.

Defined Benefit Plans:

The Town administers two single employer defined benefit pension plans that cover no current
Town employees. The Retired Police Officers” Pension Fund (RPOPF) covers certain police
retirees and the Municipal Firemen’s Pension Fund (MFPF) is a terminated pension plan that
covered substantially all former full-time fire department employees. The plans are established
by the Town and administered by a separate board of trustees for each plan. The RPOPF and
MFPF plans are included as blended component units in the financial statements of the Town of
Lake Park as pension trust funds. The plans do not issue stand alone financial reports.

Basis of Accounting: All pension fund financial statements are prepared using the accrual basis
of accounting. Employer contributions are recognized when due and the employer has made a
formal commitment to provide the contributions. Benefits and refunds are recognized when due
and payable in accordance with the terms of cach plan.

Method Used to Value Investments: Plan investments are reported at fair value. Short-term
investments are reported at cost, which approximates fair value. Sccuritics traded on a national
or international exchange are valued at the last reported sales price at current exchange rates.

Administrative Expenses: Liability for future non-investment related expenses is the present
value of the future anticipated expenses over the remaining UAAL amortization period based on
expenses paid in the year preceding the valuation date.

Post-retirement Benefits: The Town offers continuation of health and life insurance benefits to
employees upon retirement. The cost of such benefits is paid by the retirees and the Town has no
further liability for post-retirement benefits.
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NOTE 9 — PENSION PLANS (Continued)

Defined Benefit Plans (Continued)

The Retired Police Officers ' Pension Fund

Effective October 1, 2001, the Palm Beach County Sheriff’s Office (PBSO) was contracted to
provide police services for the Town in connection with the transfer of Town police services to
the PBSO, the active plan members of the plan were terminated and eligible for a lump sum
payout. Effective November 20, 2002, thc Town terminated the Municipal Police Officers’
Retirement Trust Fund and distributed lump sum payouts to the vested participants. On October
15, 2003, the Town established the Retired Police Officers’ Pension Fund for the retirees covered
by the original plan and transferred substantially all remaining assets of the original plan to the
new plan in April 2004, Accordingly, at September 30, 2009 only five years of plan information
was available for the Retired Police Officers’ Pension Fund.

The plan is a substituted trust established on October 1, 2003 by Town Ordinance No. 13-2003 to
provide the retired members of the previous defined benefit pension plan with the monthly
retirement benefits that were accrued under the prior plan. Accordingly, the Retired Police
Officers’ Pension Fund covers only retirecs and has no active plan members or employees of the
Town that are eligible to participate and the provisions of the Retired Police Officers’ Pension
Fund as established by Town ordinance, do not address any provisions related to vesting,
eligibility for retirement, future retirement benefits, other benefits, or employee contributions.
The Town is required to contribute actuarially determined amounts sufficient to fund the plan.
An actuarial valuation report had not been performed and completed as of October 1, 2008. This
report would have contained the contribution requirements for the plan year ended September 30,
2009. Therefore, the Town did not make a contribution. At October 1, 2006, the date of the
latest actuarial valuation, the RPOPF included three service retirees and four disability retirecs.

Schedule of Employer Contributions

Annual
Year Ended Required Percentage
September 30 Contribution  Contributed
2005 $ 26,482 100%
2006 7,959 100%
2007 17,768 100%
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NOTE 9 — PENSION PLANS (Continued)

Defined Benefit Plans (Continued)

The Retired Police Officers’ Pension Fund (Continued)

Annual Pension Costs and Related Information: The significant actuarial assumptions used in the
most recent actuarial valuation of the Retircd Police Officers’ Pension Fund are summarized as
follows:

Valuation date October 1, 2006

Actuarial cost method Entry Age Normal
Actuarial Cost Method

Amortization method Level dollar amount - closed

Remaining amortization period 15 years

Asset valuation method Market

Actuarial assumptions:

Investment rate of return 8.0%
(Net of administrative expenses)

Projected salary increasc N/A

Post retirement COLA N/A

Three Year Trend Information

Actuarially Percentage Net
Determined of APC* Pension
Contribution Contributed Obligation

2005 $ 26,482 100%

2006 7,959 100

2007 17,768 100

* Annual Pension Cost from Town sources.

Municipal Firemen's Pension Fund

On October 1, 2001 the Palm Beach County Fire Rescue Department was contracted to provide
fire protection and emergency medical services for the Town. In connection with the transfer of
Town fire protection and emergency medical services to Palm Beach County Fire Rescue, the
active plan members of the Municipal Firemen’s Pension Fund were terminated and eligible for a
lump sum payout. There were no retirees under the plan at the time of termination. On June 29,
2002, the Municipal Firemen’s Pension Fund was terminated and the Board of Trustees of the
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NOTE 9 — PENSION PLANS (Continued)

Defined Benefit Plans (Continued)

The Retired Police Officers’ Pension Fund (Continued)

Municipal Firemen’s Pension Trust Fund (the “Board™) through the year ended September 30,
2007, distributed lump sum payouts to the vested participants and the remaining pro-rata
distributions according to the calculations performed by the actuary. At September 30, 2009 the
Municipal Firemen’s Pension Trust Fund is considercd a terminated pension plan and actuarial
information is not provided.

Generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) requires that financial statements for
individual pension plans be presented in the notes to the financial statements of the primary
government if separate, GAAP financial reports have not been issued. The individual pension
funds of the Town of Lake Park, Florida do not have scparatc GAAP reports issued and the
financial information for these is presented below.

Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets

September 30, 2009
Retired Police Municipal
Officers’ Firemen’s
Pension Pension
Fund Fund
ASSETS
Cash and cash cquivalents § 85733 $
Investments
Closed end equity funds 892,045
Closed end taxable bond funds 354,203
Receivables:
Contributions
Prepaid retirement benefits 10,622
Total assets 1,342,603
NET ASSETS held in trust for
pension benefits $ 1,342,603 b
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NOTE 9 - PENSION PLANS (Continued)

Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
For the Fiscal Year Ended September 30, 2009

Retired Police Municipal
Officers’ Firemen’s
Pension Pension
Fund Fund
ADDITIONS
Contributions
Employer $ hY
Investment income
Net decrease in fair value
of investments (109,079)
interest and dividends 34911
Net investment income (74.168)
Total additions {74.168)
DEDUCTIONS
Retirement benefits 166,881
Refunds of contributions
Administrative expenses 10,216 1,086
Total deductions 177,097 1,086
Changes in net assets (251,265) (1,086)
Net assets, beginning of year 1,593,868 1,086
Net assets, end of ycar $ 1,342,603 $

NOTE 10 - RESERVED FUND BALANCES

The Town has established reserves to account for that portion of fund balance that is not
appropriable for cxpenditure or is legally segregated for a specific future use. The reserves for
inventory, encumbrances, debt service, and advances to other funds are amounts that are not
appropriable for expenditure. The reserves for capital projects are funds that are legally
segregated for a specific future use.

60



TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

NOTE 11 - DEFICIT FUND EQUITY

At September 30, 2009 the following fund had a deficit in fund equity which will be eliminated
through future revenues:

Deficit
Fund Fund Equity
Streets and Roads Fund $ 24975

NOTE 12 — JOINTLY GOVERNED ORGANIZATION

The Town, through an interlocal agreement with certain other municipalities and Palm Beach
County, created the Scacoast Utility Authority (“Seacoast™ which provides water and sewer
service to the citizens of each of the participating municipalitics and a portion of Palm Beach
County. Seacoast’s governing board is comprised of one member from each participating entity.
Seacoast is an Independent Authority organized under the laws of the State of Florida, and the
Town has no participating equity ownership in Seacoast. The Town paid $67,400 to Seacoast
during the fiscal year for water and sewer service.

NOTE 13 — RISK MANAGEMENT

The Town is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts: theft of, damage to, and destruction
of assets; crrors and omissions; and natural disasters for which the Town carries commercial
insurance through the Florida League of Cities, Inc., a statewide commercial insurance program.
The policy for comprehensive property, casualty and liability insurance provides coverage with a
deductible of $5,000 for property and casualty and $25,000 for liability claims per occurrence,
with a combined annual cap of $§1 million. The Town does not retain any risk of loss under this

policy.

The Town has established a risk management program for workers® compensation where
premiums are paid from each department to the Florida League of Cities who fully insures all
claims to a statutory level. The Town does not retain any risk of loss under this policy. There
were no significant reductions in insurance coverage from the prior year. The amount of
insurance settlements has not cxceeded the Town’s insurance coverage in any of the prior three
fiscal years.

The Town currently reports all of its risk management activities in the Insurance Fund. Claims
expenditures and liabilitics are reported when it is probable that a loss has occurred and the
amount of the loss can be rcasonably estimated. These losses include an estimate of claims that
have been incurred but not reported.
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NOTE 13 — RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

Grants

Amounts received or receivable from grantor agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by
those agencies, principally the U.S. Department of Homeland Security and the State of Florida.
Any disallowed claims, including amounts already reccived, might constitute a liability of the
Town for the return of those funds.

The Town is a defendant in various lawsuits arising in the ordinary course of normal operations.
Although the ultimate outcome of some of these lawsuits cannot be determined at the present

time, it is the opinion of legal counsel that the likelihood of unfavorable outcome and the
amounts of potential losses cannot be reasonably determined for all claims at this time.

NOTE 14 — INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS

In governmental accounting, interfund loans arc reported as interfund receivables in lender funds
and interfund payables in borrower funds. There is no nct effect in the governmental-wide
financial statements. The current portion of the interfund loan is reported in the governmental
funds as Due to and Due from other funds and the non-current portion is reported as Advance to
and Advance from other funds. The composition of interfund balances at September 30, 2009, is
as follows:

Receivable Fund Payable Fund Due to/from Advance Total
CRA General Fund $1,184,049 $ 102,730 $1,286,779
General Fund Marina Fund 1,575,000 1,575,000
Non-major

governmental funds Marina Fund 19,264 19,264
General Fund CRA 934,049 934,049

Non-major

(General Fund governmental funds 168,641 168,641
General Fund Insurance Fund 15,000 15,000

At September 30, 2009, the General Fund owed the CRA Fund $1,286,779 for unpaid
incremental tax revenue from fiscal year 2000 to the present. (See Note 2.) The amount due to
the CRA from the General Fund includes outstanding principal of $640,019 and penalties and
interest of $646,760. The due to the General Fund from the CRA fund was for the purpose of
land acquisitions and improvements in the CRA.
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TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

NOTE 14 — INTERFUND RECEIVABLES, PAYABLES, AND TRANSFERS (Continued)

The advance from the General Fund to the Marina Fund resulted from a cash overdraft in the
Marina Fund’s pooled cash and cash equivalents account.

Interfund transfers during the year ended September 30, 2009 are as follows:

Fund Transfers in Transfers out
CRA Fund $773,506
General Fund $773,506
Nonmajor Government 16,920
Nonmajor Enterprise 16,920
Nonmajor Government 25,783
General Fund 25,783
General Fund 286,500
CRA Fund 286,500
General Fund 75,000
Nonmajor Government 75,000
General Fund 215,004
Sanitation Fund 215,004
Marina Fund 19,370
General Fund 19,370

The transfer of $773,506 from the General Fund to the CRA Fund included the following:
a. Transfer of $690,204 for the 2007 incremental tax obligation.
b. Transfer of $83,302 for interest for late payment of the incremental tax obligation. (See Note
2)

The transfers were also used to: reimburse the General Fund for shared administrative costs and
make payment in lieu of taxes,

NOTE 15 - RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS — ENTERPRISE FUNDS

The General Fund provides the other funds with various management services. Administrative
costs totaling $60,000 for the Marina fund, $80,000 for the Sanitation fund, $47.750 for the CRA
fund, and $32,100 for the Stormwater Utility fund were charged for 2009.

63



TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

NOTE 16 - NEW PRONOUNCEMENTS

The Town is required to implement Governmental Accounting Standards Board Statement 45
(GASB 45), Accounting and Financial Reporting by Employers for Postemployment Benefits
Other Than Pensions for the fiscal year ending September 30, 2010. Retirees of the Town pay an
amount cqual to the actual premium for health and life insurance charged by the carrier, but there
is an implied subsidy in the insurance premiums for retirees under because the premium charged
for these retirees is the same as the premium charged for active employees, who are younger than
retirees on average. This implied subsidy constitutes other postemployment benefits (OPEB)
under GASB 45. The impact of the implementation of GASB 45 will be determined by an
actuarial valuation, which has not been compieted.
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TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA
Required Supplemental Information
September 30, 2009

Retired Police Officers’ Pension Fund

Schedule of Funding Progress

Actuarial
Accrued UAAL as a
Actuarial Liability Unfunded Percentage
Actuarial Value of (AAL)- AAL Funded Covered of Covered
Valuation Assets Entry Age (UAAL) Ratio Payroll Payroll
Date (a) {b) (b-a) (a/b) (©) ((b-a)c)
10/01/03 8§ 2095114 § 2177473 S 82339 96.22% N/A N/A
10/01/04 1,924,445 2,156,800 232,355 89.23% N/A N/A
10/01/05 1,971,286 2,030,035 58,749 97.11% NIA N/A
10/01/06 1,919,359 2,061,642 142,283 93.10% N/A N/A
Schedule of Emplover and State Contributions
Fiscal Year Annual
Ended Required Actual State Percentage
September 30 Contribution Coniribution  Contribution  Contributed
2004 S 9,622  § 9622 S 100.0%
2005 26,482 26,482 100.0%
2006 7.959 7,959 100.0%
2007 17,768 17,768 100.0%
Note 1:  The Retired Police Officers’ Pension Fund was established on October 1, 2003, The
most recent actuarial valuation of the plan was at October 1, 2006. The fund is a
substituted trust established to provide retired members of the predecessor Town of
Lake Park Police Pension Plan with the monthly retirement bencefits that were
accrued under the former retirement plan. Accordingly, the plan includes only
services retirees and has no active members. and receives no state money.
Note2:  An actuarial valuation report had not been performed and completed as of October 1,

2007 or 2008. These reports would have contained the contribution requirements for the plan
year ended September 30, 2008 and 2009. Therefore, the Town did not make a contribution.
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TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA
Notes to the Trend Data
September 30, 2009

Retired Police
Officers' Pension

Fund
Contribution rates as of 9/30/07:
Town N/A
Plan Members N/A
Actuarially Determined Contribution 517,768
Contributions Made S17.768
Valuation date 10/01/06
Actuarial Cost Method Entry Age Normal
Actuarial Cost Method
Amortized Method Level dollar amount, closed
Remaining Amortization Period 15 Years
Assel Valuation Method Markel
Actuarial Assumption:
Investment rate of return 8%
(net of administralive expenses)

Projecled salary increase N/A
Post Retirement cost of
living adjustments N/A
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TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA
Budgetary Comparison Schedule -
General Fund
For the year ended September 30, 2009

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (NcEati\'e)
Revenues
Taxes
General property taxes $ 5,565,585 b 5,565,585 b 5,776,168 $ 210,583
Franchise laxes
Electricity 625,000 625,000 599,961 (25,039)
Gas 5.000 5,000 1,342 {3,658)
Solid Waste 16.000 16,000 [1.966 (4.034)
Dunkin' Donuts 5.000 5,000 (5,000)
Utility laxes
Electricity 575,000 575,000 556,670 (18,330)
Water 120,000 120,000 131,601 11,601
Gas 2,500 2,500 2,442 (58)
Total 1axes 6,914,085 6,914,085 7,080,150 166,065
Licenses and permits
Building permits 250,000 250,000 134,611 (115,389)
Alarm permits 5.000 5,000 15,355 10,355
Business tax receipts 350,000 350,000 327,063 (22,937
Occupational license applications 15,000 15,000 12,761 {2.239)
Cost recovery 36,700 36,677 (23)
Special event fees 550 550
Contractors fees 2,500 2,500 2,470 {30)
Total licenses and permits 622,500 659,200 520,487 (125,713)
Intergovernmental revenues
State shared revenues
Local government sales tax 655,500 655,500 558,085 (97,415)
Local communication services taxes 530,000 530,000 539 808 9,808
State revenue sharing 239,500 239,500 225,153 (14,347
Alcoholic beverage licenses 12,000 12,000 11,645 (355)
Motor fuel tax refund 3.500 3,500 8,410 4,910
County shared revenues
County occupation licenses 26,000 26,000 23.035 (2,965)
Grant revenues
State aid to libraries 15,200 15,200 11,639 (3,561)
Total intergovernmental revenues g 1,481,700 3 1,481,700 3 1,377,775 (103,925
(Continued)

See notes to the budgetary comparison schedules.
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TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA
Budgetary Comparison Schedule -

For the year ended September 30, 2009

Revenues (Continued)
Charges lor services
Administrative lees
Sanilation
CRA
Stormwaler utility
Marina
Plan review fees
Parks and recreation
Other charges for services
Tolal charges for services

Fines and forfeitures
Court fines
Code violations
Code viclalions - administrative cost
Parking violations
Alarm violations
Occupational license penalties
Library fines
Total fines and lorfeitures

Miscellaneous revenue
Interest earmnings
Interesi carnings - tax colleclor
Rent
Sale of surplus property
Sale of scrap material
Transfer from Street & Roads
Transfer from Stonmwater wtility
Transler from CRA
Transfer [rom Sanitation
Miscellaneous revenues

Total miscellaneous revenues

Balance brought forward
Loan proceeds

Total revenues

General Fund

Variance with

See notes to the budgetary comparison schedules.
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Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
$ £0.000 § 80,000 80,004 b 4
47,750 47,750 47.748 2)
32,100 32,100 32,100
60.000 60,000 60,000
15,000 15,000 11,414 (3.586)
62,285 62,285 55,447 {6,838)
5,500 5,500 7.043 1,543
302,635 302,635 293,756 (8.379)
25,000 25,000 17,378 (7,622)
50.000 147,100 149,978 2,878
20,000 20,000 28,174 8,174
5,000 5,000 830 {4.150)
6,000 6,000 5.575 (425)
10,000 10,000 9,196 (804)
1,800 1,800 1,954 154
117.800 214,900 213.105 (1,795)
240,000 240,000 30,562 (209.438)
17.000 17,000 27.587 10,587
38,020 38,020 44,663 6,643
5,000 5,000 {5.000)
250 250 (250}
75,000 75,000 75,000
61,725 61.725 61,725 -
286,500 286,500 286,500 -
215,000 215,000 215,000 -
5,750 9,450 21,559 12.109
044,245 947,945 762,596 (185,349)
250.000 331,200 (331.200)
1.209.450 1.209.449 (1)
h) 10,632,965 ) 12,061,115 11.466.318 3 (594,797)
{Conlinued)



(Continued)
Expenditures
General government
Lepislative
Personal services
Operating expenditures
Total legislative

Town manager
Personal services
Operating expenditures
Total town manager

Personnel
Personal services
Operating expenditures
Capital outlay

Total personnel

Town clerk
Personal services
Operating expenditures
Debi Service

Total town clerk

Finance
Personal services
Operating expenditures
Total finance

Legal
Operating expenditures
Total legal

Information technology
Personal services
Operating expenditures
Capital outlay
Contingency

Total information technology

Non-departmental
Operating expenditures
Debt service

Total non-departmental

Total general government

TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA
Budgetary Comparison Schedule -
General Fund
For the year ended September 30, 2009

Variance with
Final Budget

Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

b 51,545 b 51.745 b 51,732 $ 13
36,175 53,955 53,365 590
107.720 105.700 105,097 603
291,730 296,010 295,979 31
15.575 29,890 29.865 25
307.305 325,900 325,844 56
88,175 100,060 93,142 6,918
64,780 86,820 85,430 1,390
930 926 4
152.955 187,810 179,498 8,312
128,910 127,510 127,473 37
45,160 49,000 48,941 59
3,100 3,100 3,094 6
177,170 179.610 179,508 102
370,500 364,525 364,502 23
88,655 96,085 96,053 32
459,155 460,610 460,555 55
197,800 282,800 226,108 56,692
197,800 282,800 220,108 56,692
99,380 99,440 99,375 65
50,100 59.655 59,438 217
17,700 59,630 58,415 1.215
2,500 200 200
169,680 218,925 217,228 1,697
25,000 10,340 10,331 9
329,625 333,850 333,777 73
354,625 344.190 344,108 82
1,926,410 2,105,545 2.037.946 67.599
{Continued)

See notes to the budgetary comparison schedules,
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TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA
Budgetary Comparison Schedule -

nera
General Fund Variance with

For the year ended September 30, 2009 Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final A mounts {Negative)
Expenditures {Continued)
Public Safety
Law enforcement
Operating expenditures 3 2,687.020 $ 2,688.215 $ 2,688,202 3 13
Disaster
Opcrating expenditures 10,000 10,000 7.629 2,37
Capital outlay 5,465 5.450 15
Total disaster 10,000 15,465 13,079 2,386
Fire department
Operating expenditures 2,023,880 2,023,885 2,023,882 3
Community development
Personal services 445,180 463,165 463,126 39
Operating expenditures 165,850 226,230 226,179 51
Capital outlay 1,500
Total community development 612,530 689,395 689,305 90
Total public safety 5,333,430 5,416,960 5,414,468 2,492
Physical environment
Public works- admin
Personal services 179,665 119,485 106,751 12,734
Operating expenditures 23,275 26,370 21,010 5,360
Total Public works- admin 202,940 145,855 127,761 18,094
Publie works- ground maint.
Personal services 366,800 363,145 362,243 902
Operating expenditures 88,300 101,805 100,661 1,144
Capital outlay 55,000 50,735 47,090 3,645
Debt service 24,290 24,290 24,278 12
Total public works- ground maint. 534,390 539,975 334,272 5,703
Vehicle maintenance
Personal services 129.950 129.870 120,587 9,283
Operating expenditures 41,900 41,980 38,490 3,490
Capital outlay 60,000 59,671 329
Total vehicle maintenance 171,850 231.850 218,748 13,102
Total physical environment 509.180 917.680 880,781 36,899
Transportation
Facility maintenance
Personal services 151,715 131,725 123,717 8,008
Operating expenditures 198,425 217,015 211,543 5,472
Capital outlay 75.800 87,775 61,923 25,852
Debt service 4,220 4,220 4,214 6
Total facility maintenance 430,160 440,735 401,397 39,338

{Continued)

See notes to the budgetary comparison schedules.
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TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA
Budgetary Comparison Schedule -

ra
General Fund Variance with

For the year ended September 30, 2009 Fina! Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Expenditures (Continued)
Transportation (Continued)
Parking facilities
Operating expenditures i3 L) 7.400 5 7,368 $ 32
Capital outlay 116.150 116,124 26
Total parking facilities 123,550 123.492 58
Total transportation 430,160 564,285 324,889 39,396
Culture and recreation
Library
Personal services 291,720 287,990 267,047 20,943
Operating expenditures 63,025 95,534 83,747 11,787
Capital outlay 28,000 296 296
Miscellaneous supplies - donations 1,250 1,250
Tolal library 382,745 385,070 351,090 33,980
Recreation
Personal services 166,000 157,180 155,340 1,840
Operating expenditures 108,200 115,485 110,687 4,798
Capital outlay 2,200 6,600 6,297 303
Debt service 11,250 11,250 10.116 1,134
Total recreation 287.630 290.515 282,440 8,075
Total culture and recreation ¢70.395 675,585 633,530 42,055
Total expenditures 9,269,575 9,680,055 9,491,614 188,441
Transfers out and other expenditures
Transfer out CRA 942 335 1.023.535 773,506 250,029
Transfer out Special projects 8,865 8,863 2
Transfer out Marina 37,025 19.370 17.655
Transfer out Streets and roads 16,925 16,925 16,920 5
Other 18,905 18,898 7
Contingency. reserves and unappropriated 404.130 1,275,805 1,275,805
Total transfers out and other expenditures 1,363,390 2,381.060 837.557 1,543,503
Total expenditures and transfers 10,632,965 12,061,115 10.329.171 1,731,944
Net change in fund balances 5 b 3 1.137.151 $  1L137.151

See notes to the budgetary comparison schedules.
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Revenues
Intergovernmental
Investment income
Miscellaneous revenue
Loan proceeds
Transfer from General Fund
Total revenues

Expenditures
General government
Grants and aid
Capital outlay
Debt service
Transfers
Loss on investments
Unappropriated
Total expenditures

Net change in fund balances

TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA
Budgetary Comparison Schedule -
Community Redevelopment Fund

For the Year Ended September 30, 2009

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
$1,249,650 § 1,249,650 $ 306,439 § (943,211)
2,500 2,500 5,622 3,122
550,000 776,450 2,313 (774,137)
934,050 (934,050)
773,506 773,506
1,802,150 2,962,650 1,087,880 (1,874,770)
571,375 765,650 709,098 56,552
225,000 225,000 3,357 221,643
505,000 1,471,395 1,000,595 470,800
28,600 14,249 14,351
286,500 286,500 286,500
1,035 1,034 1
214,275 184,470 184,470
1,802,150 2,962,650 2,014,833 047 817
$ 5 5 (926,953) § (926,953)

See notes to the budgetary comparison schedules.
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TOWN OF LAKE PARK
NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES
SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

NOTE A - BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING

An appropriated budget has been legally adopted for the General Fund and Community
Redevelopment Fund on the same modified-accrual basis used to reflect revenue and
expenditures, except that for budgetary purposes, revenue includes proceeds from debt
issuances, transfers from other funds, and proceeds from the sale of capital assets, and
expenditures include encumbrances and transfers to other funds within each
governmental function. The Town Commission approved budget amendments for the
General Fund totaling $1,428,150 during the year, which increased the original General
Fund appropriations from $10,632,965 to a revised total of $12,061,115. For the
Community Redevelopment Fund, approved budget amendments totaled $1,160,500
during the year, which increased the original appropriations from $1,802,150 to a revised
total of $2,962,650.

The Town follows these procedures in establishing the annual budget:

1.

Prior to September 1, the Town Manager submits to the Town Commission a
proposed operating budget for the fiscal year commencing the following October 1.
The operating budget includes proposed expenditures and the means of financing
them.

2. Public hearings are conducted at the Town Hall to obtain taxpayer comments.

3. The Town advises the Palm Beach County Tax Collector’s office of the proposed
millage rate, the rolled back millage rate and the day, time and place of the public
hearing for budget acceptance.

4. A public hearing is held to obtain taxpayer input and to adopt the final budget and
millage rate.

5. The budget and related millage rates are legally enacted through passage of an
ordinance. Effective for fiscal year ending September 30, 2009, a final operating
budget and related millage rates are legally enacted through the passage of a
resolution,

6. Changes or amendments to the total budgeted expenditures of the Town or a

department must be approved by the Town Commission; however, changes
within a department which do not affect the total departmental expenditures may
be approved by the Town Manager. Accordingly, the legal level of control is at
the department level.
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TOWN OF LAKE PARK
NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES
SEPTEMBER 30, 2009

NOTE A - BUDGETARY ACCOUNTING (Continued)

7. Allunencumbered balances lapse at the end of each fiscal year.

The reported budgetary data represents the final appropriated budget after amendments
adopted by the Town Commission. An appropriated budget is legally required and has
been legally adopted for the General Fund, Community Redevelopment Special Revenue
Fund, Debt Service Fund, Streets, Roads Special Revenue Fund, and the Insurance
Internal Service Fund on the same modified-accrual basis used to reflect actual revenues
and expenditures, except that for budgetary purposes, current year encumbrances are
treated as expenditures and transfers in and transfers out are treated as revenues and
expenditures, respectively. The operations of the Town’s other funds are non-budgeted
financial activities, which are not legally required to adopt budgets.  Budgetary
comparison schedules for the Debt Service Fund and Streets and Roads Special Revenue
Fund, non-major funds, and the Insurance Internal Service Fund, a proprietary fund, are
not required to be presented and may be found in Other Supplementary Information at
pages 78 to 80.

Encumbrance accounting, under which purchase orders, contracts, and other
commitments for the expenditure of monies are recorded in order to reserve that portion
of the applicable appropriations, is employed as an extension of formal budgetary control
in the General Fund. Encumbrances outstanding at year end, if any, are reported as
reservations of fund balance for subsequent year expenditures. For budgetary purposes,
current year encumbrances arc treated as expenditures and any unencumbered balances
lapse at year end.

NOTE B - BUDGET AND ACTUAL COMPARISONS

The budgetary comparison schedule - General Fund, from pages 67-71, and Community
Redevelopment Fund, from page 72, are prepared under the basis of accounting used in
preparing the appropriated budget. As indicated in Note A, for budgetary purposes,
proceeds from the salc of capital assets are trcated as revenues, and current year
encumbrances are treated as expenditures. As a result, revenues and expenditures
reported in the budget and actual statement differ from the revenues and expenditures
reported on the GAAP basis. These differences are reconciled as follows:
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TOWN OF LAKE PARK
NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SCHEDULES
SEPTEMBER 30, 2008

NOTE B - BUDGET AND ACTUAL COMPARISONS {(Continued)

General Fund Revenues Expenditures
Current year encumbrances outstanding at year end $ 5 130,959
Prior year encumbrances paid in the current year (41,790)
Net encumbered amount 89,169
Transfers 576,504 818,659
Reclassification of unrealized loss on investments 15,365 15,365
Loan procceds 1,209,449
Net differences — GAAP and budgetary basis 1,801,318 923,193
GAAP basis 9,665,004 9,405.978
Budgetary basis _ 5 11,466,322 310,329,171

Community Redevelopment Fund Revenues Expenditures
Current year encumbrances outstanding at year end 3 § 148,737
Prior year encumbrances paid in the current year (1,068,194)
Net encumbered amount (919,457)
Transfers 773,506 286,500
Reclassification of unrealized loss on investments 1,034 1,034
Net differences — GAAP and budgetary basis 774,540 (631,923)
GAAP basis 313,340 2,646,756
Budgetary basis $ 1,087,880 § 2,014,833

NOTE C — EXPENDITURES OVER APPROPRIATIONS

There were no cxpenditures in excess of appropriations.
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NONMAIJOR GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS

Debt Service Fund

Special Revenue Funds
Streets and Roads Fund

Capital Projects Funds
Capital Projects Fund
Special Projects Fund



TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA
Combining Balance Sheet
Nonmajor Governmental Funds
September 30, 2009

Special
Revenue
Fund Capital Projects Funds
Debt Streets & Capital Special Total Nonmajor
Service Roads Prajects Projects Governmental
Fund Fund Bond Fund Fund Funds
Assets
Pooled cash and cash equivalents b3 94,556 % 51 $ 13.420 % $ 108,027
Investments 1,534 7.752 9.286
Accounts receivable 1.455 194,018 195,473
Due from other governments 19,129 1,663 20,792
Due from other funds 19,264 19,264
Total assets 3 96,090 § 20,635 % 21,172 3 214,945 LS 352,842
Liabilities and fund balances
Liabilities
Accounts payable 3 3 4,186 % $ $ 4,186
Acerued items 2,054 2,054
Deferred revenue 57,212 57,212
Due 1o other funds 39,370 129,271 168,641
Totat liabilities 45,610 186,483 232,093
Fund balances (deficit)
Reserved for/reported in:
Debt service / Debl service fund 96.090 96,090
Unreserved
Undesignated (deficit)
Special revenue fund (24,975) (24,975)
Capital projects fund 21,172 28,462 49.634
Tolal fund balances 96,090 (24,975) 21,172 28,462 120,749

Total liabitities and fund balances $ 96,000 § 20,635 5 21,172 $ 214,945 3 352,842
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TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA

Combining Statement of Revenues, Expenditures, and Changes in Fund Balances
Nonmajor Governmental Funds

For the Year Ended September 30, 2009

Special
Revenue
Fund Capital Projects Funds
Debt Streets & Capital Special Total Nonmajor
Service Roads Projects Projects Governmental
Fund Fund Bond Fund Fund Funds
Revenues
Taxes $ 745,061 ) S 745,061
Intergovernmental 342,434 171.615 514,049
Miscellaneous 356 4,874 1.519 6,749
Tolal revenues 745,417 347,308 1.519 171.615 1,265,859
Expenditures
Current
General government 3,768 3,768
Transportation 217,752 217,752
Culture and recreation 5,991 5,991
Capilal outlay 33,504 46,494 102,817 182.815
Debi service
Principal 506,707 4.463 511170
Interest charges 261,400 448 261.848
Other debt service charges 1,000 1,000
Tolal expenditures 769.107 256,167 46,494 112,576 1,184,344
Excess ol revenues over
{under) expenditures (23.690) 91.141 (44.975) 59,039 B1.515
Other financing sources (uses)
Transfers in 33.840 8,863 42,703
Transfers out (75.000} {75,000)
Total other [inancing sources (uses) (41.160% 5,563 {32,297)
Net changes in fund balances (23,690) 49981 (44,975) 67,902 49218
Fund balances - beginnng {deficit) 119,780 (74,956) 66147 (39.440) 71,531
Fund balances - ending (deficit) $ 96,090 $ {24,975) 21,172 28,462 $ 120.749
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Revenues

Taxes

Investment earnings

Fund balance appropriation
Total revenues

Expenditurcs
Debt service

Net change in fund balances -
budgetary basis

TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA
Budgetary Comparison Schedule -

Debt Service Fund

For the Year Ended September 30, 2009

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)

$ 749,525 § 749,525 § 745,061 § (4,464)
3,000 3,000 356 (2,644)
15,600 15,600 (15,600)
768,125 768,125 745,417 (22,708)
768,125 768,125 769,107 (982)
b $ $  (23,690) $ (23,690)
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TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA
Budgetary Comparison Schedule -
Streets and Roads Fund
For the Year Ended September 30, 2009

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive
Original Final Amounts (Negative)
Revenues
Intergovernmental § 356,650 $§ 356,650 $ 342434 § (14,216)
Miscellancous 4.874 4,874
Transfer from General fund 16,925 16,925 16,920 (5)
Transfer from Stormwater 16,925 16,925 16,920 (5)
Total revenues 390,500 390,500 381,148 (9,352)
Expenditures
Transportation 228,565 238,230 214,233 23,997
Capital outlay 55,000 45,335 33,504 11,831
Debt service 4,925 4,925 4911 14
Other 27,010 27,010 27,010
Transfer to General fund 75,000 75,000 75,000
Total expenditures 390,500 390,500 327.648 62,852
Net change in fund balances -
budgetary basis $ $ $ 53,500 § 53,500
Reconciliation between budgetary schedule and GAAP basis:
GAAP basis expenditures $ 331,167
less prior year encumbrances paid in the current year (3,519)
Budgetary basis expenditures $ 327,648
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PROPRIETARY FUNDS

Internal Service Fund
Insurance Fund



TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA
Budgetary Comparison Schedule -
Insurance Fund
For the Year Ended September 30, 2009

Revenues
Contributed revenue
Miscellaneous revenue
Total revenues

Expenditures
Personal services
Operating services
Other

Total expenditures

Net change in fund balances -
budgetary basis

Variance with

Final Budget
Budgeted Amounts Actual Positive

Original Final Amounts (Negative)
§ 389460 $ 389,460 § 391,954 2,494
5,117 5,117
389,460 389,460 397,071 7,611
126,550 126,550 122,290 4,260
214,950 260,250 237,528 22,722
47.960 2,660 2,660
389,460 389,460 359.818 29,642
3 $ $ 37,253 % 37,253
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FIDUCIARY FUNDS

Pension Trust Funds
Retired Police Officers’ Pension Trust Fund
Municipal Firemen'’s Pension Trust Fund



TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA
Combining Statement of Fiduciary Net Assets

Assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Investments
Closed end equity funds
Closed end taxable bond funds
Reccivables
Contributions
Prepaid retirement benefits

Total assets

Net assets
Held in trust for pension benefits

September 30, 2009
Retired
Police Municipal
Officers’ Firemen's
Pension Pension
Fund Fund Total
$ 85,733 § $ 85,733
892,045 892,045
354,203 354,203
10,622 10,622
1,342,603 1,342,603
b 1,342,603 § 3 1,342,603
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TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA

Combining Statement of Changes in Fiduciary Net Assets
Employee Retirement Funds

For the Year Ended September 30, 2009

Additions
Contributions

Employer

Investment income
Net decrease in fair value of investments
Interest and dividends
Net investment income

Total additions
Deductions
Retirement benefits
Administrative expenses
Total deductions

Change in net assets

Net assets held in trust for pension benefits,
beginning of year

Net assets held in trust for pension benefits,
end of year

Retired
Police Municipal
Officers' Firemen's
Pension Pension
Fund Fund Total
) b $
(109.079) (109.079)
34911 34911
(74,168) (74,168)
(74,168) (74.168)
166,881 166,881
10,216 1,086 11,302
177,097 1,086 178,183
(251,265) (1,086) (252,351)
1,593,868 1,086 1,594,954
§  1.342.603 3 $ 1,342,603
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STATISTICAL SECTION



STATISTICAL SECTION

This purt of the Town of Lake Park’s comprehtensive annual financial repovt presemts detailed unaudited information as
a context for understanding what the information in the financial statement. note disclosures, and required supplementary

information savs about the Town's overall financial health,
Contents

Financial Trends
These schedules contain trend information 10 help the reader understand how the Town's financial
performance and well-being have changed over time.

Net Assels by Component

Changes in Net Assets

Fund Balances of Governmental Funds

Changes in Fund Balances of Govermmental Funds

Revenue Capacity
These schedules contain information to help the reader assess the Town's most significant local
revenue source, the property tu,

Govemimental Funds Tax Revenues by Source
General Governmenl Revenue by Source
Assessed Value of Taxable Property

Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates
Principal Property Taxpayers

Property Tax Levies and Collections

Debt Capacity
These schedules present information to help the reader assess the affordability of the Town's
current levels of outstanding debt and the Town's ability to issue additional debt in the future,

Ratios of Outstanding Debt by Type
Direct and Overlapping Govemnmental Activilies Debt
Pledged-Revenue Coverage

Demographic and Economic Information
These schedules offer demographic and economic indicators to help the reader understand the
enviromment within which the Town's financial activities 1ake place.

Demographic and Economic Statistics
Principal Employers

Operating Information
These schedules contain service and infrastructure data to hefp understand how the information
in the Town's financial report relates to the services the Town provides and the activities it performs.

Full-Time Equivalent Town Government Employees by Function
Operating [ndicators by Function/Program
Capital Assel Statistics by Function/Program

Sources: Unless otherwise noted, the information in these schedules is derived from the comprehensive
annad financial reports for the relevant yvear,
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TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA

Net Assets by Component
Last Six Fiscal Years

{(Accrual Basis of Accounting) Unaudited

Fiscal Year

2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
Gorernmental activilies
Invested 1 capital assets, net of related detst S (2,578 S (1,219,252} % 179005 § L7R1L7T60  § 2,062,366
Restncted 85,879 114,301 149,558 239847 119,780 96,090
Unrestncied 2.268.630 1.06:40,854 3,711,364 3,838,721 3.060.834 3.320.736
Total gosernmental activities net assels M 314931 § 1,755,155 2641680 S 4357683 0§ 4962374 0§ 5479.192
Business-type aclivities
Invested m capilal assets, net of related debi 5 1,957,794 8 1,666,6K8 4,240,204 5 4,461,916 S 4,066,900 S 4,297,968
Restnctled 292141 61,648
LU'nrestricted 2,094,262 QU4 9%) 996,718 146.230 (298,208} (1,028.259)
Total business-1ype activities net assels 5 4052006 5 4.K6LBIY 5298570 0 8 4.6UB146 0§ 3.708.692 5§ 1269709
Primary government
Invested m caprial @ssets, net of related debt s (84,8341 5 3,666,688 3020952 $ 4,641,031 5 5.84R,660 3 6,360.334
Restricied 88,879 406,442 211,206 239,847 119,780 96,090
Unrestricted 4,362,892 2,545,844 4.708.102 3,984,951 2,762,626 2292477
Total primary government net assels $ 4366927  § 661891 7940260  § ¥.805.829 § 8731066 § §74K901

Inlirmatwn prwr to fiscal year 2004 s not available
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TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA
Changes in Ner Assets
Last Six Fiscal Years
{Accrual Basis of Accounting) Unaudited

Fiscul Year

2004 008 2006 b 7| | S| | ;' N
Expenses
Governmental activities
General government S LASISE 8§ 1462056 5 1,704,001 §  2237,149  § 2538501 5 656,300
Public safety 2,106,422 1,870,758 4,377,568 5.008,257 5.211.776 5.421.845
Physical environment 440,968 462,674 953,466 652,728 361,170 319,993
Transportation 531,581 359,423 820,777 573,501 683,463 659,113
Culture and recreation K87,990 1,052,857 1,242,254 1,450,650 1,161,870 1,242,156
Interest on kong-lerm debl 367,469 351,729 334,083 314.933 320.280 420,671
Total governmental aclivities expenses 6,649,988 7,759,507 9,432,159 10,237,215 10,277,060 10,720,087
Busmess-type activiies.
Marna 118,893 216,922 1,143,506 1,610,274 1.902,634 1,734,561
Samtauon 1.040,062 1,321,437 1,245,151 1,283,851 1,355,926 1,430,694
Slormw ater 208.668
Total business-1ype activilies cxpenses 1,158,955 1.538.359 2.38R.657 1,894,125 3,258,560 3,373,923
Total primury gosernmenl expenses S _TBU8943 5 439766 8 11820816 05 1313 L340 S 13535620 5 14094010
Progiram revenues
Governmental activiies:
Charges lor senwes.
General government S 233 S 415029 0§ Md.E06 S 332312 3 40,726 3 43,756
Public safety 221,502 67,252 451,808 967,365 796,004 775,124
Physical environment
Culwre and recreation 44,670 IRHK17 48,471 49,352 56,775 58,785
Operating contributions and grants:
(General government 118,178 200,470 324,969 143,021 15,879
Pubtic salety 7,950
Physical envrronment 22662 10,000
Transportation 461,685 748,968 £10.226
Culture and recreatwn 15,764 16,816 16,168 11,639
Capital contributions and grants: 16,437
General government 76,697 27,408 226,097
Public safety 1,435 8,637 4,205
Physical eny wonment 40,000
Transponation 13,700 91,533 22,903
Cuhure and recreaton 306,858 225,100 160,597
Tolul governmiental activities program revenyes 1,332,832 2,360,606 2.392.811 1,543,738 1.250.912 1.077.09
Business-type activuies:
Charges for services:
Marna 5.296 184,545 1OM2,204 1,279,927 1,220,299 1,017,094
Sanitatwn 1,364,796 1,403,863 1,409,510 1,423,947 1,483,528 141,682
Stormwater 455,587
Operating contributions and grants
Marina 210,807 22,088
Sanitation 54,529 259,527
Capnal contributions and grants
Marina 240,193 %25 110,276
Stormwaler 93755
Tolal buslness-(ype activities progrum revenuoes 1580899 2.205.228 2.761.241 2,704,699 2,703,827 3,080,384

Total primary gosernment program revenues & 2.913.731 S AS65834 5 5154052 0§ 4248437 5 3054739 § 4157493

Information prior 10 [scal year 2004 is not asailable.



Nel (eapense) resenue
Governmental actnities
Busmess-fype acliviies

Taolal primary gorermment nel expense

General revenues and other changes
in nel assets
Guovernmental activities:
Taxes
Property 1axes
Franchise fees
Unlity service taxes
Sales 1ax
Communication sales tax
Intergovemnmenial, unrestricied
Gain on sake of equipment
Miscellineous revenue
Inveslmient earnmgs.
Translers
Total governmental activities

Busmess-type activities
Investment earnings
Gam un sake af equpment
Miscellaneous revenves
Tramsfers
Tolal business-type activities

Tolal primary government
Chunges in net assels
Governmental activilies

Business-type activilies

‘Total primary govermment

Infurmation prior w fiscal year 2004 1 nul available.

TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA
Changes in Net Assets
Last Six Fiscal Years
{Accrual Basis of Accounting) Unaudited

Fiscal Y ewr

2004 I00% 2006 007 _ 008 10 L

S (53170560 & (539%901)  § (7039.348) S (RE93,477) S (S.026,148) 5 (9.642.958)
421,944 666,869 372,584 {189.426) (554,732} (293,529)

S9SN 8 (473203%) 5 (6666764) 3 (SRR2.00)) § (OSROKRL) 5 (9.936.517)

S ATLAs9 S 4251570 S 5,006,008 5 6262,737  $ 6156686 S G6,817.66K

473,764 518,641 631,811 629,365 630,215 603,269
618,050 651,733 671,97¢ 668,400 GB1,568 690,743
061,796 260,282 246,643 236,037
300,277 539,562 505,783 519,808
39,468 1,266,150 720919 1,062,715 974,834 893,510
17,140 39,629 26
24,058 38,5971 102,096
044,028 133,691 533902 306,398 174,117 34,121
(144,549} 262.647 75.000 321.%96 2[2.554
5.928.223 6,836,125 7,925,883 9.629.107 9,730,839 10.139.806
42,417 44,604 62,167 78,419 29,038 T.100
100,250 14,720
7.168
140,549 __{75.000) (321.9%0) (212,554)
182,966 144,444 62167 25,307 (292,958} (205.454)

S GIILIRY S 69%4N60 S 79RKOSG S URSA4Id  §  O43TRKI § 005435

5 6118067 § 1,440,724 5 BK6,535 5 1135620 & 7M,691 $ SI6BI8

604910 811.813 434.751 (1ed4.119 (BAT.691} {498,983)
s 1215977 $ 2252037 $§ 1,331,286 $ 971,511 § (143.000) % 17.835
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TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA
Fund Balances of Governmental Funds
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting) Unaudited

2000 2001 2002 2003
General fund
Reserved b 95,607 % 8.381 b3 5.778 8,617
Unreserved
Designated for subsequent years budget 232,446
Undesignaled 252,655 162,832 844,854 1,590,425
Total general imd 5 580,708 % 172,213 § 850,632 1,599,042
All other governmental funds
Reserved 3 3 h)
Unreserved
Designated lor capital projects 2,955,751 2,014,209 995,018
Designated for subsequent year's budget 37.698
Undesignated, reported in:
Debt service fund (199.652) 29,108
Special revenue funds 17,823 (191,130 (755)
Capital projects lund {187.647) 61,931 {45,208)
Total all other govermmental funds § 2773922 $ 1.855,670 h 865,839 (8,265)
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2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
44,961 177,971 135,074 946,499 1,379,773 2,209,117
151,963 121,572 28,814
1.879.919 2,672,593 3,138,613 1,010,346 686,285 1.176,019
1,924,880 2,850,564 3,273,687 2,108,808 2,187.630 3,413,950
88.879 114,301 149,558 1,590,692 2,754,260 638,293
849,579 883,122 1,156,193
(94,042) 135,371 244,852 164,837 3,930 49,634
(5,163) 249,672 394,410 2.605,108 3.641.312 1,844,120
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Revenues

Taxes
Licenses and pernits
Intergovernmental
Charges flor services
Fines and lorfeitures
Miscellaneous

Total revenues

Expenditures
General government
Public safety
Physical environiment
Transportation
Culure and recreation
Capital outlay
Debt service
Prineipal
Interest
Other debt service charges
Total expenditures

Excess of revenues
over (under) expenditures

Other financing sources (uses)

Transfers n

Transfers out

Proceeds from sale of assets

Bonds issued

Loan proceeds

Capital lease obligations
Total other financing

sources (uscs)

Net change in fund balances

TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA
Changes in Fund Balances of Governmental Fundy
Last Ten Fiscal Years
(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting) Unaudited

Debt service as a percentage of non-capital

expenditures

2000 2001 2002 2003
5 4,147,131 3 4,362,132 § 4,182,729 4,536,447
339,578 365,051 508,963 479,752
2,308,263 1,933,638 2,769.313 2,180,062
388,342 394,239 472,350 163,004
233,237 150.464 62,424 68,319
372,532 257,149 202,261 635,643
7.789,083 7,462,673 8,198,040 8,063,227
963,743 1,163,835 1,152,324 1,343,427
3.899.379 3,519,712 1,545,800 2915117
257,822 275769 272,708 342,981
339,520 363.213 417,061 499,871
725,023 779,045 622,652 646,691
3,737,832 1,895,528 1,724,583 1,799,244
372,211 416,196 464,038 397,570
449,365 436,122 422,133 390,570
10,746,895 8.849.420 8,621,299 8,335471
(2.957.812) (1,386,747) {423,259 (272,244)
372,343 130,099 278,566 160,550
(122,343) (70,099) (214,290) (81,164}
163,528 47,571
413,528 60,000 111,847 79,386
5 {2.344284) 5 (1.326.747) § (311.412) (192,858)
13.28% 13.97% 14.74% 13.71%
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2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
5 4.803.203 5556457 5 6,369,786 S 7,286,723 1165046 5 782521
412,858 786,175 367,044 695,726 579,519 529,487
1,823,113 2,415,388 2,356,210 2,323,977 2,681,555 2,198,263
176,671 161,681 239,705 254,759 295,517 293,756
68,979 100,642 185,234 220,724 174,643 213,105
116,780 162,248 600,715 421.268 250,799 184,381
7,401,604 9,182,591 10,318,694 11.203.177 11,147,079 11,244,203
1,291,440 1,451,403 1,594,394 1,701,253 3,267,652 2,361,396
3.069.983 3,814,984 4,302,722 4,992,454 5,206,59 5.413,894
355,001 357,690 835,987 551,320 368,740 287,322
512,437 550,861 809,325 373,007 626,366 553,392
699,347 806,050 940,868 1.330.674 1,039,190 1,087,407
282,527 116,093 1.008.895 1,126,772 2,699,269 2.369,922
417,354 448 808 472,830 510,523 338,385 746,625
372,129 356.6011 139,199 320,294 308,481 397,670
17,488 19.450
7.000.218 7,902,500 10,304.220 11,106,297 14,072,167 13,237,078
401,386 1,280,091 14,474 96,880 (2.925,088) (1.992,875)
46,107 867,005 3,868,013 1,392,713
{140,549) {46,107) (792,005) {(3,346,017) (1,180,159}
226,870 243,905 256,897 3,742 630
3,717,488 1,209,449
61,606 84,453 103,185
147,927 328,358 360,082 80,742 4,040,114 1,422,003
) 549,313 1608449 g 374,556 177622 1115026 s (570.872)
13.32% 11.54% 9.57% 9.08% 8.06% 11.79%




TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA

Governmental Funds Tax Revenues by Source
Last Six Fiscal Years

(Accrual Basis of Accounting) Unaudited

Utility Communication

Fiscal Property Franchise Service Services Sales

Year Taxes Fees Taxes Taxes Tax Totals
2004 371,359  § 473,764 618,080 £ 500277 661,796 5,965,276
2005 4,251,570 518,641 655,214 530,407 679,722 6,635,554
2006 5,066,005 631,811 673,848 532,902 720,919 7,625,485
2007 6,262,727 629,365 668,400 539,562 260,282 8,360,336
2008 6,156,686 630,215 681,568 505,783 246,643 8,220,895
2009 6,827,668 603,269 690,743 539,808 236,037 8,897,525

Information prior to fiscal year 2004 is not available.
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TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA
General Governmental Revenue by Source

Last Ten Fiscal Years

(Modified Accrual Basis of Accounting) Unaudited

Licenses Charges
Fiscal and Inter- for
Year Taxes Permits governmental Services
2000 $ 3,379,024 Y 339,578 $ 1,211,537 388,342
2001 3,594,025 365,051 1,172,447 394,239
2002 3,418,867 508,963 1,843,363 472,350
2003 3,580,692 479,752 1,360,445 163,004
2004 3,954,690 412,858 1.402,673 176,671
2005 4,637,685 786,175 1,538,637 161,681
2006 5,861,265 566,508 843,445 239,705
2007 7.286,723 695,726 2,323,977 254,759
2008 7,165,046 579,519 2,681,555 295,517
2009 7,825,211 529,487 2,198,263 293,756
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Annual

Fines Other Percentage
Fiscal and Financing Increase
Year Forfeitures Miscellanegus Sources Total (Decrease)
2000 % 233,237 h) 129.026 $ 463,528 $ 6,144272 7.1 %
2001 150,464 125,894 60,000 5,862,120 (4.6) %o
2002 62,424 188,848 324,980 6,819,795 16.3 %
2003 68,319 377,760 160,550 6,190,522 (9.2) %
2004 68,979 88,775 6,104,373 (1.4) %
2005 100,642 142,127 7,366,947 207 %
2006 182,788 696,141 8.389.852 139 %
2007 220,724 421,268 11,203,177 335 %
2008 174,643 250,799 3,717,488 14,864,567 32,7 %
2009 213,105 184,381 1,209,449 12,453,652 (16.2) %
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TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA
Assessed Value of Taxable Property

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Unaudited
Real Property Centrally Tolal

Tax Residential Commerical Personal A d A d Value Direct Total Taxable
Year Property Property for Operations Tax Rate Value {1}
2000 138,971,356 117,061,477 2B.694.715 692,324 285,420,272 11.1614 245,420,272
2001 45,030,576 123,636,520 30,157,262 730,032 304,154,400 10,9914 HXL154,400
2002 160,685,977 129,724,063 33,497,336 732,819 324,640,795 10.9914 324,640,795
2003 175,705,535 129,504,494 36,001,397 850,592 352,071,018 13850 52,071,008
2004 213,547, 7% 175,020,828 35,469,559 897,274 427,935,457 10,2500 427,935,457
2005 275,026,756 197 918,997 38,469,559 897,274 512,312,586 10.1000 512,312,586
2006 343,(4R,900 277,146,704 43,072,903 #99,238 bb, 167,805 9.3000 664,167 805
2007 2,447,556 319,364,915 50,439,255 1,038,292 733,290.418 RAH30 733,290,018
2008 7,287,667 324,384,752 43,278,568 2,033,244 086,980,231 9.6663 686,980,231
2009 223,053,149 310,344,797 44,930,557 1,338,599 579,667,102 949163 579,667,102

(1) Florida sdale law requires all property to be assessed al current faie markel value. Accordingly, the estimated actual

value is equal to the Total Assessed Value.

Source: Palm Beach County Property Apprasser
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TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA
Direct and Overlapping Property Tax Rates
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Rate per §1,000 of Assessed Value

Unaudited
Overlapping Proeperty Tax Rates - (1)
Town of Lake Park Property Tax Rates Palm Beach County
General General

Fiscal Operating Obligation Total Town Operating Obligation Total County
Year Millage Debt Service Millage Millage ~ Dcbt Service Millage
2000 8.3914 2.7700 11.1614 4.6000 0.3456 4.9456
20m 8.31914 2.7700 11.1614 4.6000 0.3362 4.9362
2002 8.3914 2.6000 10.9914 4,5500 0.3851 49351
2003 8.3500 3.0358 11.3838 4.5000 0.3084 4.8084
2004 8.3500 2.5000 10.8500 4.53000 0.2910 4.7910
2005 8.3500 1.9000 10.2500 4.5000 02677 4.7677
2006 8.2000 1.9000 10,1000 4.4500 0.2700 4.7200
2007 8.0000 1.3000 9.3000 4,2800 0.1975 4.4775
2008 7.6350 0.9500 8.5850 3.7811 0.2002 3.9813
2009 8.5163 1.1500 9.6663 3.7811 0.1845 3.9656

Note: All millage rates are based on §1 for every $1000 of assessed value
Source; Notice of Ad Valorem Taxes and Non-Ad Valorem Assessments

{1) Overlapping rates are those of local and county governments that apply to property owners within the Town
of Lake Park. Not all overlapping rates apply to all Town property owners (i.e. The rates for special districts
apply only 10 the proportion of the government's property owners whose property is located within the
geographic boundaries of the special district.)
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Overlapping Property Tax Rates - (1)

Palm Beach County School District Palm Beach
General Total County
Operating Obligation School Special
Millage Debt Service Millage Districts Total
8.587 0.456 9.043 2.1856 27.3356
8.487 0.431 8918 2.2630 27.2786
R.547 0.401 8.048 2,4558 27.3303
8.427 0.352 8.779 2.4883 27.4615
8.251 0.320 8.571 2.5557 26,7677
8.158 0.274 8.432 2.5257 25.9754
7.880 0.220 8.100 2.5085 25.4285
7.712 0.160 7.872 2.3254 23.9749
7.356 - 7.356 2.1308 22,0531
7.251 - 7.251 2.2569 23.1398
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TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA
Principal Property Taxpayers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago

Unaudited
2009

Taxable Percentage of

Assessed Total Taxes

Valuvation Taxes Rank Levied
Lake Park Owner LLC 20,000,000 170,326 1 2.56%
Wal Man Stores East LP 18,370,731 156,451 2 2.35%
Congress Ave Properties LTD 17,326,109 147,554 3 2.22%
SC Lake Park Associates LLLP 13,789,073 117,432 4 1.77%
Lake Park Square Joint Venture 11,200,012 95,384 ) 1.43%
Mullinax Ford of PBC, LLC 10,599,180 90,266 6 1.36%
Trust Lake Park LTD 10,060,000 85,163 7 1.28%
Twin Cities Inveslors Inc 0,557,864 81,396 8 1.22%
Northlake Square East LL.C 9,000,999 76,655 9 1.15%
Earl Stewart LLC 8,073,090 68,753 10 1.03%
Lake Park Portfolio LLC
WHCB Real Eslate
Nicholas B. Smith
New Plan Realty Trust
Phillip D. Lewis
Communiles Finance Co.
Opabola Kasali O
Stuan Enterprise Inc.
3100 Blvd. Inc.
John A. Holley, Jr.

Tolals $ 127.917,054 § 1,089,380 16.37%
Source: Palm Beach County Property Appraser.
2000

Taxable Percentape of

Assessed Total Taxes

Valuation Taxes Rank Levied

Lake Park Owner LLC

Wal Mart Stores East LP
Congress Ave Properties LTD
SC Lake Park Associates LLLP
Lake Park Square Joint Venture
Mullinax Ford of PBC, LLC
Trust Lake Park LTD

Twin Cities Investors Inc 2.570.601 2,157 8 1.07%
Northlake Square East LLC
Ear] Stewart LLC

Lake Park Portiolio LLC

WHCD Real Estale 10.600,000 44,250 1 2.48%
Nicholas B. Smith 7.289.135 19,273 3 1.65%
New Plan Realty Trusl 6.623,500 17.398 4 1.64%
Phillip D. Lewis 8,705,628 23,505 2 1.79%
Communites Finance Co. 4,187.039 8,793 5 1.29%
Opabola Kasali O 3.131,529 4,071 7 1.14%
Swart Enterprise Inc, 3.216,718 427 6 1.14%
3100 Blvd. Inc. 2,570,601 2,087 9 3.02%
John A. Holley, Ir. 2,504,902 1,926 10 2.90%
Totals 5 51,399,653 $ 127731 18.12%

Source: Palm Beach County Property Appraiser.

Note: Assessed values are established by the Palm Beach County Property Appraiser’s office as of January 1st of cach year.
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TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA
Property Tax Levies and Collections
Last Ten Fiscal Years

Unaudited
Amount of Percent of Amount of
Fiscal Total Current Taxes Current Taxes  Delinquent Taxes
Year Tax Levy Collected (1) Collected (1) Collected
2000 $ 3,102,751 $ 2,968,734 957 % § 13,782
2001 3,235,477 3.073.411 95.0 % 32,712
2002 3,369,838 3,196,069 948 % 16,426
2003 3,625,081 3,517,408 97.0 % 19,212
2004 3,855,029 3,682,547 955 % 28,812
2005 4,407,224 4,119,485 93.5 % 132,085
2006 5,082,715 4,885,172 96.1 % 13,804
2007 6,209,531 5,989,731 96.5 % 18,140
2008 6,316,263 5,867,407 929 % 10,883
2009 6,649,031 6,281,877 945 % 19,880
Total Ratio of Total Accumulated Ratio of
Fiscal Collected Taxes Collected Delinquent Delinquent Taxes
Year for the Year to Current Levy Taxes to Current Levy
2000 § 2,982,516 96.1 % § 120,235 39 %
2001 3,106,123 96.0 % 110,002 34 %
2002 3,212,495 95.3 % 134,200 4.0 %
2003 3,536,620 976 % 158,510 44 %
2004 3,711,359 96.3 % 144,146 37 %
2005 4,251,570 96.5 % 144,146 33 %
2006 4,898,976 964 % 145,225 29 %
2007 6,007,871 96.8 % 145,225 23 %
2008 5,878,290 931 % 145,225 23 %
2009 6,301,757 948 % 145,225 22 %

(1) Includes discount taken for early payment of property taxes.

Source: Palm Beach County Property Appraiser
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TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FL.ORIDA
Ratios of Qutstanding Debt by Type
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Unaudited

Governmental Activities

Percentage
General Capital Total of Taxable
Fiscal Obligation Lease Loans Governmental Value Per
Year Bonds Obligations Payable Activities of Property Capita(2)
2000 3 9.099.105 ¥ 197.682 3 b3 9,296,787 335% & 1.066.02
2001 8,754,434 129,803 8.884,237 2.67% 1,019.07
2002 8,393,364 58,285 8,451,649 2.78% 969.78
2003 8.015.113 22.609 8,037,722 1.90% 918.70
2004 7.618.861 63,113 7,681,974 1.47% 843.71
2005 7,203,749 113,870 7.317.619 1.40% §02.99
2006 6,768,877 179.097 6.947,974 1.08% 762.42
2007 6,313,300 124,15¢ 6,437,450 0.88% 706.40
2008 5.836,031 63,034 3,717,488 9.616,553 1.40% 103248
2009 5,329,323 28,702 4,721,352 10,079,377 1.74% 1276.19

Note: Details about the Town's oulstanding debt can be found in the notes to the financial
slatements,

(1) The Town does not have a legal debl margin
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Business-type Activities

Primary Government

Total Percent
Marina Capital Business- Total Of Average
Revenue Loans Lease ype Primary Household Per
Bonds Pavable Obligations Activities Government Population Income Capita (2)
734,279 ) 39.957 774,236 S 10,071,023 8721 2.B8% S 1.154.80
1,435,830 1,435,830 10,320,067 8,718 2.82% 1,183.77
896,569 896,569 9,348,218 8715 2,52% 1.072.66
4,810,000 4,310,000 12,847,722 8,749 3.36% 1.468.48
4,810,000 153,175 4,963,175 12,645,149 2,105 2.87% 1,388.81
4,725,000 355,961 5,080,961 12,398,580 9,113 3.08% 1.360.54
4,640,000 287.367 4,927,367 11,875,341 9.113 2.92% 1.303.12
4,550,000 191,521 4,741,521 11,178,971 9.113 3.00% 1.226,71
4,460,000 1,520,412 91,793 6,072,205 15,688,758 9,314 3.79% 1.684.43
4,365,000 1,646,951 7.060 6,019,011 16,098,388 7.898 4.48% 2,038.2¢9
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TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA

Direct and Overlapping Governmental Activities Debit

As of September 30, 2009
Unaudited
Debt
Governmental Unit Qutstanding
Overlapping debt:
Dircct debt - Town of Lake Park
General obligation bonds Y 5,329,323
Obligations under capital lease 28,702
Other debt
Palm Beach County 270,150,000
Palm Beach County Schoo! Board 32,835,000

Total direct and overlapping debt
Estimated town population
Total per capita

(1) Estimates based on ratio of assessed taxable values.

Source: Finance Department, Town of Lake Park, Florida
Palm Beach County Property Appraiser
School Board of Palm Beach County

100

Estimated (1)
Percentage
Apnplicable
to Town of

Lake Park

100%
100%

0.684%
0.684%

Estimated (1)
Sharc of
Direct and
Overlapping
Debt

$ 5,329,323
28,702

1,847,826

224,591

7,430,442
7,898

b 940.80



TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA
Pledged-Revenue Coverage
Last Ten Fiscal Years
Unaudited

Marina Revenue Bonds
Net Revenue

Available

Fiscal Gross Operating for Debt

Year Revenue Expense (1) Debt Service Service (2) Coverage
2000 S N/A 5 N/A $ N/A 3 N/A N/A
2001 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
2002 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
2003 N/A N/A N/A N/A N/A
2004 247172 81,465 165,707 231,625 0.72
2005 234,161 192,934 41,227 316,625 0.13
2006 1,098,735 812,296 286,439 314,925 0.91
2007 1,285,288 1,075,249 210,039 316,525 0.66
2008 1,222,835 1,240,785 (17,950) 313,600 (0.06)
2009 1,018,448 1,029,912 (11,464) 315,900 (0.04)

(1) Expense is exclusive of depreciation.

(2) Includes principal and interest of revenue bonds only.

101



TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FL.ORIDA
Demographic and Economic Statistics

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Unaudited
Education
Level in
Average Years of Unemploy-

Fiscal Personal Household Median Formal School ment

Year Population (1){2) _ Income Income (2) Age (2) Schooling Enrollment (3) Rate (2)

2000 8,721 N/A 40,044 N/A 633 4.1%

2001 8,718 N/A 41,907 N/A 515 5.5%

2002 8,715 N/A 42,430 N/A 515 5.5%

2003 8,749 N/A 43,626 N/A 516 6.3%

2004 9,105 N/A 48,380 N/A 482 5.7%

2005 9,113 N/A 44,050 - N/A 430 4.2%

2006 9,113 N/A 44,518 - N/A 386 3.7%

2007 9,113 N/A 40,864 35 N/A 420 4.0%

2008 9,314 N/A 44,397 35 N/A 392 6.4%

2009 7,898 N/A 45,458 36 N/A 344 11.7%

Data Sources:

(1)

(2)

The population for 1997 through 2000 and 2003 through 2006 was obtained from the University
of Florida, Bureau of Economic Business Administration. The population for 2001 and 2002 was
obtained from the 2000 U.S. Census Bureau count.

Business Development Board of Palm Beach County. Data is for the Town of Lake Park

Lake Park Elementary
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Employer

Palm Beach County School District
Palm Beach County

Tenet Healthcare Corp.

Florida Power & Light (Headquarters)
Hospital Corporation of America
Wackenhut

Florida Atlantic University
Veterans Health Administration
Office Depot (Headquarters)

Boca Raton Communily Hospital

Totals

TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA

Principal Employers
Current Year and Nine Years Ago
Unaudited
2009 2000
Percentage Percentage
of Total of Total
Town Town
Employees Rank Employment Employees Rank Employment
21,718 1 N/A 16,800 1 N/A
11,319 2 N/A 9,000 2 N/A
4,500 3 N/A N/A N/A N/A
3,632 4 N/A 2,300 7 N/A
3,395 5 N/A N/A N/A N/A
3,000 6 N/A N/A N/A N/A
2,838 7 N/A 1,500 9 N/A
2,207 8 N/A N/A N/A N/A
2,100 9 N/A 1,500 N/A N/A
2,100 10 N/A 1,600 N/A N/A
56,809 N/A N/A N/A

Source: Business Development Board of Palm Beach County. Data is for the West Palm Beach

to Boca Raton metropolitan arca.

N/ A: Not available,
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TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA

Full-Time Equivalent Town Employees b y Function/Pregram

Last Ten Fiscal Years

Unaudited
2000 2001 2002 _2003_ 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009

General government

Town Manager 3 5 3 3 3 3 3 3 3 3

Personnel 1 1 1 2 2 2 2 2 1 2

Town Clerk g 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2

Finance 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5 5

Information technology - - - - - - 1 1 1 1
Public Safety
Police 37 37 - - - - - - - -
Fire 12 12 12 - - - S = - -

Community development 7 5 4 4 4 5 5 7 8 7
Physical Environment

Public works 7 7 6 6 5 7 8 9 11 11

Vehicle maintenance 3 3 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2
Transportation

Transportation - - - 3 3 3 3 3 2 2
Culture and Recreation

Library 5 5 5 5 5 3 3 6 6 6

Park maintenance 6 6 6 6 6 6 6 8 8 6

Recreation 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 2 3 3
Marina ) 5 5 - 1 5 5 5 5 5
Sanitation 9 9 9 8 8 8 8 10 8 10

Total 105 102 62 48 48 53 55 65 65 65
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TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA
Operating Indicators by Function/Program
Last Six Fiscal Years

Unaudited
Function 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
Public Safety
Community development
Code violations 960 1,571 1,534 1,612 1,722 3,116
Building permits issued 861 1,784 1,140 841 841 651
Value of permits {in thousands) 16,796 a7,679 20,121 24,835 189,451 5,860,000
Transportation
Street resurfacing (miles) 3 - 1 0
Pot holes repaired 70 215 160 160
Culture and Recreation
Library
Circulation 28,788 24,972 23,021 26,789 23,256 23,316
Programs offered 190 467 430 434 468 434
Park maintenance
Acres of parks 69 69 69 69 69 69
Recreation
Recreation programs offered 8 10 12 18 15 9
Recreation program attendance 289 304 394 431 419 305
Youth athletic participants 15 185 210 263 241 125
Marina
Available slips 103 103 103 103 103
Sanitation
Residential customers 377 369 357 3,698 3,698 3,596
Commercial cuslomers A0 300 300 367 275 272
Refuse collected (tons) 11,610 12,685 11,381 9,222 9,260 9,178
Recyclables collected (tons) 248 283 282 573 655 645

Sources: Town departments
Note: Data is not available for fiscal years prior to 2000,
N/A: Not available,
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TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA
Capital Asset Statistics by Function/Program
Last Six Fiscal Years

Unaudited
Function/Program 2004 2005 2006 2007 2008 2009
Public Safety (contracted to Palm
Beach County)
Police Station - County 1 1 1 1 1 1
Fire Station - County 1 1 1 1 1 1
Transportation
Roads & Streets
Street Lights 300 331 331 331 340 340
Lane Miles 64 64 64 64 64 o4
Culture and Recreation
Marina
Wet Slips 103 103 103 103 103
Library
Books 28,048 29,582 30413 28,257 33,233 33,710
Leisure Services
Ballfields - lighted 2 2 2 2 2 2
Basketball courts 1 1 1 2 2 2
Soccer fields 1 1 1 1 1 1
Tennis courts 2 2 2 6 6 6
Parks 5 5 5 5 6 6
Sanitation
Garbage Trucks 8 8 8 10 14 13
Water /Sewer

{Provided by Seacoast Utility)

Source: Town Departments, Town of Lake Park, Florida
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REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER i e
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE

AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT

OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED BELLE L ADE OFFICE
IN ACCORDANCE WITH POST ORFICE B 208
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS B

FAX (561} 996-8248

The Honorable Mayor and Members of the Town Commission
Town of Lake Park, Florida

We have audited the financial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type
activities, each major fund, and the aggregate remaining fund information of Town of Lake Park,
Florida, as of and for the year ended September 30, 2009, which collectively comprise the Town
of Lake Park, Florida’s basic financial statcments and have issued our report thereon dated
March 30, 2010. We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally
accepted in the United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits
contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United
States.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the Town of Lake Park, Florida’s internal
control over financial reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose
of expressing our opinions on the financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an
opinion on the cffectiveness of the Town of Lake Park, Florida’s internal control over financial
reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Town of Lake
Park, Florida’s internal control over financial reporting.

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the preceding paragraph and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in
internal control over financial reporting that might be significant deficiencies or material
weaknesses. However, as discussed below, we identified a deficiency in internal control over
financial reporting that we consider to be a significant deficiency.

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow management
or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect
misstatements on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination
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of control deficiencies, that adverscly affects thc Town of Lake Park, Florida’s ability to initiate,
authorize, record, process, or report financial data reliably in accordance with generaily accepted
accounting principles such that there is more than a remote likelihood that a misstatement of the
Town of Lake Park, Florida’s financial statements that is more than inconsequential will not be
prevented or detected by the Town of Lake Park, Florida’s intemal control. We consider the
deficiency described below to be a significant deficiency in internal control over financial
reporting:

2001-1: Written Policies and Procedures

We noted significant improvements in internal controls from the prior year and in the current
year the Town finished a major revision to the Employee Handbook. While the Town has
also made improvements in strengthening the internal control system and in communicating
to the employees their responsibilities in the system; there has been no formal documentation
or codification of the current policies and procedures. Written procedures, instructions, and
assignments of duties will prevent or reduce misunderstandings, errors, inefficiencics,
duplicated or omitted procedures, and other situations that can result in inaccurate or
untimely accounting records. A well-devised accounting manual can also help to ensure that
all similar transactions are trcated consistently, that accounting principles used are proper,
and that records are produced in the form desired by management. A good accounting
manual should aid in the training of new employecs. Although developing the manual will
take some time and effort, we belicve this time will be more than offset by time saved later in
iraining and supervising accounting personnel. Also, in the process of the comprehensive
review of existing accounting procedures for the purpose of developing the manual,
management might discover procedures that can be eliminated or improved to make the
system more efficient and effective.

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencics, that
results in more than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements
will not be prevented or detected by the Town of Lake Park, Florida’s internal control.

Our consideration of the internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose
described in the first paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies
in the internal control that might be significant deficiencies and, accordingly, would not
necessarily disclose all significant deficiencies that are also considered to be material
weaknesses. However, we believe that the significant deficiency described above is not a
material weakness.

Compliance and Other Matters
As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether Town of Lake Park, Florida’s financial

statements are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain
provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which
could have a direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts.
However, providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our
audit, and accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no
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instances of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standards.

We noted certain matters that we have reported to management of the Town of Lake Park,
Florida in the attached management letter dated March 30, 2010,

The Town of Lake Park, Florida’s response to the findings identified in our audit is described in
the attached letter dated March 30, 2010. We did not audit Town of Lake Park, Florida's
response and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, Town Commission,

and federal awarding agencics and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not
be used by anyone other than these specified partics.

Neurlin et + Mimn., £A.

March 30, 2010
West Palm Beach, Florida

109



NIH NOWLEN, HOLT & MINER,

& IM CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

WEST PALM BEACH QFFICE
215 FIFTH STREET, SUITE 200
POST OFFICE BOX 347
WEST PALM BEACH. FLORIDA 334020347
TELEPHONE (561) B58-3080
FAX (561) B35-0628

MANAGEMENT LETTER

The Honorable Mayor and Members of the Town Commission
Town of Lake Park, Florida

PA.

EVEMETT B NOWLEN (vm0-1904). G
EDOWARD T HOLT, CPA

WILLLAM B MINER. CPa

ROBERT W HENDRIX. JR., CPA
JANET A BARICEVICH. CPA

KATHLEEN A. MINER. CPA
TERRAY L. MORTON, JA . GRA
N. RONALD BENMETT, CRA

J MICHAEL STEVENS. CFA
DANIEL A, KIRCHMAN, CPA
ALEXIA G VARGA, GPA
BRIAN J. BRESCIA, CFP®, CrA
KARA D. PETERSON, GrA

BELLE GLADE QFFICE

333 8 E 2nd STREET

POST OFFICE BOX 238

BELLE GLADE, FLORIDA 33430-0338
TELEPHONE (581) 998-5612

FAX (561} 298-6248

We have audited the basic financial statements of the Town of Lake Park, Florida, as of and for the
year ended September 30, 2009, and have issued our report thereon dated March 30, 2010.

We conducted our audit in accordance with U.S. generally accepted auditing standards, and
Government Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. We have
issucd our Report on Internal Control over Financial Reporting and on Compliance and Other
Matters Based on an Audit of Financial Statements Performed in Accordance with Government
Auditing Standards.  Disclosures in that report, which is dated March 30, 2010, should be
considered in conjunction with this management letter.

Additionally, our audit was conducted in accordance with the provisions of Chapter 10.550, Rules
of the Auditor General, which require that we address certain compliance and other matters in the
management letter, if not already addressed in the report on internal control over financial
reporting and on compliance and other matters.

PRIOR YEAR COMMENTS

The Rules of the Auditor General require that we address in the management letter, if not
already addressed in the auditor’s report on compliance and internal controls or schedule of
findings and questioned costs, whether or not recommendations made in the preceding annual
financial audit report have been followed.

As noted in the report on internal control over financial reporting and on compliance and other
matters, Item 2001-1, Written Policies and Procedures, is a prior year comment that continues
to apply. One other prior ycar comment as noted below continues to apply, the other eight
comments in the prior year’s report were corrected.
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2007-6: Accounting for contractual and legal obligations to pay
At September 30, 2009, the Gencral Fund owed the Community Redevelopment Agency
(CRA) Fund $1,286,779 for unpaid incremental tax revenue dating back to fiscal year 2000.
Starting in the prior year the Town has paid the current year’s incremental tax revenue and
penalties and intercst, as well as a payments totaling $750,000 towards the past due balance.
The penalties and interest for the outstanding balance will continue to accrue until all
obligations are met. We recommend that the Town continue to make provisions to repay the
amount owed in a timely manner to diminish the additional expense of penalties and interest.

CURRENT YEAR COMMENTS
Excess of Expenditures Over Appropriations
There were no departments that had expenditures in excess of appropriations.

Oversight Unit and Component Units

The Town of Lake Park, Florida, is a municipal corporation incorporated in 1923 pursuant
to by the Laws of Florida, Chapter 61-2375. Based upon the application of criteria defined
in publications cited in Chapter 10.553, Rules of the Auditor General, the Town has
determined that there are no component units related to the Town.

Consideration of Financial Emergency Criteria

Rules of the Auditor General, requires a statement be included as to whether or not the
local government entity has met one or more of the conditions described in Section
218.503(1), Florida Statutes, and identification of the specific condition(s) met. In
connection with our audit, the results of our procedures did not disclose that the Town of
Lake Park, Florida has met any of the conditions described in Section 218.503(1) during
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2009.

Financial Condition Assessment Procedures

Rules of the Auditor General, require that we apply financial condition asscssment
procedures. In connection with our audit, we applied financial condition assessment
procedures. It is management’s responsibility to monitor the Town’s financial condition,
and our financial condition assessment was based in part on representations made by
management and the review of financial information provide by management. The results
of our procedures did not disclose any matters that are required to be reported.
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Annual Financial Report

Rules of the Auditor General requires that we determine whether the annual financial report
for the Town of Lake Park, Florida for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2009, filed with
the Florida Department of Financial Services pursuant to Section 218.32(1)(a), Florida
Statutes, is in agrecment with the annual financial audit report for the fiscal year ended
September 30, 2009. In connection with our audit, we noted that the two reports were in
substantial agrecment.

Investment of Public Funds

Rules of the Auditor General, requires our audit to include a review of the Town’s
compliance with Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, regarding the investment of public
funds. The results of our procedures did not disclose any instances of noncompliance with
Section 218.415, Florida Statutes, by the Town of Lake Park, Florida for the year ended
September 30, 2009.

Violations of Contracts and Grant Provisions or Abuse

Rules of the Auditor General, requires that we address violations of provisions of contracts
and grant agreements or abusc that have an effect on the financial statements that is less
than material but more than inconsequential. In connection with our audit for the fiscal
year ended Scptember 30, 2009, we did not have any such findings.

Matters Inconsequential to the Financial Statements

Rules of the Auditor General, requires based on professional judgment, the reporting of the
following matters that are inconsequential to the financial statements, considering both
quantitative and qualitative factors: (1) violations of laws, rules, regulations, and
contractual provisions or abuse that have occurred, or were likely to have occurred, and
would have an immaterial effect on the financial statements; (2) improper expenditures or
illegal acts that would have an immaterial effect on the financial statements; and (3)
control deficiencies that are not significant deficiencies, including, but not limited to; (a)
improper or inadequate accounting procedurcs; (b) failures to properly record financial
transactions; and (c) other inaccuracies, shortages, defalcations, and instances of fraud
discovered by, or that come to the attention of, the auditor. In connection with our audit for
the fiscal year ended September 30, 2009, we did not have any such findings.

This report is intended for the information of management, members of the Town Commission,
federal awarding agencies, and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be
used by anyone other than the specified parties.
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The Town of Lake Park, Florida’s response to the findings identificd in our audit is described in
the attached letter dated March 30, 2010. We did not audit Town of Lake Park, Florida's
response and, accordingly, we express no opinion on it.

NewinHott 4 Mimn, PA.

March 30, 2010
West Palm Beach, Florida
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f  TOWN OF LAKE PARK
e m senns s e FINANCE DEPARTMENT

March 30, 2010

The Honorable Mayor, Vice-Mayor,
Town Commissioners and Town Manager

RE: Response to the Report on Internal Control and the Management Letter required by the
Rules of the Auditor General for the State of Florida for the Fiscal Year ended September 30,
2009,

I have received a copy of the Report on Internal Control and the Management Letter and offer
the following responses:

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL
Imternal Contrel over Financial Reporting
2001-1: Written Policies and Procedures

The entire re-write of the Handbook of Procedures for Employees (Employee Handbook)
required hundreds of staff hours to complete over the course of two fiscal years. Many new
policies were established and old ones were updated. Payroll procedures were standardized
among departments and leave policies were implemented. Written procedures for many other
functions of the Finance Department have been partially drafted. Due to the extensive nature of
this undertaking and the limited staff within the Finance Department, the Town will consider
appropriating funds to engage an outside consultant to assist with the development of a formal
accounting policies and procedures manual. This will be a significant undertaking and due to
budget constraints will probably not be completed during the current fiscal year.

MANAGEMENT LETTER

PRIOR YEAR COMMENTS

2007-6: Accounting for contractual and legal obligations to pay

Current year obligations have been paid timely in accordance with statutory requirements. As

noted, the Town has begun to pay the delinquents amounts due the CRA and will continue to do
so annually until paid in full.
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CURRENT YEAR COMMENTS

There are no current year comments that require remedial action.

Should you have any questions or concerns, please do not hesitate to contact me.
Sincerely,

Anne M. Costello
Finance Director
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Town of Lake Park Town Commission

Meeting Date: May 5, 2010

PUBLIC HEARING
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[ S I —

Public Hearing

[] ORDINANCE ON FIRST READING [ ]

[] GENERAL APPROVAL OF ITEM

[] Other:

SUBJECT: EXTENSION OF FRANCHISE AGREEMENT

Agenda Request Form

Agenda Item No. '

[X]

Ordinance on Second Reading

RESOLUTION

[] DISCUSSION

(X]

BID/RFP AWARD
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Finance
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Attachments:
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Summary Explanation/Background: On June 3, 2010 the franchise agreement with Waste
Management, Inc. of Florida is due to expire. It is recommended that the Town approve an
amendment to this agreement to extend the franchise for the period commencing June 4, 2010 and
terminating September 30, 2010. This extension will allow services to continue, uninterrupted, to the
businesses and residents of the Town that require roll-off container and compactor services while
the Town reviews options available for these services and makes a determination which direction to
take that will be in the best interest of the Town and its’ citizenry for these services.




RESOLUTION NO, 19-05-10

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE TOWN
OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA AUTHORIZING AND DIRECTING
THE MAYOR TO EXECUTE A THIRD AMENDMENT TO THE
FRANCHISE AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE TOWN OF LAKE
PARK AND WASTE MANAGEMENT OF FLORIDA, INC. FOR
ROLL-OFF CONTAINER COLLECTION SERVICES; AND
PROVIDING AN EFFECTIVE DATE.

WHEREAS, the Town of Lake Park (“Town™) is a municipal corporation of the State of
Florida with such power and authority as has been conferred upon it by the Florida Constitution
and Chapter 166, Florida Statutes: and

WHEREAS, the Town and Waste Management of Florida. Inc. (“*Contractor™) have
previously executed a Franchise Agreement whereby Contractor is providing Roll-Off Container
Collection services (the “Agreement™). and:

WHEREAS, pursuant to paragraph 1.3 of the Agreement the term of the Agreement
expires June 3, 2010; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to paragraph 1.4 of the Agreement the term may be renewed for
terms upon mutual agreements of the parties; and

WHEREAS, the Town has proposed to renew the Agreement for an additional term
commencing on June 4, 2010 and terminating September 30, 2010 and the Contractor agrees
with the Town’s proposal ; and

WHEREAS, the Town Commission has determined that it is in the best interest of the
citizens of the Town to renew the Agreement with the Contractor for an additional three month
term.

NOW THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COMMISSION OF
THE TOWN OF LAKE PARK:

SECTION 1.
The Whereas clauses are incorporated herein and are true and correct.

SECTION 2.
The Mayor is hereby authorized and directed to execute the Third Amendment to the
Agreement with the Contractor.

SECTION 3.
This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption.



THIRD AMENDMENT TO FRANCHISE AGREEMENT FOR ROLL-OFF
CONTAINER COLLECTION SERVICES WITHIN THE TOWN OF LAKE PARK

THIS SECOND AMENDMENT is entered into this day of 2010, effective
June 4, 2010, by and between the Town of Lake Park, a municipal corporation
organized, with a business address of 535 Park Avenue, Lake Park, Florida 33403
(Town), and Waste Management Inc. of Florida, a Florida corporation, with a business
address at 2700 NW 48" Street, Pompano Beach, Florida 33073 (“Contractor”).

WITNESSETH:

WHEREAS, the Town is a municipal corporation of the State of Florida with such
power and authority as has been conferred upon it by the Florida Constitution and
Chapter 166, Florida Statutes; and

WHEREAS, the Town and Contractor have previously executed an Agreement
whereby Contractor is providing Roll-Off Container Collection services (the
‘Agreement”), and;

WHEREAS, pursuant to paragraph 1.3 of the Agreement the term of the
Agreement expires June 3, 2010; and

WHEREAS, pursuant to paragraph 1.4 of the Agreement may be renewed for
terms upon the mutual agreement of the parties; and

WHEREAS, the Town has proposed to renew the Agreement for an additional
term commencing June 4, 2010 and terminating September 30, 2010 and the
Contractor has agreed to said proposal; and

WHEREAS, the Town Commission has determined that it is in the best interest of
the citizens of the Town to renew the Agreement with the Contractor for an additional
three month term.

NOW THEREFORE, for and in consideration of the mutual promises and
covenants hereinafter contained to be kept and performed by the parties hereto, and for
other good and valuable consideration, the receipt and sufficiency of which is hereby
acknowledged, the parties agree as follows:

1. Recitals: The foregoing recitals are true and correct and are incorporated herein.

2. Term: Section 1.3 is amended to provide that the term shall be renewed for an
additional term commencing June 4, 2010 and shall terminate on September 30,
2010.



3. Roll-off Collection Rates: Section 3.2 is amended to provide that the rates for all
Collection services shall not be adjusted for the renewal period.

4. Except as amended herein, the Agreement shall remain in full force and effect
through the term as hereby amended.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Town and the Contractor have executed this
amendment to the Agreement this day of 2010.

ATTEST: TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA
(TOWN)

Vivian Mendez-Lemley, Town Clerk Desca DuBois, Mayor

ATTEST: WASTE MANAGEMENT OF FLORIDA, INC.

(CONTRACTOR)




Anne Costello

From: Carter, Harold [HCarter@wm.com)
Sent: Tuesday, April 27, 2010 2:55 PM
To: Anne Costello

Subject: Re: Ext. to Franch.

Thank you Anne.
Waste Management agrees with the request.

Butch

From: Anne Costello <acostello@lakeparkflorida.gov>
To: Carter, Harold

Sent: Tue Apr 27 13:45:00 2010

Subject: Ext. to Franch.

Butch,

Per our conversation, the Town wishes to extend the franchise agreement with Waste Management for a period of
approx. four months until September 30, 2010. This extension will be at the same terms and conditions that are in
effect currently. | will prepare the necessary paperwork and submit it to the Town Commission for approval.

Anne

Anne M. Costello
Director of Finance
Town of Lake Park
(561)881-3350
(561)881-3358(Fax)

acostello@lakeparkflorida.gov

Waste Management recycles enough paper every year to save 41 million trees. By not printing
this email, you can help save even more.



TAB 2



Town of Lake Park Town Commission
Agenda Request Form

Meeting Date: May 5, 2010 Agenda ltem No. 2

[] PUBLIC HEARING (] RESOLUTION

[] ORDINANCE ON FIRST READING [] ORDINANCE ON SECOND READING

[] BID/RFP Award

[ ] GENERAL APPROVAL OF ITEM [X]

[] Other:

[] DISCUSSION

CONSENT AGENDA

SUBJECT: Commission Approval to Prequalify Roofing Companies

Date:

RECOMMENDED MOTIONIACTIQN: APPR
Approved by Town Manager M 4 { /{F

Richard Pittman/CRA Project Manager

April 28, 2010

Name/Title Date of Actual Submittal
Originating Department: Costs: 75,000 ;ttach.ments.
: one:
Public Works Funding Source:
Series 2009 Loan Proceeds
Acct. #
Department Review: [ ] Fire Dept [1PBSO
[ ) Community Affairs ____ [1Grants (] Public Works
[ ] Community Development | [1Human Resources (] Town Attorney
[ ] Finance [1 L|br.ary [ ]Town Clerk
{ ] Marina [ ] Town Manager

Advertised:
Date:

Paper:
[x] Not Required

All parties that have an interest
in this agenda item must be
notified of meeting date and
time. The following box must
be filled out to be on agenda.

Yes | have notified
everyone

or
Not applicable in this
case :

Please inilial one. ﬁo




Summary Explanation/Background: The Series 2009 Loan Proceeds fund has $75,000
earmarked for roof replacement at the Sheriffs’ office building located west of Town Hall.
The building is occupied and will be occupied during the roof replacement. It is imperative
that a well qualified roofing contractor be used on this building. Due to the nature of the
economy and the rigid roof requirements, it is recommended that the Town prequalify
roofing companies interested to bid this roof project and other potential Town roof projects.

The prequalification process would involve a legal notice advertised in the Palm Beach
Post advising that the Town of Lake Park is seeking qualified roofing contracting firms.
The advertisement would inform interested firms to contact the Town Clerk to receive a
pre-qualification document which lists specific criteria that roof contracting firms must
demonstrate in order to become pre-qualified. There would be instructions and a
deadline for submittal packages. Submittals would be reviewed and all firms submitting
would be notified as to their firm’s status as to fulfilling the criteria. Roof contractors
meeting the prequalification criteria would then be invited to bid the Sheriff building roof.
The low bidder from this pre-qualified group would most likely be awarded the project.

Criteria for pre-qualification would generally include experience, project & credit
references, work force, and insurance & bonding. Specific criteria would include but not
be limited to licensing and ability to provide roof warranties from the roof product
manufactures.

The prequalification process will encourage the better qualified companies to
participate.

Approval to proceed to pre-qualify roofing contractors is recommended.



TAB 3



Town of Lake Park Town Commission

Meeting Date:

[] PUBLIC HEARING

[] ORDINANCE ON SECOND READING [ ]

[] ORDINANCE ON FIRST READING [1]

[] GENERAL APPROVAL OF ITEM X1
[] Other:
SUBJECT:

May 5, 2010

Agenda Request Form

Agenda Item No. 5

[] RESOLUTION

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: Approve

DISCUSSION
BID/RFP AWARD

CONSENT AGENDA

Proclamation for Water Reuse Week May 16-22, 2010

Approved by Town Manager %_/ % )Ag

N

7

Name/Title

M,

Date: 4I/-Z‘/f// )

. /
A:EQ dQ 29N 2010
Date of Actual Submittal

‘Originating Department:

Costs: $

Attachments:
Email from South Florida

Town Clerk Funding Source: Water Management,
Acct # Proclamation
Department Review: [] Grants [ ] Public Works
[ ] Attorney - [} Human Resources [ ] Recreation
[ 1 Community Development___ | [] Library [X] Town Clerk M L
[]Finance [ ] Marina [ ] Town Manager
[1Fire Dept []1PBSO
- - Yes | have notified
; . All parties that have an interest
Advgrhsed. in this agenda item must be everyone
Date: notified of meeting date and or o
Paper: time. The following box must Not applicable in this case:

[X] Not Required

be filled out to be on agenda.

YME
Please initial one.

Summary Explanation/Background: Governor Crist has proclaimed May 16-22, 2010 as
Water Reuse Week. The South Florida Water Management District and its Governing
Board supports this initiative, and the South Florida Water Management District is
asking local governments to adopt their own version of the attached proclamation.
Water reuse is critical for South Florida to maintain both a vibrant natural
environment and viable public water supply. Staff requests the adoption of this

proclamation.




Proclamation
Town of Lake Park, Florida
WATER REUSE WEEK

WHERFAS, safe, clean, and sustainable water resources are essential to
Florida’s environment, economy, citizens and visitors; and

WHEREAS, Florida’s water supplies are finite, while our population and our
need for water resources continues to increase; and

WHEREAS, water reuse provides a means for conserving and augmenting
Florida’s precious water resources; and

WHEREAS, Florida has established the encouragement and promotion of
water reuse as state objectives in Chapters 373 and 403, Florida Statutes, and

WHEREAS, Florida’s permitted reuse capacity exceeds 1.4 billion gallons per
day (over 58 percent of Florida’s total permitted capacity for all domestic
wastewater treatment facilities); and

WHEREAS, the State of Florida has declared the week of May 10 — 16, 2009
to be Water Reuse Week in Florida; and

WHEREAS, the Town of Lake Park has joined with the State of Florida, the
Florida Department of Environmental Protection, and the (name of water
management district) in encouraging and promoting water reuse and conservation;
and

WHEREAS, the Town of Lake Park has implemented a water reuse program
and encourages efficient and effective use of reclaimed water; and

NOW, THEREFORE, be it resolved that by virtue of the authority vested in
me as Mayor of Town of Lake Park do hereby proclaim the week of May 10 - 16,
2009 as Water Reuse Week. The Town of Lake Park is calling upon each citizen and
business to help protect our precious resource by practicing water conservation and
to use reclaimed water in an efficient and effective means.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, 1 have hereunto set my hand this 5t day of May, 2010.

Desca DuBois, Mayor

Vivian Lemley, Town Clerk



Vivian Lemley

From: Corry, Laura [lcorry@sfwmd.gov]

Sent: Thursday, March 25, 2010 2:08 PM

To: Vivian Lemley

Subject: FW: Water Conservation Month and Water Reuse Week Proclamations

Page 1 of 2

Attachments: Water Conservation Month April 2009 proclamation.doc; April WCM GB Resolution 2009.pdf; Reuse Week Model

Local Proclamation 2009.doc; Reuse Week SFWMD Resolution.pdf
Good Afternoon Vivian.

Do you think the Town of Lake Park would adopt the two attached proclamations? One is for
Water Conservation Month and the other is for Water Reuse Week. Water Reuse Week will be
May 16-22.2010. If so. please let me know the date of the adoptions.

Let me know if you have any questions.
Thank you very much.

Laura R. H. Corry

Lead Intergovernmental Representative
Palm Beach County Service Center

South Florida Water Management District
3301 Gun Club Road

West Palm Beach, FL 33406

Office: (561) 682-6012

Cell: (561) 906-4641

Fax: (561) 682-2346

‘ ‘% LOGOD_WATERUSE.Saw

l

From: Corry, Laura
Sent: Tuesday, February 09, 2010 10:25 AM

To: Corry, Laura
Cc: Rodriguez, Jesus; Schneider, Natalie; Sewell, Aneta; Maeyens, Dee; Koptak, Kimberiey; 'James

Titcomb'; 'Kristen Puhalainen'
Subject: Water Conservation Month and Water Reuse Week Proclamations

Good Morning Everyone,

Subject: Water Conservation Month and Water Reuse Week Proclamations for Local Governments,
Utilities and other Qrganizations

This year, Governor Charlie Crist will once again proclaim April as Water Canservation Month and May
16-22 as Water Reuse Weelk. in continuing these annual traditions, the Governor has made it clear that
water conservation and water reuse are important components of a dependable water supply. The
South Florida Water Management District and its Governing Board support these initiatives, and we are
asking local governments, utilities and other organizaticns to adopt their own versions of the attached
proclamations. Please notify us of your participation by contacting me at 561-682-6012 or via email at
lcorry@sfwmd.gov with your adoption date(s) or if you have any questions.




Page 2 of 2

Water conservation and water reuse are critical for South Florida to maintain both a vibrant natural environment and viable
public water supply. Given the lingering impacts of a severe multi-year water shortage, it is more important than ever for
communities to be reminded that conservation and reuse can ease the pain of water shortage and help protect our vital water
resources for the environment and future generations of South Floridians.

The District’s goal is to have the largest number of Water Conservation Month and Water Reuse Week proclamations in the
State, and they will be presented to the Governor at a special ceremony during the April Cabinet meeting. We therefore
encourage social, cultural and environmental organizations to also adopt these proclamations, and if you do decide to adopt
them, please let us know by Friday, March 26, so that we can compile our list for Governor Crist. Again, for your convenience, |
have attached sampie proclamations.

Thank you for your consideration. We look forward to hearing from you.

Laura R. H. Corry

Lead Intergovernmental Representative
Palm Beach County Service Center

South Florida Water Management District
3301 Gun Club Road

West Palm Beach, FI. 33406

Office: (561) 682-6012

Cell: (561) %06-4641

Fax: (561) 682-2346

» LOGO_WATERUSE.Saw 1

o |
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Town of Lake Park Town Commission
Agenda Request Form

Meeting Date: May 5, 2010 Agenda ltem No. l’(‘
[ ] PUBLIC HEARING [1] RESOLUTION
[1] Ordinance on Second Reading

[1] Public Hearing [] DISCUSSION

[1] ORDINANCE ON FIRST READING [ ] BID/IRFP AWARD
[1 GENERAL APPROVAL OF ITEM [1] CONSENT AGENDA
[X] BOARD MEMBERSHIP

SUBJECT: Board Membership Appointments

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: To Appaint Two Members to the Tree Board.
. . N
.S Date: ﬁZZ%Z (L

29110

Date of Actual Submittal

4 4 >

==

e X -
0"9"‘?'"9 DCelpa:m{ent. Costs: $ Attachments:
own uiler Boar . H
Funding Source: d Applications
Acct. #
Department Review: []Finance [1Personnel
[] City Attorney []1Fire Dept [ 1 Public Works
[ ] Community Affairs ____ (] Library [X] Town Clerk ¥ ATL
[ ] Community Development__ | [1PBSO [1 Town Manager
. . Yes | have notified
. . All parties that have an interest
Adv_ertlsed. in this agenda item must be everyone X
Date: notified of meeting date and or
Paper: ___ time. The following box must Not applicable in this
[x] Not Required be filled out to be on agenda. case :
Please initial one.

Summary Explanation/Background: Brenden Beard and Malynda Downing have both
expressed interest in becoming members of the Town’s Tree Board. There are
currently no active members on this board. There is a need for at least three regular
members in order for this board to have a quorum and meet. This board should
consist of a total of five regular members and two alternate members. Mr. Beard and
Ms. Downing’s applications are attached.




The Town of Lake Park

LAKE PARK TOWN HALL NATIONAL HISTORIC SITE
“Jewel of the Palm Beaches”

Application to Serve on Town Boards and Committees

This application serves as an information file of the skills, talents and Interests of citizens who
are willing to serve on advisory boards and committees for the Town of Lake Park. When an
opening occurs on one of the Boards on which you have indicated a desire to Serve, your
application will be submitted to the Town Commission. You will be notified by mail when
appointment has been made.

Please print the following information:

Name: D QJO(\‘\ Ny AN Q\\{ (\(\O\ bf:&*\\ NE.

Last ~J First Middle
Address: qus ( (Scent C,\(de @(\D in &O C,ﬁ KGPGF%,S\;((;S
Telephone: home work cell _S7a/~ YO - 40
E-Mail Address NG\ 0 A OO0 e ke, CONA
! "7 "Yes No
Are you a resident of Lake Park K G
Are you a non-resident business owner in Lake Park 0 ®
Are you a registered voter (Response to this question is not mandatory) = O
Do you currently serve on a Town Board or Committee 0 b 4
If so, which one(s): -
Have you been convicted of a crime O I

If so, when? where?

Please indicate your preference by number 1 through “5” of no more than five boards on
which you wish to serve, with #1 being the most desired and #5 being the least desired.

Choice # Board Choice # Board
X R Code Compliance * X 4 Tree Board
X CRA Board (Comununity Redevelopment Agency} O Planning & ZOIIil’lg/HiStOI'iC
= : Harbor Marina Advisory Board Preservation Board *
0 Construction Board of Adjustments W Q) Library Board
& Appeals

Please note: Membership on these {*} Boards require members 10 complele an annual financial disclosure form pursuantto F.S. 112 3145 (1¥a)

{2¥b). {7)




535 ®ark Avenue, Lake Park, Florida 33403 (561)881-3311 Faxz (561)881-3313
Lakg Park Board Application

Y our Name: W\O\\\{ (\dcx \A) f—\k\CLQ(\\mQ

page 2

Please indicate the reason for your interest in your first and second choices: -

[ Shue Frees V' 1 Dove e ekl Oy Voonte cod |
N4 (’ufnom%[\/ ux(&»)vm OK(D\X\\ ’U\Q’\E é’\f\f‘\\gﬁmg
@J/re@\n Leoant 4 Yo dn s loeod 1B cecXe Cm“\\w\r X
&P O Lo 0K C'UY\N\Q*'\V\V\{ %=

Number of Meetings of the above boards you have attended in the past six months: |

A
ST

Y our educational background: (High school, College, Graduate School or other trainin g)

What is/was your profession or occupation: ()Q-C\CQ, OOCoerEe —Q,( m—\-(_)-‘g 0@-@(@
How long: ,-Q \I}r} \)

Please indicate employment experience that you feel relates to your desired service on an

0920 et SETIo
%acb Cascrentiy | oo W\eg@wz mcfwc&\é:r o oo C rmorac,-\:ﬁgcg
o e

Please indicate other general cxperience or community involvement that you feel qualifies you to

serve on the boards you have chosen: \(‘Q{“C}Dﬁ-\- ok \f\—\E{GC.\— Clob "Q)\’
‘hee Neaes, i¥aN \r\\f\h Scheal,

advisory board or committee:

Feel free to attach additional sheets if required. Also, please attach your resume, if available.
Please return your completed form to the Office of the Town Clerk, 535 Park Avenue, Lake
Park, Florida 33403

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE STATEMENT AND ANSWERS PROVIDED ARE
TRUE AND ACCURATE. L LINDERSTAND THAT ANY FALSE STATEMENTS MAY
BE CAUSE FOR RE AL FROM A BOARD OR COMMITTEE, IF APPOINTED:

M%A@Ww, Date: D(J ~OF - I O
%

Signature: 7




The Town of Lake Park,

LAKE PARK TOWN HALL NATIONAL HISTORIC SITE

“Jewel of the Paim Beaches”

Application to Serve on Town Boards and Committees

This application serves as an information file of the skills, talents and interests of citizens who
are willing to serve on advisory boards and committees for the Town of Lake Park. When an
opening occurs on one of the Boards on which you have indicated a desire to serve, your
application will be submitted to the Town Commission. You will be notified by mail when
appointment has been made.

Please print the following information:

Name: gce,,rcl B(c r\f.‘l(..f\ R

Last First Middle

Address: ’505 (_(PSCGI\+ Cl‘( 20 qufporlc /:C 3?‘/03

Telephone: home 56 [3489Y97 work — cell ~
/

E-Mail Address

%’? No
Are you a resident of Lake Park 0
Are you a non-resident business owner in Lake Park o P-4
Are you a registered VOLET (Response to this question is not mandatory) \y 0
Do you currently serve on a Town Board or Committee 0 ‘I}{/

If so, which one(s):

Have you been convicted of a crime O \P_'<

If so, when? where?

Please indicate your preference by number “1” through “5” of no more than five boards on
which you wish to serve, with #1 being the most desired and #5 being the least desired.

Choice # Board Choice # Board
0 > Code Compliance * O [ Tree Board
Cl Vf CRA Board (Community Redevelopment Agency) C 2. Planning & Zoning/HiSton'c
0 Harbor Marina Advisory Board Preservation Board *
O 5 Construction Board of Adjustments [J Library Board
& Appeals

Please note: Membership on these (*) Bpards require members 1o complete an annual financial disclosure form pursuant to F.8 112.3145 {1)¥a),

2 7



535 ®ark_Avenue, Lake Park, Florida 33403 (561) 881-3311 Fax; (561)881-3313
Lake Park_ Board Application page 2

Y our Name: P)(cr\c\(’, N ?ﬁa ¢ c(

Please indicate the reason for your interest in your first and second choices:
The "1'\»:0 ‘\-l"cmg T f”-tl«ecl t’\g\u(- 0 I/\JTU'C_SJ'
Te wi e é(’cmv_s( 7 /OL-( /J/Q\/I?ZS -3 7
/

/f.)L\C %.:_5’/‘(0-’)/.

Number of Meetings of the above boards you have attended in the past six months: O
Your educational background: (High school, College, Graiuate School or other training)

(_v//cn‘/'/}v F/IL{ (5’/{

Stodent

What is/was your profession or occupation:
How long: / ! ”CC

Please indicate employment experience that you feel relates to your desired service on an

advisory board or committee: Nonc

Please indicate other general experience or community in\fol:?lent that you feel qualifies you to

serve on the boards you have chosen: e c/"C(W\ cC

Feel free to attach additional sheets if required. Also, please attach your resume, if available.

Please return your completed form to the Office of the Town Clerk, 535 Park Avenue, Lake
Park, Florida 33403

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE STATEMENT AND ANSWERS PROVIDED ARE
TRUE AND ACCURATE. | UNDERSTAND THAT ANY FALSE STATEMENTS MAY
BE CAUSE FOR REMOVAL FROM A BOARD OR COMMITTEE, IF APPOINTED:

Signature: : - . M Date: 3/?-3//0







Town of Lake Park Town Commission
Agenda Request Form

Meeting Date: May 5, 2010 Agenda ltem No. 5
[] PUBLIC HEARING [] RESOLUTION
[] Ordinance on Second Reading

[] Public Hearing [] DISCUSSION

[ ] ORDINANCE ON FIRST READING [1] BID/RFP AWARD

[ 1] GENERAL APPROVAL OF ITEM [] CONSENT AGENDA
[X] BOARD MEMBERSHIP

SUBJECT: Board Membership Appointments

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: To Re-appoint One Regular Member to the
Library Board.

o 0

Date of Actual Submittal

P g— - " )
Orlgln_artlng Dcelpa:me“t- Costs: § Attachments:
own er B . .
Funding Source: oard Applications
Acct. #
Department Review: [ ] Finance [1Personnel
[ ] City Attorney []FireDept [ ] Public Works
[ ] Community Affairs [] Library [X] Town Clerk Ym ¢
[ ] Community Development__ || []1PBSO (] Town Manager
. . Yes | have notified
. . All parties that have an interest
Adv_emsed' in this agenda item must be everyone_ X____
Date: notified of meeting date and or o
Paper: time. The following box must Not applicable in this
[x] Not Required be filled out to be on agenda. Case :
Please initial one.

Summary Explanation/Background: Antony Lewis’ Library Board membership term will
be expiring on May 7, 2010. He has requested re-appointment to serve another term
as a regular member of the Library Board. His application is attached.




The Town of Lake Park,

LAKE PARK TOWN HALL NATIONAL HISTORIC SITE

“Jewel of the Palin Beaches”

Application to Serve on Town Boards and Committees

This application serves as an information file of the skills, talents and interests of citizens who
are willing to serve on advisory boards and committees for the Town of Lake Park, When an
opening occurs on one of the Boards on which you have indicated a desire to serve, your
application will be submitted to the Town Commission. You will be notified by mail when
appointment has been made.

Please print the following information:

Name: /c’buflf /7ﬁdé)/h/ -

Last First / Middle

Address:_ 225 Fast Tlec  Divec
Telephone: home S5/ §5/- §72Y work 67 - ¥7¢-/120cell $6/ 752 -6534

Are you a resident of Lake Park ;y 1;0

Are you a non-resident business owner in Lake Park O 0

Are you a registered voter (Response to this question is not mandatory) El/ O

Do you currently serve on a Town Board or Committee O [11/
If so, which one(s):

Have you been convicted of a crime d :.\/
If so, when? where?

Please indicate your preference by number “1” through “5” of no more than five boards on
which you wish to serve, with #1 being the most desired and #5 being the least desired.

Choice # Board Choice # Board

0 Code Compliance * a Pension Trust Fund (Police)

d CRA Board (Community Redevelopment Agency) 0 Planmng & Zoning/Histon'c

g/ Harbor Marina Advisory Board Preservation Board *
Library Board 0 Tree Board

a Merit Board O Other:

0 Construction Board of Adjustments & Appeals




535 Park Avenus, Lake Park, Florida 33403 (561) 881-3311 Fax; (561)881-3313
Lake ®ark Board Application page 2

Your Name: /’;2[)’//3?/ / . é E LS

Please indicate the reason for your interest in your first and second choices:

7 have _a _arecl deadl of /nterest
/A ("(:/ucu’/wﬂ\a DfOC{/’CI’)"nﬂ/n&r qLA {Z

7‘/4& o bbrens e adf s rnL how s -
ff lilke é//L SJUJ@/\%

tings of the above boards you have attended in the past six months:

Number of M
Your educational background: (High school, College, Graduate School or other training)

betor  of  Edo cation — Nove  So dhecstan

What is/was your profession or occupation: . §C Loo / ad ek !}\,'5 7£‘r2< ’/a /[
How long: /f'l//{a/_(

’

Pleasc indicate employment experience that you feel relates to your desired service on an
advisory board or committee: - /6 JS3roonn Ea ¢ A ey v
S)A f‘jﬁajj < hoe)  odpnic dvato {or /7 L(qu_

Please indicate other general experience or community involvement thal you feel qualifies you to

serve on the boards you have chosen: / /ﬂ(;u.( _S/p €N J—‘ < g f}‘_’c‘/}
deal of my Servie cc lote 2rid acsitol
,P_/J g Ic. / j%do /ué/){ / /7 /D/;/\f’n}/{ﬁd{f}q // DCO{/&M/SI

T Y
—C)\(‘Q\ (ats;j%l_ (o4 uﬂ@ c Orapaunt Slorermad

Feel free to attach a ects if required. Also, plepse attach your resuine, if available.

Please return your completed form to the Office of the Town Clerk, 535 Park Avenue, Lake
Park, Florida 33403

I HEREBY CERTIFY THAT THE STATEMENT AND ANSWERS PROVIDED ARE
TRUE AND ACCURATE. I UNDERSTAND THAT ANY FALSE STATEMENTS MAY
BE CAUSE FOR REMOVAL FROM A BOARD OR COMMITTEE, IF APPOINTED:

Signatur%’" Date: L{ZZQ /0 5
7







Town of Lake Park Town Commission

Meeting Date: April 21, 2010

[ ] PUBLIC HEARING

[] Ordinance on Second Reading
[]

Public Hearing

[]  ORDINANCE ON FIRST READING  []
[] GENERAL APPROVAL OF ITEM []

[ Other:

Agenda Request Form

Agenda ltem No. (_p

[X]

RESOLUTION
[]  DISCUSSION
BID/RFP AWARD

CONSENT AGENDA

SUBJECT: Earl Stewart Demolition of Journey's Inn and Subsequent Use of the Lot
for Vehicular Display and Parking for the Dealership.

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: .
Approved by Town Manager . ?Z} /C

Date: 4//2?{/0

Originating Department: | Costs:$ N/A Attachments:
Community Development i Resolution
Fundmg Source: Site Plan
Acct # Staft Memo
Department Review: | []Finance [ ] Personnel
own Aﬁorne% [1Fire Dept [ 1 Public Works
] Community Affairs (1 Library [ 1 Town Clerk
[X] Comtmunity Development [1PBSO [ ] Town Manager

PG Sullivan 4/7/10

Advertised:
Date:

Paper:
[]1 Net Required

All parties that have an interest
in this agenda item must be
notified of meeting date and
time. The following box must
be filled out to be on agenda.

Yes | have notified everyone
PG Suflivan 4/7/10
or
Not applicable in this
case :

Pleasa initlal one,

Summary Explanation/Background: Back in September *09 Ear! Stewart Toyota applied for a demolition
permit to take down the Journey’s Inn. He (his sons) appeared before the Commission and the Commission agreed to let
him tear it down and have a temporary parking lot in its place until such time a5 the economy turned around and he could
expand his dealership. In order to do all this he needed 10 meet certain regulations and follow NPDES (drainage Tegs)
guidelines. To accomplish this he needed to submit a detailed site plan. He now has a site plan that is acceptable to
Town staff. The plan meels engineering/drainage standards and provides for a little bit of landscaping which the
commission agreed to at the time, understanding that at some point in the future he will fully cotmply with the landscape
and building code. The one thing we don’t have is a definitive timetable on how long it will be before he moves forward
- with the expansion and comes into compliance with the code. Since this is a temporary situation, staff recommends that

the permit expire April 30, 2012.




Town of Lake Park
Community Development Department

e At %
KT CARR TOWE HALL NATIOMNAL FESTORK® SMTE
“Jewel” of the Talm Beaches

Meeting Date:  April 21, 2010 Patrick Sullivan, AICP, CED, Director (Q \\Q
Memo Date:  April 9, 2010 .\\(0

To: Town Commission Re: Stewart Toyota Parking Lot

Earl Stewart Toyota has applied for a demolition permit to take down the Journey’s Inn and the
Cuban Restaurant. The applicant is requesting that he be allowed to demolish all the buildings on
the Journey’s Inn block. Once the buildings are demolished the foot prints of those buildings would
be filled in and graded with crushed asphalt. Any existing pavement would remain. He will also be
removing all the foliage/vegetation that is growing on the interior of the site. The site will be used
for a parking and storage lot once the buildings have been demolished.

In order to demolish the building the following must occur:

= A permit must be obtained from the Lake Park Building Department (this has been applied
for)

= Any asbestos must be removed prior to demolition (this has been completed)

* An NPDES (National Pollutant Discharge Elimination System) permit must be obtained
(this will be done prior to demolition). It is required by the EPA.

* A plan for stormwater dispersal must be filed with the department and approved by the town
engineer {this has been completed)

The future use of this property will be for a temporary parking lot for Stewart Toyota upon which
new and used vehicles will be displayed, stored and parked. The applicant has asked for this to
continue until such time as Stewart Toyota is able to construct additional buildings and expand the
dealership on this lot. The applicant is asking the Town to relax its code standards until such time as
he is able to construct the expansion on this site. Because this is a temporary project that requires a
relaxation of the code standards it must be reviewed and approved by the Commission. The
Commission reviewed the request on September 9, 2009 and asked the applicant to prepare a site
plan and return to the Commission for review.

The following were specific areas of concemn to staff:

Landscaping. The applicant is proposing minimal landscaping. Our code requires all vehicular
areas to be landscaped. The applicant is removing all the existing interior vegetation and will be
adding trees to the perimeter of the property.

Staff recommended at the first meeting that minimal landscaping be required and the Commission
agreed. The applicant has since agreed to place a minimum of 18 trees around the perimeter of the
site at staff’s recommendation. Since this use is temporary, staff would also like to see a date certain
that the property will come into compliance with the landscaping code.

Paving. The applicant proposes to leave the existing asphalt and does propose any new paving. He
plans to fill the demolished building footprints with crushed asphalt. Our code requires vehicular
lots to be paved with asphalt or constructed of an equivalent durable surface.
Patrick Sullivan, AICP, CED. Director
Cammunity Development Department
881-3319 fax BE1-3323



Staff recommends that the demolition footprints be covered with crushed asphalt until such time as
appropriate paving plans can be approved.

Parking Plan. The existing site has been used for storing vehicles from the Toyota dealership.
Parking was allowed as a temporary solution until such time as permanent plans for the use of the
site were applied for. The applicant is now asking for an extension of that temporary use.

Staff recommends that the site plan for the lot clearly notes that this is a temporary use.

Drainage. The demolition of the buildings can potentially change how stormwater runoff affects the
area. Therefore, a stormwater plan is essential.
Staff notes that the site plan submitted meets the Town’s stormwater runoff standards.

Permit Duration. This is a temporary solution to remove the Journey’s Inn and provide Stewart
Toyota with much needed vehicle storage area. As of the date of this memo staff has not received
any timetable that provides for turning the temporary lot into a permanent site that complies with the
code. This temporary use should only be atlowed to continue for a short period of time.

Staff recommends that the Commission agree upon a permit expiration date. Staff suggests a two
year time frame. The permit will expire on April 30, 2012. At that time the applicant will have to
either apply to the Town Commission for a new temporary permit (which will include paying the
appropriate fees) or must be in the process of moving forward with the expansion of the dealership
through preliminary submittals of appropriate site plans.

Patrick Sullivan. AICP, CED. Director
Community Development Department
B8[-3319

lax 881-3323

Pl AR} .



RESOLUTION NO. 20-05-10

A RESOLUTION OF THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE
TOWN OF LAKE PARK, FLORIDA, APPROVING AN
APPLICATION FOR A DEMOLITION PERMIT SUBMITTED
BY EARL STEWART TOYOTA TO DEMOLISH ALL
BUILDINGS FOR THE PROERTY FORMERLLY KNOWN AS
THE JOURNEY’S INN AND APPROVING A SITE PLAN
AUTHORIZING THE DEVELOPMENT OF A TEMPORARY
PARKING LOT THEREON.

WHEREAS, Earl Stewart Toyota (the Applicant) has submitted an application for a permit
to demolish the structures formerly occupied by the Journey’s Inn and the former Cuban Restaurant
(the subject property) located on US Highway One within the Town of Lake Park; and

WHEREAS, the subject property is legally described as: KELSEY CITY LTS 1 TO 11 INC
/LESS W 20 FT RD R/W/ & LTS 12 TO 22 INC BLK 12. PCN 36-43-42-20-01-121-0010.

WHEREAS, the Applicant proposes to demolish the buildings and fill and grade the
footprints of these buildings with crushed asphalt for use by Earl Stewart Toyota as a temporary
parking and storage lot for new and used vehicles, and

WHEREAS, in September 2009 the Town Commission agreed to the Applicant’s request to
demolish the buildings and use the property as a temporary parking and storage lot until such time as
Stewart Toyota is able to construct additional buildings and expand the dealership on this site
consistent with an approved site plan; and

WHEREAS, the Applicant has submitted a detailed site plan which meets

engineering/drainage standards and provides for minimal landscaping; and does not meet the

landscaping code; and



Resol #
Page 2 of 3

WHEREAS, the staff recommends the Commission approve the demolition permit and site
plan application for temporary parking and has presented to the Town Commission its
recommendations; and

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE TOWN COMMISSION OF THE

TOWN OF LAKE PARK:



Resol #
Page 3 of 3

Section 1. The whereas clauses are hereby incorporated as true and correct as the findings of
the Town Commission.

Section 2. The Town Commission hereby approves a permit authorizing the demolition of
the buildings which formerly were known as the Journey’s Inn and El Colonial Cuban Restaurant.

Section 3. The Town Commission hereby approves a site plan for KELSEY CITY LTS 1
TO 11 INC/LESSW20FTRD R/W/ & LTS 12 TO 22 INC BLK 12. PCN 36-43-42-20-01-121-
0010 authorizing the construction of a temporary parking and storage lot on the subject property.

Section 4. The use of the subject property as a temporary parking and storage lot is subject

to the following conditions:

A. Landscaping. The Applicant shall place a minimum of 18 trees around the perimeter
of the site.
B. Paving. The Applicant shall cover the demolition footprints with crushed asphalt

until such time as appropriate paving plans can be approved.

C. Parking Plan. The site will be used for parking and storage of new and used vehicles
on a temporary basis until a permanent plan for the use of the site is approved.

D. Permit Duration. The permit will expire on April 30, 2012, at which time the
Applicant will have to either apply for a new temporary permit or must be in the
process of moving forward with the expansion of the dealership.

Section 5. This Resolution shall take effect upon adoption.

D= TIB:LP.General:Resolutions' Earl Stewart Toyota Demol-Site Plan Resol 04-08-10.doc
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Town of Lake Park Town Commission

Meeting Date: May 5, 2010

PUBLIC HEARING

— p— p—

Public Hearing

Agenda Request Form

Agenda ltem No. ’]

[1 RESOLUTION

Ordinance on Second Reading

[X] DISCUSSION

[ ] ORDINANCE ON FIRST READING [ ] BID/RFP AWARD
[ ] GENERAL APPROVAL OF ITEM [] CONSENT AGENDA
[] Other:

SUBJECT: Town Manager Goals, February 1, 2010 through January 31, 2011

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION:

Approved by Town Manager V// / %/ ’5'

Date: 4?/2‘{;//0

Name/Title Date of Actual Submittal
Originating Department: Costs: $ Attachments:
Town Manager Funding Source: Town Manager Goals

Acct. #

Department Review: (] Finance [ ] Personnel

[ ] Town Attorney [ ] Fire Dept [ ] Public Works

[ ] Community Affairs [] Library [ ] Town Clerk

[ ] Community Development___ [ ] Marina [ ] Town Manager
[1PBSO

Advertised:
Date:

Paper:

[1 Not Required

All parties that have an interest
in this agenda item must be
notified of meeting date and
time. The following box must
be filled out to be on agenda.

Yes | have notified
everyone

or
Not applicable in this
case :

Please initial one.

Summary Explanation/Background: The Town Manager’s employment agreement requires
the Town Manager to develop goals annually and present them to the Town Commission for

discussion/approval.

Attached please find a listing of goals, which will be presented to the Coramission via a power

point presentation.




Town Manager Goals
February 1, 2010 — January 30, 2011

Continue to pursue grant funds and combine them with stormwater
utility funds to construct the Stormwater Improvements Project for
Lake Shore Drive.

Continue to pursue funding through the Florida Communities Trust
and through emergency management sources to acquire property west
and south of the ballfields to build a community center and expand the
ballfields.

Continue to implement best practices in creating a welcoming,
business friendly environment in the Town through the Community
Development Department.

Continue to participate in the North County Chamber Economic
Development Advisory Committee to promote Lake Park, and stay
updated on best practices.

Continue to work with the Business Development Board to ensure that
the Town’s “shovel ready” parcels are considered for business
recruitment.

Continue to place emphasis on economic development initiatives for
the Downtown District.

- Develop and host events to be held on Park Avenue to further
introduce and showcase the Downtown.

- Assist existing Park Avenue businesses with facade
improvements, small business loans, marketing, etc.

- Encourage the establishment of a Park Avenue Business
Owners’ Association to promote ownership with economic
development initiatives and to encourage input from the
businesses for the downtown.

- Continue outreach efforts to restaurants, antique dealers, and art
related businesses.

- Continue to capitalize on the arts by “branding” the downtown
as the Arts District.



Promote the Artists’ Studios and Gallery and establish it as a

destination for the business community on Park Avenue.

- Conduct monthly openings to feature studio/display artists’
work.

- Develop and advertise art classes to increase revenue utilizing
under-utilized facilities such as the Lake Shore Park Pavilion,
Marina 2™ floor space and the 2™ floor space located at the ball
field concession stand.

- Budget for, design and construct a pedestrian friendly sculpture
garden at the Art on Park Studio and Gallery to include
furniture, landscaping and sculpture.

Expand the CRA Boundaries.

- Budget for and hire a consultant to perform the necessary steps
to expand the Boundaries in accordance with Commission
direction.

Continue to educate the public regarding the purpose and value of the

CRA and how it is funded.

- Utilize the CRA website, newsletters and cable channel to
continue the education process.

Modify/improve the format of the annual budget.

- Include graphical historical analysis of new construction.

- Include additional description of line items to make the
document more user friendly.

Install tree material in the medians on Date Palm Drive between 6"
and 9" streets utilizing grant funds.

Renovate Ilex Park utilizing grant funds to make it more pedestrian

friendly.

- Install playground equipment, picnic shelter, furniture,
landscaping and fencing.

Continue to work with the Sheriff’'s Department to implement crime
prevention measures.



Institute the necessary steps to develop a referendum question on
street closures.

- Hire a firm to perform traffic counts along the boundaries of the
desired street closure areas.

- Analyze data and develop various alternatives for street
closures.

- Conduct multiple workshops with both Town Commission and
residents.

Institute the necessary steps to develop a referendum question on
increased street lighting.

- Develop and advertise a Request for Proposal (RFP) and hire a
qualified firm to perform a comprehensive analysis of existing
lighting and develop a reliable cost estimate to install additional
lighting throughout the town.

- Ensure that adequate educational materials are distributed.

- Conduct public workshops with residents to fully educate them
regarding the cost of lighting vs. the benefits.

Provide assistance in developing Sober House Legislation.

- Provide the Town’s lobbyist with the appropriate supporting
information to ensure that appropriate legislation is adopted at
the state level.

- Maintain lines of communication with Palm Beach County and
Municipal jurisdictions to coordinate collective lobbying
efforts.
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Town of Lake Park Town Commission

Meeting Date: May 5, 2010

PUBLIC HEARING

[ S Gy S -}

Public Hearing

[] ORDINANCE ON FIRST READING [ ]
[1 GENERAL APPROVAL OF ITEM [1]
[] Other:

Agenda Request Form

Agenda ltem No. 8

[] RESOLUTION

Ordinance on Second Reading

[X] DISCUSSION

BID/RFP AWARD

CONSENT AGENDA

SUBJECT: Approval of Calendar for July Commission Meetings and Budget

Workshops.

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: Approve Recommended Dates for Meetings

and Budget Workshops.

11 2 ’
Approved by Town Manager M%/f

CMMLCT}" N4 NI E

NamefTitle Finance Director

o loelto

//
Date: 4/2?//0

Date of Actual Submittal

Originating Department:

Costs: $ No cost

Attachments:
Proposed calendar

Finance Funding Source:
Acct. #

Department Review: [x] Finance [] Personnel

[ ] Town Attorney [ 1Fire Dept [ ] Public Works

[ ] Community Affairs [1 Library []Town Clerk

[ ] Community Development || {1Marina [] Town Manager
[] PBSO

Advertised:
Date:

Paper:

[] Not Required

All parties that have an interest
in this agenda item must be
notified of meeting date and
time. The following box must
be filled out to be on agenda.

Yes | have notified
everyone

or
Not applicable in this
case :

Please initial one.

Summary Explanation/Background:

Due to the fact that the summer months encompass the budget process, itis recommended that the
calendar be set at this time to enable the Commission, staff and especially the general public to plan
their summer activities and still be able to participate in the process if they should desire.



Itis recommended that the two regularly scheduled Commission meetings be combined into one
and be held as a Special Call meeting on July 14, 2010 at the regular scheduled time of 7:00 PM. A
budget workshop needs to be held in July to review the General Fund and Enterprise budgets. It will
be necessary for the Commission to reach consensus on the tentative miltage rate at this workshop.
This meeting is suggested to be held on July 28, 2010 at 6:00 PM. The earlier starting time will
enable the Commission to adequately review all of the budget material presented.

Pursuant to F.S. 200.085 the Property Appraiser must be notified of the Town's tentative millage
rate and first public hearing date by August 4, 2008. Once the rate is included in the TRIM (Truthin
Millage) notice, which is the Notice of Proposed Taxes sent to homeowners, the rate can be lowered
but not raised. Additional workshops can be scheduled in August if the Commission so desires. The
Town's TRIM (Truth in Millage) public hearings will be scheduled at a later date. These hearings
must be scheduled after September 3™ and prior to October 3.

Itis suggested that the poposed budget for the CRA be presented at a CRA budget workshop at
6:00 PM on August 4, 2010, prior to the regularly scheduled commission meeting.

Below is the recommended calendar for July:

July 2010

Wednesday  Thursday  Friday

| Saturday  Sunday |

[ Notest — ~ 777 | zFurI_oGgh 3 4
Day

> Holiday 6 7 Cancel 8 9 10 1
Regular
Commission
Meeting

12 13 lgpecial Call 15 16 17 I8

Commission
Meeting 7PM

19 20 2l eancel py) 23 24 25

Regular
Commission
Meeting

26 27 28g,,dget 29 30 30 Notes:

Workshop
6PM




Town of Lake Park
Budget Calendar
For Budget Year 2010 - 2011
(Schedule commences April 20, 2010)

Date Description

April 20 Budgets distributed to departments

May 15 Budgets due to Finance for review

May 18 - June 19 Meetings with Town Manager and Department Directors
June 1 Estimate of Tax. Value received from Property Appraiser
July 1 Certification of Tax. Value received from Property Appraiser
July 21 Proposed budgets distributed to Town Commission

July 28* Workshop to review budget proposals - Consensus

must be reached on tentative tax rate. Additional
workshops can be held in August.

August 4 Tentative millage must be delivered to the Property Appraiser
August 4 Workshop to review CRA budget
September 3 to 18** First public hearing on the tentative budget must be

held

within 15 days of hearing Advertisement of intent to adopt a final budget and millage
must be published.

Sept. 18 to Oct. 3** Final public hearing must be held
Note: Not less than 2 days nor later than 5 days after
the ad is published.

within 3 days of adoption Resolution must be delivered to the Property Appraiser
and Tax Collector

* Please note: Consensus on tentative millage must be reached
** Note: Cannot conflict with the County or School Board.






Town of Lake Park Town Commission
Agenda Reguest Form

Meeting Date: May 5, 2010 Agenda Item No. q
[] PUBLIC HEARING [] RESOLUTION
[] Ordinance on Second Reading
[1 Public Hearing [X] DISCUSSION

[] ORDINANCE ON FIRST READING [] BID/RFP AWARD
[] GENERAL APPROVAL OF ITEM [1 CONSENT AGENDA
[] Other:

SUBJECT: A New Lease Agreement for the Crown Castle Cell Tower Located on
Town Hall Property.

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: Requesting Guidance for Future
Negotiations

Approved by Town Manager /(// %/ ' Date: ‘4{ /Z%AO

Patrick Sullivan CD Director 412212010
Name/Title Date of Actual Submittal
Originating Department: | Costs:$ N/A Attachments:
i Pictures
Community Funding Source:
Development
Acct, #
Department Review: [ ] Finance [ ] Personnel
[ ] Town Attorney [ ] Fire Dept [ ] Public Works
[ ] Community Affairs [1 Library [1Town Clerk
[X] Community Development A2 [ [] PBSO [ ] Town Manager
; ; Yes | have notified

. . All parties that have an interest
Adv.ertlsed. in this agenda item must be everyone
Date: notified of meeting date and Or
Paper: time. The following box must Not applicabie in this
[1 Not Required be filled out to be on agenda. case :

Please initial one.

Summary Explanation/Background: The Town has been approached by the owner (Crown Castle)
of the cell tower located between the PBSO building and Town Hall to extend their lease for 30 years.
Along with the extension they are asking to expand the number of co-locators on the tower. The
tower will most likely be able to hoid two additional companies. The present lease is set to expire in
2019. They are anxious to sign a new lease so that they may rent out space on the tower and they are
unable to do that with their present lease expiring in 9 years. They need a 20 to 30 year term to entice



co-locaters. It should be noted that Crown Castle is in the business of leasing space on cell towers,
they are not a cell company. Right now the cell company that leases space on the tower is AT&T.

There are pro’s and con’s to extending the lease.

Pro’s ----

* Increased revenue for the Town. The rent would almost double. They are presently paying
approximately $14,000 per year and that would increase to around $22,000 per year. For the
future there is a 4% annual increase built into the lease. Additional co-locaters would increase
the yearly rent by an additional $9,000 per year, per co-locater. A fully loaded tower would
provide about $40,000 per year which is a $26,000 increase over their present annual payment.

In addition they will provide a one time capital contribution of $20,000 to help with parking lot
maintenance around the tower. The maintenance would result from the wear and tear to the
parking lot from their heavy equipment access (that is $666 per year for the 30 year term of the
lease).

¢ The tower location provides for additional cell coverage around town which is a benefit to the
community.

Con's ----

» Of particular interest is the aesthetic impact the tower has and will have with additional
antennae on it. At full capacity, the tower's appurtenant antennae will be triple the amount
that is there now. | have enclosed a picture comparison of the Town Hall tower and a fully
loaded tower,

* The existing tower is in direct competition with the Town’s cell tower at the public works
building. Since we own the Sprint tower we can charge additional co-locaters $24,000 rent per
year as opposed to the $9,000 we would get from the Crown Castle tower. A fully loaded
stealth tower owned by the Town could produce $72,000 annually, Of course, there is no
guarantee that we will get additional tenants.

Possible Action ----

+ Sign a new 30 year lease with the terms as presently being negotiated. This will produce
immediate revenue.

» Insist on a stealth tower similar to the Sprint tower at public works with similar lease terms.

» Wait for the lease to expire and build our own stealth tower. If the site is necessary to
continued coverage a cell company will most likely pay to build the tower and turn it over to
the Town as was the case with Sprint.

o There is no guarantee that a company will want to locate on a new tower. Also, this
would resuit in a 10 to 14 year delay in realizing additional revenue as we would have
to honor the remaining 9 years of the existing lease. The next 9 years of the lease will
produce $175,000 in revenue if we do nothing. A new lease at the increased rate will
produce $273,000 over this period. If the Tower were to be fully loaded with additional
co-locators then the tower rent could increase up to $329,000 (based on a 50%
occupancy rate} over the next 9 years but there is no guarantee that all the space will
be rented. This would be a difference of $154,000 in additional revenue over the next9
years or $17,000 per year.

* Let the lease expire, tear the tower down and don't replace it.
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Town of Lake Park Town Commission

Agenda Request Form

Meeting Date: May 5, 2010 Agenda Item No. | O

PUBLIC HEARING

[ e ) S

Public Hearing

[1 ORDINANCE ONFIRST READING [ ]
[ ] GENERAL APPROVAL OF ITEM []

[] Other:

[] RESOLUTION

Ordinance on Second Reading

[X] DISCUSSION

BID/RFP AWARD

CONSENT AGENDA

SUBJECT: Installation of Stop Signs at Flagler Bivd. and 4" Street

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION:

-
Approved by Town Manager W/g/
/

Date: ‘[t/ Z,'Z/} O

Name/Title Date of Actual Submittal
_Gi'igina.ting Department: | ¢oq. Attachments:
Commissioner Longtin | Funding Source:

Acct. #

Department Review: [1Finance [ ] Personnel

[ ] Town Attorney, []1Fire Dept [ 1 Public Works

[ ] Community Affairs (] Libfary []1 Town Clerk

[ } Community Development__ (| [1Marina [ 1 Town Manager
[1PBSO

Advertised:
Date:

Paper:

{1 Not Required

Al parties that have an interest
in this agenda item must be
notified of meeting date and
time. The following box must
be filled out to be on agenda.

Yes | have notified
everyone

or
Not applicable in this
case :

Please initial one.

Summary Explanation/Background: Commissioner Longtin requested an agenda item to

discuss the installation of stop signs on Flagler Blvd and 4" Street.
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Town of Lake Park Town Commission

Meeting Date:

[] PUBLIC HEARING

[] ORDINANCE ON SECOND READING [X]
[] ORDINANCE ON FIRST READING [ ]

[1] GENERAL APPROVAL OF ITEM []

[] Other:

SUBJECT:

May 5, 2010

Agenda Request Form

Agenda Item No. I l

[] RESOLUTION

DISCUSSION
BID/RFP AWARD

CONSENT AGENDA

Northlake Boulevard Task Force Membership

RECOMMENDED MOTION/ACTION: Rescind Previous Action And Appoint One

Regular Member And Two Alternate Members To The Task Foce

Approved by Town Manager / / ﬁﬁv) /§
NI m

Date: Z% / Z/ //

Name/Title

29 8@!0

Date of Actual Submittal

Originating Department:

Costs: $

Attachments:
Resolution 2006-22

Town Clerk Funding Source: Amending the Task
Acct. # Force
Department Review: [ ] Grants ( ] Public Works
[] Attorney, [ ] Human Resources [ ] Recreation
[ ] Community Development__ || [ Library [X] Town Clerk V)
[] Finance [ 1 Marina [ ] Town Manager
| [] Fire Dept [1DRen
., Al parties that have an interest | Y&S | have notified
Advertised: in tlF:is agenda item must be everyone
Date: notified of meeting date and or
Paper: time. The following box must Not applicable in this case:
[X] Not Required be filled out to be on agenda. UME

Please initial one.

Summary Explanation/Background: At its April 7, 2010 meeting, the Town Commission

appointed Commissioner Rumsey as an “alternate member” of the Northlake

Boulevard Task Force (NBTF). Upon subsequent review of the Interlocal Agreement,

staff found that an error was made in appointing Commissioner Rumsey as an

“alternate member” of NBTF.

The Agreement calls for two regular members, one of whom must be an elected




official, and two alternate members. The sole regular member currently representing
the Town is the Community Development Director. Commissioner Rumsey should
have been appointed as the Town’s elected official regular member, and not the
alternate member.

Itis recommended that Commissioner Rumsey be appointed as the Town'’s “regular
member” of the NBTF. The Town Commission still needs to appoint two alternate
members to the Task Force.

The Town Commission has historically appointed one Commissioner and the Public
Works Director as alternate members; however, there are no provisions in the
Agreement which dictate alternate appointments, therefore, the Commission may
appoint residents if it so chooses.



Part 1. The Agreement is hereby amended as is shown in Part 1 of the
Amendment. Changes are indicated by strikethrough and underline. The portions of the
Agreement that have not been changed are shown for informational purposes.

Section 1. REPRESENTATIONS

The facts, statements, and recitals heretofore set forth are true and correct
and are hereby incorporated in this Agreement by reference:

Section2.  APPOINTMENT OF TASK FORCE REPRESENTATIVES

The Task Force shall consist of eix{6} eight (8) representatives, with NORTH
PALM, GARDENS, LAKE PARK, and the COUNTY (hereinafter each a "Participant”
and jointly “Participants") each appointing two (2) regular representatives to the Task
Force, at least one of whom must be an elected official of the appointing Participant.
Each Participant shall also appoint two (2) alternate representatives. Each Participant
shall appoint representatives and alternates following the same formal procedure the
Participant uses for board or commission appointments.

Section3. QUORUM AND VOTING OF TASK FORCE REPRESENTATIVES.

A quorum of the Task Force shall be necessary for it to conduct any business
and shall consist of at least one representative (regular or alternate) from each
Participant and a totaf of at least four (4) five (5) representatives present. Each regular
representative shall have one vote. An alternate representative shall sit on behalf of the
appointing Participant and have a vote when one (1) of the regular representatives of

such Participant is absent. A majority of those present shall be required to pass a

3



Participant from constructing or causing to be constructed any portion of the median
beautification project at any time, as long as the installation is constructed in

accordance with the adopted Plan.

C, The Gardens, North Palm Beach and County have adopted the, NOBOZ

requlations. Lake Park agrees to adopt the NBOZ requlations.

Section 5. Financial Obligations

A Each member Participant hereby pledges its support to the
implementation of the adopted Plan and the construction of the beautification
improvements.

B. To the extent permitted by law, and subject to the annual appropriation of
funding by each member, the Participants intend to commit-te contributinge an equai

share to secure implementation and completion of all phases of the Pian within ten

years from the date of this Agreement or upon completion of all phases of the Pian,
whichever occurs first. In kind services, as approved by the Task Force. may be

substituted for monetary contributions.

Section6. TERM OF AGREEMENT

A, This Agreement shall continue through September 30, 2010, but
be e d by written instrument of the Participants.
B. Any Paricipant pary may withdraw from this Agreement upon thirty (30)
days’ written notice to the other parties, thereby relieving the withdrawing Participant

party of all obligations and benefits arising out of this Agreement.
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RESOLUTION 2006-22

BE IT RESOLVED BY THE VILLAGE COUNCIL OF NORTH PALM BEACH, FLORIDA:

Section1. The Village Council of the Village of North Palm Beach, Florida, does
hereby approve the Second Amendment to the Amended and Restated Interlocal
Agreement with the City of Paim Beach Gardens, Town of Lake Park and Palm Beach
County attached as Exhibit “A,” which agreement amends the Amended and Restated
Agreement effective February 26, 2004, by adding the Town of Lake Park as a member
of the Northlake Boulevard Task Force.

Section2. The Mayor and Village Clerk are hereby authorized and directed to
execute the Second Amendment to the Amended and Restated Interlocal Agreement
set forth in Exhibit “A” for and on behalf of the Village of North Palm Beach.

Section 3.  This Resolution shall take effect immediately upon its adoption.

PASSED AND ADOPTED THIS 13th DAY OF APRIL, 2006.

(Village Seal)
. ayor [ § )

ATTEST:

Tl (7277

Village Clerk ~




SECOND AMENDMENT TO
AMENDED AND RESTATED INTERLOCAL AGREEMENT
BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH, CITY OF
PALM BEACH GARDENS AND PALM BEACH COUNTY ADDING
TOWN OF LAKE PARK AS A PARTICIPANT

THIS SECOND AMENDMENT TO AMENDED AND RESTATED INTERLOCAL
AGREEMENT BETWEEN THE VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH, CITY OF PALM
BEACH GARDENS AND PALM BEACH COUNTY ADDING TOWN OF LAKE PARK AS
A PARTICIPANT (hereinafter referred to as “Amendment”) is made and being entered
into by and between the VILLAGE OF NORTH PALM BEACH, 501 U.S. Highway One,
North Palm Beach, Florida 33408 (hereinafter “NORTH PALM"), the CITY OF PALM
BEACH GARDENS, 10500 North Military Trail, Palm Beach Gardens, Florida 33410
(hereinafter “"GARDENS"), and PALM BEACH COUNTY, 301 North Olive Avenue, West
Palm Beach, Florida 33401 (hereinafter “COUNTY") and TOWN OF LAKE PARK, 535
Park Avenue, Lake Park, Florida 33403 (hereinafter "LAKE PARK").

WHEREAS, NORTH PALM, GARDENS, COUNTY and LAKE PARK previously
entered into an interlocal agreement establishing the Northlake Boulevard Task Force
(hereinafter referred to as “Task Force’) on September 2, 1997 (R-97-11586), said
agreement (hereinafter referred to as the ‘Agreement”); and

WHEREAS, said Agreement was subsequently amended by First Amendment to
Agreement which was effective on August 20,1998 (R-98-1378D) and by Second
Amendment to Agreement which was effective on August 22, 2000 (R-2000-1182),

Amended and Restated Agreement, which was effective on February 26, 2004 (R-2004-



0394) and Amendment to Amended and Restated Agreement, which was effective on
September 13, 2005; and

WHEREAS, Chapter 163.01, Florida Statutes, known as the "Florida Interlocal
Cooperation Act of 1969", authorizes local government units to enter into agreements o
cooperate with other localities to best serve the needs of the local communities; and

WHEREAS, the Task Force has, in accordance with the Agreement, facilitated
the development of the Northlake Corridor Streetscape Plan and the Northlake Corridor
Overlay Zoning District regulations: and

WHEREAS, NORTH PALM, the GARDENS and the COUNTY have adopted the
Northlake Corridor Streetscape Plan (hereinafter referred to as the “Plan") and have
adopted the Northlake Boulevard Overlay Zoning District regulations (hereinafter
referred to as “NBOZ"); and

WHEREAS, the Task Force has received a Municipal Planning Organization
grant for the completion of Phase 1 and Phase 2 of the Plan.

WHEREAS, LAKE PARK also adopted the pian but subsequently was deleted
from the Agreement after it passed a resolution withdrawing from the Task Force.

WHEREAS, LAKE PARK seeks to rejoin the Task Force and has agreed to adopt
the NBOZ regulations.

NOW THEREFORE, in consideration of the mutual covenants, promises, and
representations contained herein, NORTH PALM, the GARDENS, LAKE PARK and the

COUNTY hereby adopt this Second Amendment to the Amended and Restated

Agreement as follows:



Part 1. The Agreement is hereby amended as is shown in Part 1 of the
Amendment. Changes are indicated by strikethrough and underline. The portions of the
Agreement that have not been changed are shown for informational purposes.

Seclion1.  REPRESENTATIONS

The facts, statements, and recitals heretofore set forth are true and correct
and are hereby incorporated in this Agreement by reference:

Section2.  APPOINTMENT OF TASK FORCE REPRESENTATIVES

The Task Force shall consist of six{6} eight (8) representatives, with NORTH
PALM, GARDENS, LAKE PARK, and the COUNTY (hereinafter each a “Participant"
and jointly “Parlicipants”) each appointing two (2) regular representatives to the Task
Force, at least one of whom must be an elected official of the appointing Participant.
Each Participant shall also appoint two (2) alternate representatives. Each Participant
shall appoint representatives and altemates following the same formal procedure the
Participant uses for board or commission appointments.

Section3.  QUORUM AND VOTING OF TASK FORCE REPRESENTATIVES.

A quorum of the Task Force shall be necessary for it to conduct any business
and shall consist of at least one representative (regular or alternate) from each
Participant and a total of at least feur {4) five (5) representatives present. Each regular
representative shall have one vote. An alternate representative shall sit on behalf of the
appointing Participant and have a vote when one (1) of the regular representatives of

such Participant is absent. A majority of those present shall be required to pass a

3



motion, except that any recommended plan must be approved by a majority which
includes at least one representative from (3) of the Participants.

Section4.  AUTHORITY OF TASK FORCE REPRESENTATIVES.

A. NORTH PALM, GARbENS, LAKE PARK and COUNTY each authorize
their respective representatives to participate in the Task Force and to take such actions
as may be necessary to implement the Plan adopted by the governing bodies of the
Participants, and to review and propose amendments to the Pian as deemed necessary
by the Task Force.

B. To this end, Task Force representatives are authorized to meet as
necessary and to contract for such professional assistance as they deem necessary to
facilitate the completion of their task, within the limits of the funding provided herein. In
each instance where it becomes necessary to retain professional assistance, the Task
Force first shall seek such professional assistance from staff employed or consultants
retained by the Participants before deciding to retain “outside” staff or consultants.
Costs for such professional assistance shall be born equally by the Participants.

The Task Force shall submit a proposed budget no later than May 1 of each
year for each governing body's consideration to fund activities for the ensuing fiscal
year.

The Task Force agrees that the adopted Plan will be implemented in various
phases, and that the timing of the completion of individual phases shall be
accomplished in the following initial sequence: Phase 1, Phase 2, and Phase 4. The
participants further agree that nothing in this Agreement shalil preciude any individual

4



Participant from constructing or causing to be constructed any portion of the median
beautification project at any time, as long as the installation is constructed in
accordance with the adopted Plan.

C. The Gardens, North Palm Beach and County have adopted the, NOBDZ

requlations. Lake Park agrees to adopt the NBQZ requlations.

Section 5. Financial Obligations

A Each member Participant hereby pledges its supporl to the
implementation of the adopted Plan and the construction of the beautification
improvements.

B. To the extent permitted by iaw, and subject to the annual appropriation of
funding by each member, the Participants intend to committe contributirge an equal
share to secure implementation and completion of all phases of the Plan within ten

years from the date of this Agreement or upon complstion of all phases of the Pian,

whichever occurs first. in kind services, as approved by the Task Force, may be

substituted for monetary contributions.
Section6. TERM OF AGREEMENT

A This Agreement shall continue through September 30, 2010, put

may be extended by writlen instrument of the Participants.
B. Any Participant party may withdraw from this Agreement upon thirty (30)

days’ written notice to the other parties, thereby relieving the withdrawing Participant

party of all obligations and benefits arising out of this Agreement.



Section 7. GENERAL TERMS AND CONDITIONS

A. This Agreement sets forth all the rights, responsibilities and obligations of
the members Participants to each other, represents the entire understanding of the
members, and supersedes all other negotiations, representations, or agreements,
whether written or oral, relating to the subject matter of this Agreement. This
Agreement cannot be changed, altered, amended or modified except by written
instrument signed by the duly authorized representatives of the partios Participants
adopted and approved by all parties Participants in the same manner as the
Agreement.

B. The headings given to the Section herein are inserted only for
convenience and are no way to be construed as part of this Agreement or as a limitation
of the scope of the particular section to which the heading refers.

C. This Agreement is authorized by Section 163.01 Fla. Statutes, being a
Joint exercise of power shared in common which any municipality could exercise
separately. This Agreement shall be filed with the Clerk of the Circuit Court in and for
Palm Beach County, Florida, upon execution by all of the members.

D. Nothing stated in this Agreement shall be construed to give any rights or
benefits of any member Participant to this Agreement to anyone other than the above
listed members, and all duties and responsibilities undertaken pursuant to this
Agreement will be for the sole and the exclusive benefit of the members Participants,
and not for the benefit of any other,

E. This Agreement may not be assigned by any member Participant.
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F. This document can be signed in counterparts.

G. All of the terms and provisions of this Agreement shall be binding upon,
inure to the benefit of, and be enforceable by the Parlicipants and their legal
representatives, successors, and assigns.

H. If any part of this Agreement is contrary to, prohibited by, or deemed
invalid under any applicable law or regulation, such provision shall be inapplicable and
deemed omitted to the extent so contrary, prohibiled, or invalid, but the remainder

hereof shall not be invalidated thereby and shall be given full force and effect, so far as

possible.

l. Any portion of the Interlocal Agreement not contained in this Agreement is
hereby repealed.

J. All actions taken by the Task Force pursuant to the Interlocal Agreement

and amendments thereto remain in full force and effect.

K. The adoption of this Agreement does not affect the status of
representatives of each of the Participants currently appointed to the Task Force.

L. This Agreement shall become effective upon a Resolution being
enacted by NORTH PALM and GARDENS, each authorizing its respective Mayor and
Clerk to execute this Agreement, and upon approval by the Board of County
Commissioners of COUNTY.

Part 2. Except as expressly set forth herein, all terms and conditions in the
Agreement shall remain in full force and effect.

Part 3. This Amendment shall become effective upon a Resolution being enacted
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by NORTH PALM, GARDENS and LAKE PARK, each authorizing its respective Mayor

and Clerk to execute this Amendment, and upon approval by the Board of County

Commissioners of COUNTY.

Parl 4. This Amendment shall be filed with the Clerk of the Circuit Court of Palm

Beach County, Florida upon execution by all Parlicipants.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hereto have caused this Amendment to be

executed this_( ™ day of pgr.

, 20086.
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